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ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES S. MAINOR (Chair): Good
morning.

At this time I'm going to ask if everyone can please stand and
salute the flag. (all recite Pledge of Allegiance)

Thank you.

We're going to start the meeting -- the hearing -- by allowing
Honorable Mayor Healy, who wants to welcome us all to his great City of
Jersey City.

Mayor Healy. (applause)

MAYOR JERRAMIAH T. HEALY: Thanks, Chairman
Mainor.

We want to thank the Chairman, of course, all the Committee
for coming, bringing the (indiscernible) -- this session to our city here,
Jersey City, and we want to thank everybody for coming down. I wanted to
welcome the attendees who are here to our city and to this session.

Briefly, I'd like to point out a few things. I know that some
legislation which brought savings to us in the form of pension and health
insurance -- and I know it was hard-fought -- the good thing about that is
that it was a big relief to our city and all the taxpayers throughout the State
of New Jersey. The downside of that was there was a stampede to the door
of some of our most experienced people, and we haven’t been in a-- We're
not in a position to rehire. In addition, when a lot of our senior people left
we were faced with, of course, the payout of accrued vacation and unused
sick time, and that has been something of a burden. Fortunately, a couple

of years ago an idea came to the Legislature -- and we appreciate that that
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was passed -- that would allow our city and others to bond over the course
of years to pay, to make sure that we could make those payouts.

Here in Jersey City the men and women of JCPD and JCFD are
doing a terrific job every day, and the ironic thing is that because of the
great work they’ve done over the years -- even though we’ve lost a whole
host of both fire and police through attrition over the last couple of years --
the safety factor in Jersey City continues to improve. My point is, by virtue
of their success -- by their hard work, their skill, their forbearance, and the
courage of our police and fire personnel -- crime has continued to trend
down in our city. So that when we apply to our friends down in
Washington, D.C., for the COPS grants and the other Federal aid, they
have cited to us, “Well, you didn’t lay off any cops or firemen.” And, thank
God, we avoided those things through some long and very difficult
negotiations with our police and fire unions. And they say, “You didn’t lay
anybody off. Other towns in the state laid people off, crime spiked; you
laid nobody off and crime has continued to trend down somewhat in your
city. As a result, we have no money to give you.”

My point is, because of the good work of our police and fire
folks we have been, I would say, punished for our success by the folks in
Washington. So we’re asking for your help with the State, and also with
any of your friends down in Washington, D.C., to reward good performance
by, what I would say, investing rather than throwing money. When you
give it to our police and fire, good things happen.

We were fortunate-- About a year ago we got a SAFER grant
from the Federal government because, as our firemen and police officers ran

out the door, the SAFER grant allowed us to hire 64 young firefighters who
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are now on the job. We were thrilled; that was Federal money. I don’t
have to tell you folks-- You know about the UEZ battle that’s been going
on for a couple of years now. Urban Enterprise Zone-- Our city had the
largest and most successful Urban Enterprise Zone in the state. It
generated about $12 million a year to give back to our city. We used that
money largely-- A good part of it was used for the crime cameras which
have been a great success, and also to put police officers on the streets.
That money has been frozen and seized, and we know that the State is in
trouble and that the Administration and the Governor needed that money
to plug holes. But what we're trying to do is keep-- What we always say is
“amend it, don’t end it.” Amend the program if there are abuses --
straighten out the abuses. I know, speaking for our city -- Jersey City -- and
a couple of the other large cities, it was run very, very well by our people.
There were no abuses. And also it cost about $90 million a year to run all
of the UEZs throughout the state. We had asked the State Legislature and
the Administration -- they can achieve some savings; we’ll take half a loaf --
say, $45 million -- to partially fund-- That would halfway fund all the
UEZs; we could do a lot with that.

So we're asking to address those things: continue to look to
help cities that spend money wisely and achieve successes, and do that
through the State; lobby the Governor’s Office to look at those things; and,
once again, our COPS grant with the Federal government -- whatever
influence you folks can bring to that subject, we’d certainly appreciate it.

I'm done talking. Thank you very much. (laughter and

applause)
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ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, Mr. Mayor. Thank
you for saying good morning and welcoming all of our visitors. (laughter)

MAYOR HEALY: Thanks, Charles.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Let me just say good morning,
and I want to thank all of you for attending the Assembly Law and Public
Safety public hearing. I'd like to welcome you to my hometown of Jersey
City and I want to thank NJCU for their hospitality. It is important that I
note that this is a hearing about fact finding. It is my hope that at the end
of the day we can all pull together and find solutions to maintain public
safety efficiently and economically within our respective municipalities. It
is no secret that we are in a financial crunch, but safety cannot be
jeopardized in lieu of saving money.

So again, after setting that tone I wanted to say again thank
you to all of you for coming to this public hearing.

At this time I'm going to ask if Mayor Healy would come back;
Chief Comey from the Jersey City Police Department and Chief Rivers from
the Jersey City Fire Department will come forward.

If you can, prior to speaking, just state your name and your
affiliation for the record, please.

MAYOR HEALY: I've already made my appearance. (laughter)
Jerramiah Healy, Mayor of Jersey City.

CHIEF THOMAS J. COMEY: Tom Comey, Chief of Police;
and in these tough economic times, also the Director -- since government is
getting smaller and smaller. And I'd like to also thank the members of the

Committee for coming up. You just saved my creaky back a ride down to
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Trenton, which I've done on numerous times. But good morning and thank
you for the opportunity to address you.

CHIEF DARREN RIVERS: Good morning; Darren Rivers,
Fire Chief, Jersey City Fire Department. I'd like to welcome the Committee
here to Jersey City. I think it’s a wonderful thing that we're doing here, to
be able to voice our concerns that we have in our departments; and it’s very
important that the State knows the difficulties that we’ve been dealing
with, with all the cuts and the losses of crucial manpower which makes our
job very difficult. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Would you like to start, Chief?

MR. COMEY: Yes.

First I'd like to say that we understand, as administrators in
present-day economic times, that we have to get more prudent with the
fiscal resources we're offered; we have to get smarter, and we have to get
smaller. But there comes a time when we have to understand, as an agency,
that smaller doesn’t count anymore. I constantly go out now-- We’ve been
holding town hall meetings about public safety in Jersey City. And I hear
over and over again, “Chief, why do I not see a police officer walking a beat
in my city?” And I have to be--

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Could you move the mike closer?

MR. COMEY: Which one, this one?

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: It’s the big one.

MR. COMEY: And I have to be very honest with them, and
tell them I was a beat cop in 1981. I walked the beat from 6 p.m. to 2 a.m.
The difference was, in 1981, there were between 1,050 and 1,100 police

officers in this city. So walking beats were, at that time, permissible. I now
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run an agency that’s down to 803, and at the end of this week I will sign an
order and it may go below 800 to 799; I know it will go to 800 because we
have 3 individuals who are already scheduled to retire and have completed
their last tour. So we continue to go down.

But as the Mayor indicated, we’re victims of our own success.
We've gotten smaller, we’ve gotten smarter, and we’ve been able to stabilize
crime. This was not an easy task. We saw this fiscal crisis coming at the
end of 2009, the beginning of 2010, and we began immediately to negotiate
with our unions and bare our souls to them. Through some, as the Mayor
indicated, arduous negotiations we were able to get sacrifices on both sides
and we were able to prevent any layoffs or demotions within our agency,
which to me was a tremendous godsend to the citizens and residents of this
city.

However, every grant we applied for, I think what’s occurring is
people are realizing that cities like Camden, Paterson, Newark have laid off
police officers and they’re getting the first bite of the apple before they even
look at us. So we’ve become, as the Mayor indicated, a victim of our
success. We're not only seeing crime stable -- and look, I believe we can get
it down further if we have more resources -- we’re being penalized for
success. And that, in my opinion, is unfair. And in the rule of unintended
consequences, when the Mayor discussed the UEZ, I don’t think anybody
within the city, or within this panel, could truly understand that on July 1
of this year all the assets in regards to CCTV will become burdened on my
budget because they will no longer be funded by the UEZ. We have the
largest camera system in the state. Some of it is rather old. Maintenance

on that equipment, repairs on that equipment, are fairly costly. So effective
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July 1 that is going to be our responsibility -- to pay all those bills. So any
chance I have of tweaking the budget in order to hire more police officers,
in addition to the grant we're seeking, is going to be effected by that rule of
unintended consequences. Nobody expected that burden to be thrown on
their back. And I figure it has to be in the area of about $800,000 that will
be put on my budget on July 2 that I didn’t have on June 30. Where do I
getthat$8OOIXX)ﬁ0n1undmrdmzpnmentcondﬁknw? I don’t. I have to
make further cuts within my agency to sustain the use of that camera
system, because we have to understand: If we have less cops, we have to
utilize the cameras more -- and we have.

And I've spoken to several people; I believe I even spoke to you,
Assemblyman Cryan, when we were going through it. Another problem
with the rule of unintended consequences is every time a rumor comes out
of Trenton, my retirements go off the charts. In July of 2010 I had
scheduled retirements for August 1: seven. At the end of July, I signed 30
retirement orders. If another rumor was to come out of Trenton, I'd
probably sign 80, which would devastate this department.

So we understand. And I've had the good fortune of having a
Mayor who supports me, and I've run this organization for six years now,
okay? I'm a 32-year veteran. I could have gone home long before these
battles ever started. But I believe in what we do, I believe in what the men
and women who I work with every day do. And we're just saying, “We
understand there are problems. But together we can resolve them.” And it
can no longer be kneejerk reactions, and before we do stuff with the UEZ,
please invite us to the table so we can then show you what’s going to

happen.
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I thank you for your time. I'm here to answer any questions
anybody has relevant to the agency. But I just ask that you make the men
and women of law enforcement, fire services, EMS -- those who are
responsible for the lives of the citizens of this state -- part of the resolution.
Because we’re really not part of the problem (indiscernible).

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Chief, I have one question.

CHIEF COMEY: That figures, Charles. (laughter)

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Did you have to make any major
adjustments within your department--

CHIEF COMEY: Oh, sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: --to maintain the manpower?

CHIEF COMEY: Sure. My motorcycle squad is probably
about 50 percent of what it was. I disbanded my community relations unit.
We were on the precipice of forming what would probably be a model, to be
utilized throughout this state, of a crime intelligence unit that has now been
tabled. We’ve downsized a lot of the units that are out there previously,
but that’s just some of the cuts we had to make to make this situation work.
And understand -- we saw this coming, and in 2010 we were the first city
agency to lay off people because we saw the end coming. We laid off 40
civilians before anybody else in the city had done it because we had to make
the necessary choice to save police officers. It was one of the toughest
decisions I made because, you understand, you impact families when you do
that. But I still had a responsibility to public safety.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: You said July 2 you're going to
have an $800,000 bill attached to your budget?
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CHIEF COMEY: I'm in the process right now-- I've asked the
EDC to give me exactly what they pay annually, and what my anticipated
costs would be effective July 1. Because on July 1, all that equipment will
be transferred from the EDC’s budget -- every camera out there right now is
maintained, serviced, and under the care and control of the EDC. On July
2 that will come under the care and control, and the police department will
be responsible for all the financial purchases related thereto.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Is there a possibility that might
create layoffs and/or the CCTV not being utilized?

CHIEF COMEY: Well, the thing is this: We're fortunate right
now, because we did get a State grant -- and I'm very grateful for that --
from the Attorney General for $500,000. We were able to reemploy three
CCTV operators under that grant that we had laid off during our tough
economic times. That grant expires in November of this year. The problem
is, it’s not a decision I can make until I see what the cost of the UEZ -- the
camera maintenance will be.

But I'll again have to make the prudent decision: They may
have to be laid off if I'm forced to bear more costs on the maintenance of
the system.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Other than requesting more
money, do you have any suggestions for this Committee that we could
explore in reference to creating more manpower: any cost savings, removing
some barriers, or even different ways to negotiate within our contracts?

CHIEF COMEY: Well, the suggestions I would make -- the
education I got sitting here for six years was: Contracts vary greatly from

municipality to municipality. Like some people talk about, they consider it,
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in the civilian world, a golden parachute -- sick days. Well, I don’t have one
sick day on the record. I've taken, on an average in a 32-year career, eight
days off sick. Some of the things people talk about, Jersey City corrected in
1988. In 1988, you could freeze under that present contract all the time
you had in vacation time until you retired, but from that point on, you were
no longer able to keep more than 30 days on the books for the current year
you were in. So we corrected that. And the other things have been
corrected through various contracts. So we’re not an agency that people--
But again, we’re lumped together with every law enforcement entity in the
state. We've already taken the prudent steps in the past to make sure--
And I've told the Mayor, based on contractual conditions that have changed
throughout my 32-year career, these payouts will begin to go down as we
lose people from 1981 and 1985, because the city took the corrective action
earlier.

So as far as that goes, I wish I could, but contracts vary from
municipality to municipality. I would only say that I would urge each
municipal leader, as Mayor Healy has done, to be forthright and honest in
contract negotiations.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Looking at the contracts that the
Jersey City Police Department has, I'm quite sure there’s some type of cost-
cutting savings within that contract that could possibly be negotiated
between the unions and the Mayor. If there was some type of legislation
form that would allow you to reopen the contract and not be subject to any
pending litigation or any new rules that are going to come into effect at the
end of a contract, do you think that will be something that we can possibly

explore and see if it can happen?

10



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

MAYOR HEALY: Chairman, we can reopen negotiations as
long as both sides agree -- the union leadership and-- We’ve been talking
about that with both of those unions, and down the road the next couple of
months we may be able to do that. So I really don’t think we need
legislation to do that; it’s all about the contractual situation and the bargain
that is struck.

CHIEF COMEY: And I think part of the problem is there is a
lot of apprehension now on both parts; that the minute you go to unions,
based on what has occurred over the last 18 months, that they are a little
apprehensive that something would occur the minute they open that up --
that they would be part and parcel to additional fees.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: This is what I was saying.

CHIEF COMEY: That’s apprehension; I do believe there are
ways that can be dealt with, but I don’t know if legislation can effectively
deal with that. I would have to give that due consideration.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Understood.

Any members?

Assemblyman Connors.

ASSEMBLYMAN CONNORS:  Through the Chair, Chief,
thank you first for coming here and supporting this Committee.

Through the reductions of in-house services in Jersey City, are
we still maintaining services to the other municipalities and jurisdictions
throughout Hudson County that call upon us for services at various times?

CHIEF COMEY: Yes, yes. And I've had to adapt the policy
where previously if it impacts the city financially, I do seek reimbursement

from the municipality we go to. In other words, we understand -- and to

11
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put it in layman’s terms -- we're the big dog on the block. We have the
equipment that some of these other agencies may not have and we’ll go
anywhere, anytime for public safety. However, if I incur a cost above and
beyond what my reasonable costs would be to have those officers out there
for that tour, I do seek reimbursement from the agency we respond to. And
I have to be honest with you, most of the chiefs understand it in this day
and age, and they have reimbursed us when necessary. For instance,
Hoboken -- we sent 40 additional police officers down there to Hoboken
and I told them I couldn’t afford it. They had to pay for it, and Hoboken
paid for it.

ASSEMBLYMAN CONNORS: Right. So while our reductions
in services -- that hasn’t reduced on the county level as well? We’re still
being called upon frequently and stuft?

CHIEF COMEY: That is correct, that is correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN CONNORS: Okay.

CHIEF COMEY: Well, I'd say it’s probably happening more,
because of the reductions that are occurring in some of these smaller towns
that may have downsized their emergency services units, such as Union
City.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Assemblyman Cryan.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Thanks. I have a couple for you.

One of the ideas that we consistently hear is that technology is
a great saver. And I want to explore with you just for another moment
about picking up these costs, because I don’t think people understand, at a

real-time level, what cameras cost, what technology costs.

12



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

This transfer of money into you is from the UEZ cuts, right?
This unconscionable--

CHIEF COMEY: We’re not getting the money; we're getting
the equipment.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: You're getting the equipment and
the maintenance.

CHIEF COMEY: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Right? So you have folks that
literally are able to cover a wider ground, with the proper training, that are -
- I just want to understand it--

CHIEF COMEY: What we did is we rigged up the system,
Assemblyman. When we looked at the system, as I said, in 2009 and 2010,
we saw this coming so we were able to make the appropriate adjustments
there. So we brought CCTV from its present location into our central
communications room. Now, understand: I believe, technology-wise, we’re
probably one of the most premier departments in the entire state. Because
if we want to get smaller, we have to get smarter. In CCTV, when we
revamped it, it used to be continually observed by the same computer
operators, the same system operators, in a satellite office. Now when we
bring it in to our command center, it’s tiered. What we do is we have the
precinct commanders have video displays in all their precincts and they
determine the priority of the camera. So they may have the desk sergeant
watching camera one and two that are two high-crime areas. They will then
advise CCTV to not pay attention to these cameras. Additionally what we
did is -- getting smarter and smaller -- we then hooked up a video link -- and

we’ve had a lot of technological problems with the third aspect of it -- where

13
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if a crime occurs at Van Nostrand and MLK the dispatcher is immediately
given the CCTV feed on a 52-inch color monitor on the board in front of
him so we can advise responding units exactly what they’re going into. The
third aspect with that, which we have an extremely difficult time with
technology-wise, is in a two-man unit, that CCTV feed could go directly to
the radio car so the passenger would be able to brief the driver, as they were
responding, on what was occurring.

So yes, we've tried to-- And we face another problem being
there are 60 more cameras coming online in the next year that were signed
off on over a year ago. We don’t know if we have the personnel to watch
them. So it’s going to become difficult. But we have taken the appropriate
steps to try to relieve the burden on the CCTV operator and prioritize it to
where it’s more integrated in uniform personnel.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: So while you’re down from a high
of approximately 1,100 to 800--

CHIEF COMEY: No, we’re down from 905 in my tenure to
103 (sic). (Indiscernible)

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Okay. But technology is a part of
a solution, but not the solution, and certainly not a complete cost profile
that doesn’t (indiscernible).

CHIEF COMEY: That is correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: I just want to make a couple of
other-- One other quick question, one other quick comment.

At least in my experience so far, no matter what the unions are,
I see folks that are more than willing to open up, that understand a cost

profile when it comes to what cities and governments are going through.

14
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That’s been my experience, at least so far, not only in my day job but
around this state. I have seen folks willing to open up contracts. I think
our incentive, in terms of whether it’s new hires and a disproportionate cost
on health care that we provided -- we’ve created a number of disincentives
to do that. Well, maybe this Committee could look at opportunities to
create incentives. It might be an available option to us because, let’s face it,
every new hire pays a different amount than the others. You create a
different standard and that’s something we should look at in trying to make
opportunities barrier-free, as opposed to, frankly, a difficult position that
we’re in now.

And then finally: just the Port Authority stuff; you know, the
Holland Tunnel and the rest. Do you create a lot of extra-- Do you get
extra-- Is there an additional burden to you as a result of, frankly, the
geography and the access to New York City that’s unique to Jersey City in
any way for your costs?

CHIEF COMEY: Yes. I actually took the very, I guess, not
agreed upon position -- is that I asked the Mayor--

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Not you. (laughter)

CHIEF COMEY: --several years ago to consider-- What occurs
is we probably become, inclusive of Newark, during the daylight hours the
largest-- The East District is probably the largest precinct -- district -- in the
state in the daytime hours. And we’ve lobbied the Federal government; I've
gone through meeting after meeting at Homeland Security and said,
“Enough with the toys; 700,000 people come through this city every
morning. How am I supposed to protect them on the waterfront if you give

me a lovely piece of equipment but I don’t have the personnel to put in it?”

15
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We have to start realizing if we’re going to get smarter, it means the
utilization of personnel. Because if you look at Jersey City’s waterfront, it’s
a satellite of the financial district in New York City. It is a prime target if
they can’t strike in New York City. It would be considered a prime target.
And that’s something I'm always concerned about. And it increases the
volume of traffic into this city; you're talking motor vehicle accidents,
motor vehicle stops, that draws an inordinate amount of services on my
Department. You are correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: That’s the final point I wanted to
make -- is that we should be aware, especially in our cities and in our larger
communities. The town I live in has 57,000 people during the night when
heads go to sleep, but it has 145,000 people during the day. Jersey City is
in the same boat. And as much as most of our cities are, we need to
understand that when we talk about caps and cuts, that they're
disproportionate because we encourage people to come into work who
expect a level of service. And yet these cuts, I think, become
disproportionate, whether it’s in UEZ or other areas, because we’re asking a
work population to be there, and yet we’re not providing the available
resources to make sure that everybody has the same equal public safety
options.

CHIEF COMEY: That’s correct.

MAYOR HEALY: Can I just emphasize something the Chief
said? I'm sure everybody here understands it, but anytime we get a State
grant or a Federal grant, in particular, it’s all to buy machines, cars, super
trucks that can do everything other than jump over the moon. But what we

really need are personnel or boots on the ground. We need funding to
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allow us to hire firefighters -- I mean, police officers to address public safety.
So if we could get that message across that would be great. If you're going
to give us any kind of grant from the State or the Feds, give us some
discretion and allow us to hire personnel rather than to buy another, as the
Chief said, another toy with bells and whistles that you can use, maybe,
once a year that becomes practical. And a lot of funding, I think, goes
down the drain because of that. We don’t have the discretion to use the
funds to hire and put people out on the streets to continue to provide the
best level of public safety.

CHIEF COMEY: And in conclusion, I'd just like to say one
thing. I'm encouraged by what I heard here today, because the benefit I
have of meeting with this Committee is there is resolution to all these
things. And I guess, perhaps, the vilification period is now over and we
understand. And as I said, I could have gone home years ago. That we can
resolve this if we stop the blame game. We have to stop the blame game
and start the resolution game. It is not a fault of the unions, nor is it the
fault of the Assembly. It is what we must deal with together today -- and
there’s a way around that -- or tomorrow, ladies and gentlemen, is very, very
bleak in law enforcement.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Assemblyman.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Chief said he is very encouraged by what he heard today,
but that was before I spoke. I hope I haven’t ruined it. (laughter)

CHIEF COMEY: I'll let you know if you did.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: I get the sense you will,

which I appreciate.
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I also appreciate how well you articulated your state of the
State, as you were specific to your police department.

Chief, when you talk about a minimum of 30 people possibly
retiring, possibly a maximum of 80 people retiring--

CHIEF COMEY: I could have 80 retirements.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: And, listen, I appreciate the
challenge that is associated with the brain drain and losing all that
experience. But that’s the glass half-empty. The glass half-full is the
potential financial benefit of replacing someone with 25-plus years on the
force with somebody who is a new hire. We just completed a very detailed
analysis in Somerset County where we're looking to regionalize our police
department from the 19 separate municipal departments. And for every
single employee who retires -- and we have 137 who will probably retire
over the next seven years -- every time one of them is replaced we save at
least $50,000. Now, you can either pass that savings on to the taxpayers or
maybe you hire two cops for every one who retires. So when you talk about
the challenge associated with the brain drain, doesn’t it also present an
opportunity?

CHIEF COMEY: Yes, it does, but the problem is that the
opportunity destroys our assets at that particular moment of time, and the
curve would actually be two to three years. So the potential savings, when I
look at it -- and I'm now going to put on my Director’s hat, which deals
with the fiscal side of the house -- is the savings I would anticipate would
not be for four years out, based upon, again, you're getting rid of the high-
end talent who were on -- many years ago -- who are now our financial

responsibility to live up to our contractual obligations. Which means we
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don’t see a potential savings on them being gone because I'm paying that
$50,000 to $60,000 a year for the next three years. So I can’t compound
that savings out until the fourth year. That’s when I'll actually receive that
savings.

So yes, in the long run, you are 100 percent correct,
Assemblyman. But that is not, in a city the size of Jersey City, going to
come for about five years, based upon the way we’re set up in steps with the
number of offices we have at each level. But that savings will come,
projected out here to about five years. Initially it would create an undue
hardship on this city if you had 80 police officers who go out the door.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: The last thing I want to do
is seem prosecutorial, but let me tell you some of the findings. And I just
want to use that as a lead-in to a couple more questions.

What we found in Somerset County when we put together 19
police departments, which forms the size of one large city department
almost the size of--

CHIEF COMEY: Well, how many would you have if you
added the 197

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: If you add up the 19, we
have 594 sworn officers--

CHIEF COMEY: Okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: --so three-quarters of the--

CHIEF COMEY: We're comparable; it’s comparable.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Yes. And what we found
was that the supervisor/rank-and-file ratio, aggregately, is 1:2. So one of the

ways we're looking to save is by transforming the labor force to get to what
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we believe is a more reasonable one-to-four or five. And when I say we, I
don’t necessarily mean policy makers, I mean the local law enforcement
leadership as well.

CHIEF COMEY: I agree with you, but, again, those are nine
individual agencies that you referenced, or 19--

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Well, I'm wondering what
your supervisor-to-rank-and-file ratio--

CHIEF COMEY: Our supervisors are more comparable to what
you just said. It’s about, right now, 1:4.8--

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Okay, that’s good news.

CHIEF COMEY: --in a line of sergeants. You know, I mean,
it’s about 4.8. I'd have to go back to my office and do the math because
we’ve had some retirements, but last time we checked it was about 4.6 --
1:4.6. And then it gets-- There’s one lieutenant per eight sergeants and so
on and so forth. We're more aligned with New York City’s ratios than
anybody else throughout the state.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: That’s good news.

The second thing was, we found that there were sworn officers
doing civilian jobs.

CHIEF COMEY: That’s the law of unintended consequences.
It’s a rule of unintended consequences. I'll give you a for instance: We’ve
tried to hire civilian dispatchers over and over again. We’re in a position
now where I have police officers who are dispatching units because we
cannot get people to take the dispatching job. So I have no other
alternatives.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: In this economy?
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CHIEF COMEY: In this economy. Because it’s not as easy as
people think. Training for a dispatcher, with a State certification, is six
months. People get tired in the six-month training period and pack it in,
because as they begin to go further into the job they’re doing they realize
they really can’t do it. It’s a high-stress job when you have, in an inner city,
an individual responsible for the lives of 12 police officers at any given time
at a lull. So we're finding, as they come on, they’re not completing the
training process. So we’ve gone to -- and the Mayor supported my position
-- I've offered it to retired firemen, retired sheriff’s officers, retired police
officers, because I understand in the scheme of things they're a little bit
more used to the high-stress position. But again, now, I got beat up
publicly and politically as it’s always the police and fire that you're hiring.
But I can prove to you that an inordinate number of people fail the training
process or withdraw from the training process. What we find historically is
everybody wants to stop at a 9-1-1 call taker. Nobody wants to go to that
next level, because it is a high stress position. So I have to have competent
people dispatching my officers” safely. So right now I have, I'm going to
say-- Four years ago I had two police officers assigned to dispatching police
personnel. I have that now up to 12, because I cannot stop that.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: It just seems to be a certain
inefficiency when having sworn officers doing civilian-type jobs, but I--

CHIEF COMEY: I do agree with you. And I'm a proponent of
it. But the problem is we’re not getting the caliber of people. And that’s
what shocks me. I agree with you 110 percent, in this economy, that we’re

not getting the competent people to do these jobs.
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ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: I've heard a number of
references made to the UEZ. And in fairness to the UEZ program-- In
terms of the catalyst for its creation years back, it was for the proceeds to
come back to the city where the UEZ resides, where it is to be used for
economic development to create the ratables that pay the property taxes
that pay for the ongoing expenses in any municipality. It sounds like what
was going on here is UEZ proceeds were being used, in fact, for ongoing
municipal operations.

MAYOR HEALY: Well, in Jersey City-- First of all, our Urban
Enterprise Zones -- I'm not going to go into the history, but you know when
they came about it was under Governor Kean and it was at a time when
cities were-- Everyone was running from the cities. The tax base was
eroded, the streets were filthy, the sidewalks were filthy, crime was out of
control, and it was a good response and it actually worked.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI:  But it was meant for
economic development.

MAYOR HEALY: Yes, okay, but I'm getting there.

If you don’t have a safe Urban Enterprise Zone-- If you don’t
have a safe city, you're not going to have investment, you're not going to
have jobs, you're not going to have businesses there. So I think that
particularly in some of our larger cities, economic success has to be tied to
safe streets and safe sidewalks. And that’s all we’ve done -- is used the
crime cameras, which allowed us to put some of those police officers in the
shopping areas. And I think that’s perfectly legitimate. If you don’t-- If

you have a place that people are afraid to shop in or people don’t want to
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open a store in, you're not going to produce economically. So I think it’s a
legitimate use.

And, by the way, we welcome any spotlight or any searchlight
that’s come to our city and our UEZ because, as I said, we’ve done it the
right way, and we’re proud of it and it was a big success. I can’t speak for
some of the others. I've read about them and I agree: Sometimes they were
used as a patronage mill in some of these. We didn’t do that, and it’s been
very successful. And as I said, don’t listen to me or anybody here. Talk to
the people who have been in business in Jersey City for the last 35 years
and they’ll tell you what a tremendous difference the UEZ meant to their
shopping areas.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: I mean, I hear you loud and
clear--

CHIEF COMEY: Could I add one thing to that?

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: --you don’t want to be
punished for your success. And it’s a very compelling statement. It’s a
statement that resonates with everybody. But we have no choice but to try
and be as successful as we can.

CHIEF COMEY: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: My last comment, Mr.
Chairman, is Assemblyman Cryan has forgotten more than I will ever know,
and I have great respect for him. But when we talk about the population
going from 60,000 to 175,000 during the workday, that’s because there’s
viable businesses here that people come to and make those businesses
productive. And that makes for more valuable ratables, and more valuable

ratables, as we know, produces more property taxes. So it’s not a direct

23



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

corollary as that population doubles and triples during the course of any
workday that there isn’t another type of windfall to the municipality
because of the attractiveness of those corporate ratables.

CHIEF COMEY: Can I add something?

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI:  Yes. Youre no longer
encouraged by everything (indiscernible)

CHIEF COMEY: No, I'm still encouraged, I'm still encouraged;
very much so. (laughter) But there’s always the devil’s advocate. Because
as Mr. Cryan said, when you dealt with the UEZ-- 1 explained to Mr.
Cryan that we get an inordinate number of people that come in here and
work. Well, if we want an inordinate number of people to come in here and
shop and get those ratables that you just referenced, we had to put the
police officers there to make it a safe environment. So to that degree I felt
it necessary to go to the UEZ and say if we're trying to revitalize an area,
it’s drawing on police services. It’s actually causing the perimeter areas of
the city to possibly lose services because we have to concentrate in that
UEZ zone. We can hit a happy medium if you can help offset the cost of
some of the police officers we put there; and we see a direct correlation to
the decrease in crime in the UEZ areas by the State saying, “You know
what? You have a good point. Let’s do it.” And it did work -- so.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI:  Your point’s a valid one.
Mine is that economic development is a crime fighter as well.

CHIEF COMEY: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: And UEZ funds were
supposed--

CHIEF COMEY: I do not disagree.
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ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: --geared toward economic
development.

CHIEF COMEY: Yes, yes. And I think in this particular case,
as the Mayor said, in Jersey City it worked. I'm still encouraged.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: We have one question.

Assemblyman O’Donnell.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: Chief, if we were to develop
some type of feeder program and codify it with legislation, say, with NJCU,
who has a criminal justice degree, to feed these younger people into the
dispatch program -- and maybe we could couple that with the testing --
would that be something that you would be interested in?

CHIEF COMEY: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: To get people who are
obviously interested in this field into the Jersey City Police Department.

MAYOR HEALY: Sure. That would be great.

Can I just tell you why we like retired firemen and retired
police officers? First of all, they’ve been trained. Second of all, they have
something at stake, okay? They have a pension; maybe they’re getting
$50,000 a year. They have benefits if they’ve been on the job for 25 years.
So we not only get some who are already trained and a sworn officer.
We're getting somebody who doesn’t need $40,000 or $50,000 a year and
doesn’t need benefits. So we can hire these trained, sworn officers very
cheaply. And as a result, that’s what we’ve been trying to do. And if people
criticize us you just have to keep doing the right thing, and full speed ahead

and damn the torpedoes. But that’s why we prefer to get sworn officers like
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that. It’s much cheaper for us and we get them more trained, and it’s
someone with a lot to risk and more at stake.

CHIEF COMEY: And what I find -- and I have to be a realist
here, folks -- is that when we get the older, more mature individual, on a
Friday night in the middle of July when it’s 80 degrees, the more mature
individual has a habit of coming to work, where a younger individual is like,
“I'm enjoying the day.” And even if they don’t get paid they call out -- a
day without pay. If they have no more time available to them, they call out
without pay because younger individuals believe that what they’re doing
now is a priority over their occupation. And we see an inordinate value to
that. It costs me money for the people who don’t want to come to work.
And historically, from my perspective, they have been the younger
employees who we have taken the diligence and time to train, and they
have not hit the maturity level or the responsibility factors that we want
yet. Not all of them -- a select few. And I will say that. We do have a good
degree of solid employees.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Chief Rivers.

CHIEF COMEY: He’s got guys, he shouldn’t have much to
say. (laughter)

MAYOR HEALY: He got his 64.

CHIEF RIVERS: Again, I would like to thank the Committee
for allowing me to sit here before you and voice some of the concerns with
the Jersey City Fire Department and other fire departments that we have in
the county.

About three years ago when the city started to have some of the

financial problems, not only did it affect the police department, but it
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diversely affected the fire department as well. We normally have 26 units
with a fire boat, but due to the financial constraints of the city we had to
move all the way down to about 20 units. Also, with some of the legislation
that was coming down it created a lot of fear within the ranks of losing the
time that they have accrued over the years. So there was a mass exodus of
more than 110 members.

Jersey City Fire Department, at its peak, was 610 members
strong. At its lowest point it got down to approximately 492,
approximately a year and a half ago.

With a city this size it’s extremely difficult. With the fire
department we are a service agency. We not only fight fires, we do medical
calls, we do service calls, water leaks. So we have-- Our runs are between
22,000 and 30,000 a year. Once we went down to 20 companies, if we
have a second-alarm fire we would have to call for help outside of Jersey
City. We do mutual aid agreements throughout the county and with New
York City, and if it wasn’t for those other communities we would be in a lot
of trouble. If we get-- At that time, if we had a second-alarm fire, we would
have to cease our medical calls. So that put a little bit more of a strain on
the medical center and their EMS services.

So with the help of the Mayor and City Hall, we work
diligently and, also with the SAFER grant, we were able to hire 64 new
firefighters and that brought our numbers back up to approximately 552.
And also, the city was able to increase our minimum coverage to 22
companies. Was that a help? Yes. Is it enough? No. Any help that we

can get from the State to assist with this would be greatly appreciated.
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Safety is paramount with the fire department. We need to
make sure that we have the companies necessary to protect the citizens of
this city. All it takes-- As you can see, lately we’ve had a rash of fires, not
only in Jersey City but throughout the state, the county. And if it wasn’t
for, like I said, other communities we’d be in a lot of trouble. We need
funding to get back to our maximum strength, which is 26 companies, as
well as putting the marine unit-- We have a vibrant waterfront with a lot of
high rises. During the summer we have a lot of activity now down at
Liberty Park and that activity is growing. And it’s very important that we
have the marine capabilities to protect our citizens when they are enjoying
themselves during the summer months.

At this time due to the-- Last year due to the cuts, any rescues
that needed to be done on our shores were done by New York City. Now,
as a State, I find that to be embarrassing that we have to count on another
state to assist us. The State of New Jersey, you need to do what we -- you --
can to give us what we need to protect the citizens of this city. We have
had grants, as the Police Chief stated -- but grants for equipment. You
know, we have all this high-tech equipment but no manpower to put it to
use. So we warehouse it and use it once or twice a year, when it could be
utilized regularly if we had the manpower to keep it active.

Fortunately for me, I have a Director that handles a lot of the
financial issues with the city so I can concentrate all my efforts on the
operational standpoint of the fire department. At this time, being the
Hudson County Fire Coordinator, I am working with all the chiefs of
Hudson County to develop a more definitive plan for mutual aid. Two

weeks ago we had a six-alarm fire; we lost 10 buildings. We had every
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Jersey City unit at that fire. So we had virtually no coverage. If it wasn’t
for the help of Kearny, North Hudson, Hoboken, and Bayonne, Jersey City
was in trouble. The residents were in danger. I also had to call in three
companies from Newark, as well as a task force of four companies from
Essex County.

Now, with that being said, all the chiefs of Hudson County
decided that we needed a more comprehensive plan to assist in situations
where if one municipality doesn’t have enough resources, that we can pull
together and have a plan to cover the county, as well as send other counties
help when they are in need.

So basically, my biggest issue is manpower. Equipment is not a
problem, like I said. We have grants -- Federal grants -- that have assisted
us with that. But what’s paramount is to make sure that our ranks stay
strong. As I said, we lost 110 people; we lost more than 3,000 years of
experience. Now, maybe with the police department it may be a little
easier. I know they have a lot of difficulties. But with firefighting it takes
at least five to six years to have a clear understanding of what to do when
youre in dangerous situations. A lot of times when you're in the fire
building you rely on your senses. And it takes time to develop those senses.

So again, I'd like to thank you. If you have any questions
concerning the fire service, I would be more than happy to answer them.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Chief, let me take you back to
the fire that was on Claremont Avenue. It was brought to our attention
that on that particular day Engine 17 and Ladder 8 were closed. And I
wanted to ask if that was the case, were they closed because of the lack of

manpower?
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CHIEF RIVERS: That was closed for the lack of manpower;
that’s correct.

But let me speak on Engine Company 17. Engine Company 17
is located on Kearny Avenue. Even though that was the first engine
company that was due to that particular location, there were already three
units in that house at that time. So there was no delay in any companies
getting to that fire. The delay in that fire was due to the time of day and
the fact that it was not recognized in any-- It wasn’t recognized early
enough and it got significant headway. And once it got up into the
cocklofts it took over those 10 buildings.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: I understand. And I do
understand that property, because I used to live in one of those homes, and
I do know that in the attic area there is no wall separating. So I can
understand how the fire went the way it did.

But my question is in reference to mutual aid. Mutual aid was

pretty much developed for major fires; that’s when everyone would come in.

Am I correct?

CHIEF RIVERS: That’s correct. What we normally do is we
try to maintain a minimum coverage throughout the city. Jersey City is
broken down into four battalions. And we even discussed this at a meeting
that we had yesterday -- that with every battalion we need at least two
engine companies and a ladder company for coverage. Now, if we get below
that, we will then call to neighboring communities to have an engine
company or a ladder company come in and bring us back to that minimum

amount of coverage.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: So it’s safe to say that mutual
aid is being used for regular fires now because of the lack of--

CHIEF RIVERS: Oh, it’s been-- Well, actually, mutual aid is
being used even more so now because of the cuts in Jersey City as well as
the surrounding communities -- instead of having companies come in for
coverage, you're having companies come in and actually help you fight your
fires.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: I understand that.

Now, my last question is, because of the mutual aid that we’re
using, how vulnerable does that leave other cities?

CHIEF RIVERS: It not only leaves other cities vulnerable, it
leaves Jersey City more vulnerable because, like I said, we’re a service
agency. So not only do we fight fires but we also do medical calls. We also
do dangerous conditions. And we’re a pretty busy fire department, and
when you get down to only 10 companies in a city this size it’s extremely
dangerous.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you.

CHIEF COMEY: I just would like to say something; I feel the
need.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: This is the fire department,
though, Chief. (laughter)

CHIEF COMEY: The cerebral side of the house is going home
(indiscernible).

To put it in a nutshell, I once told the Mayor if we couldn’t
stop the rhetoric out of Trenton he would have to face a devastating

situation. I presently have -- I'm going to round the numbers out -- there is
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one chief, I have four deputy chiefs; I have approximately 18 captains, 36
lieutenants, and 106 sergeants. If rhetoric was to come out of Trenton,
chief, deputy chiefs -- everybody who is eligible to retire tomorrow morning
-- they could walk in and say, “We’re going home.” Ninety percent of my
captains can go home tomorrow; 60 percent of my lieutenants can go home
tomorrow; 40 percent of my sergeants can go home tomorrow. The next
question is: How do you get a sergeant to a captain, and where is the
learning curve involving that jump?

So that’s how devastating it would be to a police department if
we didn’t resolve this. Jersey City would hit a downward spiral over the
next several years that no one -- no one -- would be able to stop. Because
we’re pruning our ranks, and I think if you did the math, if you added up
those small towns, you’re probably impressed with the number of captains
we have. It's not that high, is it? So take into consideration that if
legislation was to come out, 90 percent of them probably would go home.
The entire upper rank structure of this state’s second-largest city could walk
out that door tomorrow and not look back. They’ve paid their service.

CHIEF RIVERS: Let me add to that. At this point right now,
the Jersey City Fire Department has approximately 110 members who are
eligible for retirement. It’s my fear-- I believe in July we have about 20
retirements coming in. It’s my fear that at the end of this year, with the
legislation on them paying for their health insurance, that I may get a mass
exodus of almost 100 members leaving this department. That would
decimate us.

Now, right now about two-thirds of this department has less

than 10 years on the job. Now, to lose that many people with that amount
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of experience would make it very dangerous for the citizens of this city
because you don’t have the seasoned veterans to come and do the job as
they need to. I mean, really, as I stated before, it takes five years to really
develop the senses necessary to do this job. And to decimate the leadership-
- Because most -- I think more than 50 percent of the eligible members are
high-ranking officers. These are the leaders. These are the people who
make the calls when they get on the scene. And that only comes through
experience -- that knowledge comes through experience. And to allow that
to happen would destroy this department.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI:  Chief, I would challenge
you to say that--

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: I'm sorry?

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Assemblyman O’Donnell.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Chief, just two questions: How many companies is a standard
response for a second alarm? How many companies do you dispatch for a
second alarm?

CHIEF RIVERS: On the first alarm we get four engines, two
ladders, a rescue unit, and a battalion chief. If it’s a working fire you get an
additional engine company and you get a RIP team -- a rapid intervention
team. Once the second alarm is struck, you get an additional three engines
and another ladder company and another battalion chief.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: So at a second alarm you

have 13 working companies, two battalion chiefs in a supervisory role. So
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at 13 companies, that leaves you 9 companies left in the city to maintain
the city?

CHIEF RIVERS: That’s correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: So it’s safe to say that any
other incident in the city would require mutual aid automatically.

CHIEF RIVERS: That’s correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: Have you found it difficult to
get mutual aid over the past 6, 8, 12 months? I know not from Bayonne;
we send every time. (laughter) But certainly from the others -- North
Hudson or Kearny, or Harrison?

CHIEF RIVERS: Well, it all depends on what they have going
on in their city. We had an incident where we had a five-alarm fire about a
month ago. During our five-alarm fire we had Hoboken companies in our
city covering our units -- our firehouses. Hoboken, in turn, had a four-
alarm fire. They actually had to pull their companies out of Jersey City to
fight their fire. Now, I had to make a call to New York to have companies
come from Newark -- I'm sorry -- from Newark to come into Jersey City.
Those companies had to be rerouted to go straight to Hoboken to assist
them. So it’s very difficult. Once we get to a multiple-alarm fire -- whether
it’s in Jersey City, whether it’s in North Hudson, Bayonne -- it’s very
important that we cover each other, because with all the cuts in all these
communities we just can’t handle the volume like we used to.

When I came on the Jersey City Fire Department 30 years ago,
we could have two, two-alarm fires going at the same time and not have

help from out of town. That’s not the case anymore.
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ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: If I can ask: How many -- an
estimate, and you may have the number on the top of your head -- but how
many second-alarm fires did you have? How many incidents last year?

CHIEF RIVERS: I believe somewhere around 150 or more.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: And just to give you some
perspective: Bayonne had 11. So you’re considerably busier.

So at the very least, on 150 different occasions, you were calling
for mutual aid, and that’s aside from hazardous materials incidents and
things like that.

CHIEF RIVERS: That’s correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: So we could probably safely
say, 175 to 200 times you're calling for mutual aid from the surrounding
communities?

CHIEF RIVERS: That’s correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: Okay. And in your career,
can you say that you’ve seen that instance has risen since you first came
on--

CHIEF RIVERS: It has risen dramatically since when I first
came on the fire department, yes.

MAYOR HEALY: Mr. Chairman, Assembly people, I have
another place I have to be. Thanks for coming to our city, and thanks for
listening to us. Any help you could render, we’d certainly appreciate it.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, Mr. Mayor.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: Thanks, Mayor.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Thanks, Mayor.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: That’s all, Mr. Chairman.

35



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Are you done, Assemblyman
O’Donnell?

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: That’s all.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Chief, the data you shared
about the potential retirements -- those are pretty staggering percentages.
The New Jersey State Pension Plan, based on historical data, works under
the assumption that the average municipal police departments-- One officer
retires after 27-and-a-half years of service. That’s based on historical data
over decades. And so what I would suggest is whether or not there’s
rhetoric or legislation out of Trenton, you're faced with retirements. It has
a lot to do with the baby boomer generation approaching, right now, the
50-to0-65 age bracket. And while 50 is young, it’s not necessarily for police
officers who can retire at full benefits after 25 years or so. So again,
whether it’s rhetoric or legislation coming out of Trenton-- I know in
Somerset County we’'ve done a very, very detailed analysis of our employee
census. One out of every four officers is going to retire in the next four
years in Somerset County in our 19 departments. And if they’re retiring,
that strongly suggests that they’re at the upper echelons of the
organizations: They’re lieutenants, they’re sergeants--

CHIEF COMEY: Not necessarily,

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: --they’re captains. The vast
majority are.

CHIEF COMEY: Not necessarily. In your research, yes. But
in my organization, just the reverse would be true. The majority of officers

that could retire today are the rank and file.
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ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLIL:  Well, you just gave me
percentages--

CHIEF COMEY: No, no. I gave you percentages of
supervisory; I did not give you percentages of the lower echelons.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: But you were making a case
that if 40 percent of sergeants and 50 percent of lieutenants and X percent
of captains, you’ve got a significant brain drain on your hands whether or
not there’s rhetoric or legislation out of Trenton. And what I would say to
any organization that’s faced with a challenge is: You have to solve it.

CHIEF COMEY: Oh, I agree with you. And it’s my
responsibility to solve it. But the problem is you're in a position where you
can compound it and almost make it happen immediately. If these guys
believe that their service is-- Look, I guess I can summarize it for you in a
nutshell: You believe in what you do, Assemblyman.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: As do you.

CHIEF COMEY: The men and women who I work with every
day, they believe in what they do. Together we believe in what we can do.
But don’t cause any knee-jerk reactions in law enforcement, because it’s the
rumor [ can’t stop.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Well, Chief--

CHIEF COMEY: It’s the rumor I cannot stop because it’s the
economy we live in today.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Okay,

CHIEF COMEY: And I'm not trying to be adversarial, but let
me ask you a question: In 1984 this city was trying to save money

financially. So they came in to us, the rank and file, and with all due
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respect some of you might have been in high school in 1984, others were
(indiscernible) (laughter). But in 1984 they said, “We want to encourage
you not to take summer weeks’ vacation. So if you pass on a summer week
vacation, we’re going to give you a compensatory day that you can sell it the
day you retire.” Well, in 1984 I rode in this precinct that you're in five
nights in excess of 80 degrees, handling approximately 42 calls a night; one
time this close to being attacked by a pit bull that attacked the cop that
stood next to me. Well, now the bill is due. I did it for the good of the
city, I did it for my career, perhaps back then I might have done it with a
little bit of insight of, maybe, some day I'd grab a benefit of that. But why
are we being vilified, that if I paid my dues in 1984, with three cars to
50,000 people, and did my due diligence, now all of a sudden when my end
of the day is here, we’re being vilified. (applause) That’s (indiscernible)
seem to think. And that’s what this (indiscernible). It’s rhetoric--

Guys, I'm not looking for applause. It’s rhetoric that has to
stop. They want to resolve it, you want to resolve it -- talk to each other.
Get the level-headed people in the room, because look: It can be resolved.
Because the guys who have 27 years on the job, 28 years on the job, they
want to continue to serve these communities, but they just want to make
sure that when they go out the door they’re not going to be looked at any
differently when they go out the door as the day they showed up to help a
constituent or a resident in their municipality. That’s all I'm trying to say.
I’'m not trying to be adversarial, ladies and gentlemen. Please don’t take it
that way. I could go home today, but I believe in the men and women and
what they do in law enforcement and public safety. Resolve it. That’s what

I would ask you to do.
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ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: But Chief, no one deserves
being vilified.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR:  Through the Chair, please.
Assemblyman. Through the Chair.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: No one deserves to be
vilified, but I would suggest this to anyone, personally. No one should ever
make a retirement decision based on what they believe. Anyone should
only make a retirement decision based on what they know. That is one of
the three or four most critical and important decisions anybody makes in
their lifetime. Don’t do it based on what you believe; do it based on what
you know.

CHIEF COMEY: Assemblyman, the problem is there comes a
time in our occupations where you've seen enough death, you've seen
enough destruction, and you walk into that precinct or that firehouse that
day to say, “It’s beginning to eat at the core of who I am. It’s time I go
home.”

CHIEF RIVERS: But also you talked about--

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Which is why we offer a
25-year retirement.

CHIEF COMEY: Yes; no disagreement. No disagreement here
at all.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Okay.

CHIEF RIVERS: Mr. Assemblyman, you said it’s all based on
what you believe. Well, a lot of the legislation is being fast-tracked. And
some of the things that have been coming before us put the guys in the

position that if they don’t act now that they can get caught up in that
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legislation. And that’s what makes the fear and that’s what causes them to
leave.

ASSEMBLYMAN  CIATTARELLI: Chief, I mean,
unfortunately--

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Assemblyman, I'm going to ask
that we allow other Assemblymen who may have some other questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Oh, I'm sorry.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: If not, I'm going to ask-- I'm
going to say thank you, because we have a lot of others who want to testify.
If you are finished with what you have to say, I want to, again, say thank
you for coming and for giving us that information. And we’re going to
move on at this time,

CHIEF COMEY: Thank you very much, ladies and gentlemen
and Assembly. With all due respect, if you ever want to come up and have
a cup of coffee, I love debate. Debate’s good. It’s what’s going on.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: I was hoping it would
something stronger than coffee, but I'll take you up on that. (laughter)

CHIEF COMEY: Debate is good for what’s going on right now,
you know what I mean? And my door is always open. I will have my Chief
of Staff give you my card. Please. you can come up at any time.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: You have a Chief of Staff?
I don’t. (laughter)

CHIEF COMEY: I have an 804-man department, do you?
(laughter) And 300 civilians.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, Chief.

Go ahead.
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MS. WHITBECK (Committee Aide): To move on with the
meeting, the Chairman would like to call up some individuals: Ms. Jillian
Barrick, the City Administrator of the City of East Orange. He would also
like Mr. Nick DeMauro from New Jersey D.A.R.E. to approach the table,
and Robert Apel from Rutgers University School of Criminal Justice. And
while they’re coming up to the table we’re just going to be doing an
administrative roll call.

Assemblyman Ciattarelli.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: I'm here. (laughter)

MS. WHITBECK: For the record.

Assemblyman Peterson.

ASSEMBLYMAN PETERSON: Here.

MS. WHITBECK: Assemblyman DiMaio.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiMAIO: Here.

MS. WHITBECK: Assemblyman Cryan.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Here.

MS. WHITBECK: Assemblyman Connors.

ASSEMBLYMAN CONNORS: Here.

MS. WHITBECK: Assemblyman O’Donnell.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'DONNELL: Here.

MS. WHITBECK: And Assemblyman Mainor.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Present.

MS. WHITBECK: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: For the record, could you state
your names, please?

MS. WHITBECK: Why don’t we start from this side?
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NICHOLAS R. DeMAURO: Nick DeMauro.

MS. WHITBECK: Okay, you’re Nick; you're Jillian. I'm sorry,
sir?

CHRISTOPHER T. WEISS: Deputy Chief Weiss.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Are you--

JILLIAN C. BARRICK: He’s with me, my Deputy Chief.

MS. WHITBECK: He’s with you.

MS. BARRICK: Yes.

MS. WHITBECK: Okay, thank you.

ROBERT APEL, Ph.D.: Robert Apel.

MR. DeMAURO: Good afternoon. Thank you for allowing me
the time to speak to everyone today.

My name is Nick DeMauro. I'm the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer for D.A.R.E. New Jersey, which is the largest drug and
violence prevention program taught in New Jersey school systems, primarily
by law enforcement officers. And we appreciate the support we’ve had in
the Legislature over the past 23 years, and the support of many agencies in
this room.

I'm here to, basically, just explain that the ramifications of this
budget situation in New Jersey has reached beyond just patrolling the
streets of this great state. The D.A.R.E. program and law enforcement is
the number one community policing initiative in New Jersey at this point.
And, unfortunately, over the past 18 months to two years we have been
administratively attempting to deal with a lot of the budget restrictions and

still try to offer this great service to the children of this state. We can’t
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forget that we’re here to serve everyone, not just the people in distress or
the people who have an issue with crime or public safety.

The children in this state need to have the resources and the
services available to them through community policing and so on. While
administratively we can all sit here and say we have to be creative, we have
to be flexible -- I agree. I was a sworn police officer; I started my career 31
years ago. And I understand the issues that are needed to correct the
problem.

But we can’t forget that the ramifications of some of the budget
issues go beyond just patrolling the street. It goes into the schools, it goes
into crime prevention, it goes into keeping the schools safe. Let’s not forget
Columbine and what happened out there. We can’t have that in New
Jersey. There are many factors that we really need to address and look at as
a whole.

I have to say that we’ve been working very closely with the PBA
and the Police Chiefs Association to ensure that we can maintain as many
services as we can, and we’ve been doing a good job. But it’s starting to get
very drained and we need your help.

Our position at D.A.R.E. New Jersey is, through our resources,
to provide the best possible product to the communities and to the police
officers who teach in the classrooms. And we’re very proud that D.A.R.E.
New Jersey has really worked hard to make sure that all of our curriculum is
accredited and certified federally and that we’re delivering a good product.

But we cannot get away from the thing that has made D.A.R.E.
so strong in this state, and that’s the strength of utilizing police officers in

the classrooms. Now, I understand that public safety is important, but we
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need to look at -- public safety goes beyond just answering a call; it’s about
being proactive, not just being reactive. It’s really a universal issue. We all
have to be flexible.

And I just wanted to share with you in your understanding that
there are many different areas of concerns beyond just how many cops there
are in a department. And I just wanted to stress that, and thank you very
much for allowing me to speak today.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.

Let me just say to you that I was a D.A.R.E. officer. I do know
the importance, and it’s a great program.

But I do want to ask everyone, also, to please-- We are going to
have to limit our testimony to at least -- maybe two minutes, because we
have so many others who would like to testify. I thank you.

Do we have any questions at this point? (no response)

MS. BARRICK: Good afternoon. My name is Jillian Barrick;
I'm the City Administrator for the City of East Orange, New Jersey, in
Essex County.

I did submit to you a written summary of my comments and, in
light of the time, I just wanted to highlight a couple of things.

East Orange is geographically small, but we’re heavily populated
and we have public safety needs much like an urban area would even
though it’s certainly geographically smaller. We have faced multi-faceted
budget constraints over the past few years that are primarily driven by
revenue loss, though there have also been pressures from increases in
benefit costs, as well as debt service and other on-going expenses within

which we don’t have any control.
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As a result, we’ve had to substantially impact the operations of
both our police and fire departments. And I just want to highlight a couple
of things. In the police department in particular -- there are sort of a couple
of major impacts to our operations. We really had to redeploy almost every
staff member to patrol, to ensure that we had adequate presence on the
street. So anyone who was doing a special detail -- violent crimes task force
-- was put on the street in a uniform. Any of our investigators who would
ordinarily be in plain clothes were required to wear a uniform and be on the
street and participate in patrol.

In particular, they worked on reducing the number of
investigations and the amount of time it took to do investigations to ensure
that we had adequate patrol coverage, but that still created a backlog of
investigations for us for a short period of time.

Nonetheless, we also refocused towards violent crime, which
meant that we had fewer officers focused on nonviolent crime. And while
we saw double-digit decreases in our crime overall and we achieved 14
percent decreases in violent crime, for the first time we saw increases in
burglaries -- first time, really, in the last 10 years, which is unusual for us
and the successes we have achieved so far. So I think that goes to show that
while we’ve done the best we can and we tried to redeploy and rebalance as
much as possible, I think our department has really reached the max of the
capabilities that we have without some sustained financial assistance.

Beyond police manpower, you mentioned the D.A.R.E. officers.
We've also had to decrease the number of school resource officers in our

schools, as well as cut the crossing guards that we fund by a third.
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So we have really seen some substantial deterioration and, at
the same time, morale has been impacted. And despite the fact that we’ve
asked our police officers to do more with less, with fewer people they have
still achieved double-digit reductions in crime-- But I have no way of
rewarding them. I sit at the bargaining table and I sit with police officers all
the time, and really our entire staff, and say, “You're doing a great job; keep
up the good work,” but I have no way of rewarding them. And at some
point that’s going to-- They're going to look at me distrustfully and think
that there is just no way that we’re going to support them.

So really, on the fire department side, we’ve seen decreases in
staff. Our sworn personnel are at about 85 percent capacity. We’ve had to
take one of our eight companies out of service permanently and so we’ve
responded to the same amount of calls with fewer people. I know mutual
aid has been discussed this morning, and we’ve similarly been impacted by
increases in mutual aid calls. In the last five years our calls for mutual aid
have increased by 63 percent despite the fact that we’ve had fewer staff and
fewer apparatus. And we’ve certainly seen that particularly in our
neighboring municipalities that have faced financial constraints even greater
than ours. But we feel that we haven’t really equally benefited from mutual
aid in its current configuration. In fact, I've been told in one particular
instance we responded to a mutual aid call in our neighboring municipality,
and the neighboring municipality provided a truck and a driver and waited
until our companies arrived to actually fight the fire. And I think that that
really goes to show that there needs to be some substantial support for all
departments and not just for those who are in dire straights; but it impacts

everybody.
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So really, I guess, in closing, we need some support. And I
think I can echo a lot of the comments that have been made already about
the need, really, for manpower support. We've got grants, we continue to
seek grants, but most of those grants are now for personnel. And any
savings we’ve gotten from attrition, really, has gone towards benefit costs
and increasing expenses in other places in the budget. And we haven’t
really been able to benefit from that at all.

So I appreciate your attention and certainly offer any assistance
that I can provide that may be helpful to you in finding a solution.

MR. WEISS: My name is Christopher Weiss. I'm a Deputy
Chief with East Orange Fire Department.

I would like to say that I really appreciate, politically and in a
lot of ways as a taxpayer, the fight to try and be more efficient with tax
dollars and things like that. However, what I want to note is that what gets
forgotten is, over the course of time, that’s happened before. I went on the
fire department 25 years ago when we had 204 uniformed personnel. There
was a period where we looked to be more efficient; we made a lot of cuts. I
believe we might have been a little top-heavy at the time. We cut a lot of
our senior staff at that time, and we went down to a table of organization of
approximately 170. And that’s where we were in 2008. Right now, we’re
down to 143. So in the course of my career we’ve lost 30 percent of our
personnel. That’s a major cut. We haven’t really gotten any slower, less
busier, less work. We’ve made efficiency cuts in the past, but now we're
getting to a point were I fear that it’s going to be the straw that breaks the

camel’s back -- that we just can’t take any more.

47



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

Highlighting what my boss, the City Administrator, was talking
about -- mutual aid -- I don’t blame any individual town or anything like
that for mutual aid. We’'re all so stripped down, at least where I am in my
surrounding communities, we’re all relying on each other. We used to rely
on mutual aid to come backfill our city and cover when we were putting out
a fire. Then we relied on mutual aid to come and help us put out the fire.
Now we’re getting to a point where I've had mutual aid come into a scene
to assist with search because we haven’t accounted for all the possible
people who are in the building. That never used to happen. Mutual aid,
coming from another town-- If you're in a fire and we're searching for you,
you can only hold your breath for so long. If mutual aid is coming to assist
with that, it’s a long ride from another town. And we’ve been fortunate
that we have not had a catastrophe yet, but it’s my job to worry about it.

And also, the last thing I'd like to add, because I've heard it so
many times, I've read it so many times in the paper, regarding our pensions
and our benefits and things like that. Everyone doesn’t have paid
hospitalization when they retire. We never had in East Orange. So I know
some police officers do, some firefighters do, however we don’t. So when
my 25-- I have my 25 years, I can’t afford to retire. I still have children to
take care of and I need my benefits. So even though I have a good pension
system, there’s a cost factor there for me. So I'm going to do a minimum of
30 years because we’re not getting-- We don’t get a lot of perks. East
Orange has been very efficient with us over the years -- not that I've always
been happy about that--

MS. BARRICK: Sorry.
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MR. WEISS: --however, it’s the truth. So oftentimes I hear,
“Oh, all police officers and firefighters are getting all of these great perks
and benefits.” We don’t all get them. In East Orange most of the ones that
I hear about, I only dream about. We don’t have them.

So that’s all I have to say.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.

Sir.

DR. APEL: Thank you for the opportunity to address you this
morning. My name is Robert Apel, and I think I'm the only egghead on the
panel this morning.

By way of background: I hold a Ph.D. in criminology and
criminal justice from the University of Maryland, and I'm currently on the
faculty of the School of Criminal Justice at the Rutgers University, Newark
campus.

My substantive expertise largely concerns the impact of
employment in the labor market on criminal behavior. I've also recently co-
written a review of the research on criminal deterrence, in particular the
degree to which police have a causal impact on crime rates. And I'd be
happy to briefly share with the Committee some of the findings from
academic research that might be of use in discussions about the impact of
budget cuts on public safety.

So I'll begin by providing an overview of what we know about
the impact of police manpower on crime rates. Research in the last 15 years
has shown quite consistently that law enforcement has a substantial
deterrent impact on crime. Specifically, putting more sworn personnel on

the street, either by hiring new officers or by allocating existing officers in
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ways that put them on the street in larger numbers or for longer periods of
time, has a substantial deterrent effect on crime rates.

It’s very important to point out that police manpower studies
speak only to the number in allocation of police officers, and not to what
police officers actually do on the street.

That being said, most recent estimates reveal that a 10 percent
annual increase in police manpower yields a reduction in total crime in the
neighborhood of 3 percent, although reductions in violent crimes tend to
range from 5 to 10 percent. The figures cited here are from studies that
attempt to quantitative what’s known as the marginal deterrent effect of police
-- that refers to the impact of additions or subtractions from law
enforcement personnel which are, by and large, incremental in nature.
What might be of greater interest to this Committee are studies of the
impacts of reductions in police manpower that are more substantial.
Unfortunately, there is much less empirical evidence that addresses this; I
can identify only a single direct study of the impact of law enforcement cuts
on public safety. For example, in 2003 the Oregon State Police underwent
a massive layoff in which 35 percent of troopers were cut. This led to a
substantial decrease in citations and, as a consequence, an increase in the
number of highway injuries and fatalities on the order of 10 to 20 percent.

Other indirect evidence for the impact of changes -- substantial
changes in law enforcement staffing stems from studies of municipal police
strikes. Regrettably, or perhaps fortunately, very little of this evidence
comes from the United States, and what evidence there is is historical

rather than contemporary. But the international research suggests that
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large reductions in police presence due to strikes are often followed by
short-term increases in assaultive violence, looting, and disorderly behavior.

So what necessarily complicates any assessment of the impact
of law enforcement cuts on public safety is the current economic climate.
The unemployment rate is as high as it’s been since the early 1980s, and
recovery from the recession has been slower than expected based on rate of
growth following previous recessions. As we will see, high unemployment
and periods of recessions are mildly criminogenic for at least certain kinds
of crime.

Criminological research shows that the state of the economy is
consistently correlated, albeit weakly, with so-called acquisitive crimes, which
include robbery, burglary, larceny, and vehicle theft. For example, rates of
acquisitive crime increase by about 1 to 3 percent when the unemployment
rate increases by 10 percent -- say, from 8 percent unemployment to 8.8
percent unemployment.

Furthermore, based on national studies of the business cycle,
we know that robbery and burglary are strongly countercyclical, meaning
that they have a reliable tendency to increase during periods of economic
contractions -- recessions -- and to decrease during periods of economic
growth. Interestingly, economic conditions are not consistently correlated
with certain violent crimes like murder, rape, and aggravated assault. So
even in the absence of law enforcement cuts then, we would expect either a
modest growth or otherwise slowed reductions in some crimes strictly due
to short-term fluctuation in economic health. There’s some potential to be
exacerbated by large-scale cuts in police manpower. So that means, in this

recession and recovery, it requires great attention to be devoted to law
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enforcement staffing and initiatives that can mitigate the impact of the
economy.

So I'm grateful for the opportunity to address the Committee,
and I'm happy to volunteer my assistance and the assistance of the School
of Criminal Justice in this and future deliberations where the state of
research evidence relating to criminal justice is required.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.

Any questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Thanks, Doctor.

I just want to be clear: To summarize, more cops equals less
crime -- basically?

DR. APEL: That’s correct. (laughter)

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Okay. I appreciate that.

DR. APEL: That’s the non-technical terminology.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: That’s the-- That’s the legislative
summary of that. Sorry about that. (laughter) Because the AP did an
analysis of crime in New Jersey’s cities that have laid off police, and in the
first paragraph-- Is this a reasonable comment? The first paragraph, “Police
in New Jersey’s cities where departments have made layoffs -- and there are
fewer arrests for minor offenses, a trend that experts believe could lead to a
rise in more serious crimes.” Is that something that your studies or your
data along the way has shown to be a correlation?

DR. APEL: That is correct, that is correct. There are generally
two ways that police have a deterrent impact on crime: one is through the

use of arrest power, largely for minor offenses, misdemeanors, citations; but
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also through presence -- police presence -- especially in what would be called
crime hot spots.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Right. So those-- And I think
East Orange is one of those areas that highlights and uses CompStat to
highlight crime spots and so on. That is an effective tool. Now, without
speaking for Jerry, since he left, I mean, the reality is, one of the benefits of
UEZs is actually a cop on the beat. Is it fair to say, from your analysis, that
the visible police presence actually matters and is reassuring, not only to
both patrons of business areas, but also to the business owners themselves?

DR. APEL:  That’s correct -- targeted police presence.
Absolutely.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: So when I read a headline that
says, “Trenton’s 2012 crime rate surges in the wake of police layoffs,” I can
actually believe that headline.

DR. APEL: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Okay.

And finally, what I wanted to ask you is, as we look at this and
as you folks do your studies, you hear the real life issues, the sacrifices in
D.A.R.E. -- which all of us agree has a long-term effect not only whether it’s
5% grade D.AR.E. like it is in the township of Union, (indiscernible) a
company and community that’s changing to actually embrace police early.
And, therefore, when you lose-- And I heard the Mayor of Jersey City and
the Police Chief talk about the cuts in community relations. At least one of
the things they can fall back on -- you used to be able to fall back on with

that was the relationship built through the use of the D.A.R.E. program,
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with young people -- that there’s not a fear factor moving into that. But
yet, we lose that as well.

What other cuts-- Where do you see, as someone who studies
this -- areas -- is it simply we need to put more funding in order to create
that correlation? Are there any other areas we could look at that would
have an opportunity-- Or is it pretty much do your job and do it right, and
that would be a good way to handle it?

DR. APEL: There is an awful lot of evidence-- The evidence
seems to suggest that a balanced portfolio of a variety of strategies -- school-
based strategies, law enforcement strategies -- seem to be the optimum
portfolio in terms of impacting crime. Now, my expertise doesn’t deal so
much with school-based and juvenile-oriented strategies as more police
presence and police staffing. So it’s difficult to speak to specific strategies
other than that from my expertise.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Thank you all for your leadership;
thank you.

DR. APEL: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Anyone else? (no response)

Thank you.

MS. WHITBECK: The next panel we will be calling up:
William Lavin, Elizabeth Fire Department and New Jersey FMBA; Paul
Palumbi, Trenton Fire Department, New Jersey FMBA; Troy Powell,
Montclair Fire Department; and Eddie Donnelly, New Jersey FMBA.
WILLIAM J. LAVIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It’s Bill Lavin,

President of New Jersey State Firefighters Mutual Benevolent Association.
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I'm also a Captain in the Elizabeth Fire Department. I also have Brian
McGorty here, who is going to join us as well.

I want to thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thank this Committee.
As you know, I had requested a number of the various committees in both
the Senate and the Assembly to hold this, what I feel is, a very important
open public hearing. I also want to thank the Speaker for her support in
facilitating this. I think it’s already been a success. I would hope, though,
that the two minutes or the four minutes that we get to speak here today is
not the end, but rather the beginning of the dialogue.

And with that said, I was very pleased to see a climate where a
mayor, and the chief and the director of a police and fire department can sit
in a panel like this and come to agreement. And I would hope that that
would take place everywhere. Unfortunately, when we had asked a number
of chief officers and union leaders across the state to attend this and spealk,
there isn’t necessarily that type of climate that exists -- for fear of reprisals.
We talked about the -- or discussed earlier, in terms of grants, the Federal
grants, and people that are concerned that, should they say something that
would be considered inappropriate here that their grants would be cut. And
so I just hope that the climate becomes more of a dialogue. I would like the
chief officers and the fire coordinators who are going to testify here today to
understand that this is not a labor-management squabble; it is really the
identifying of what I believe to be a crisis. And that’s why it is so important
that you held this here today.

It’s clear to me, when you see the percentage of mutual aid
instances go up just dramatically that the-- I was so happy to hear the

Mayor and the Chief agree that we are, in fact, equipment-rich and
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manpower-poor. We have not devised this technology yet, that replaces
firefighters, to get off of a piece of apparatus and to drag a hose line or put
up a ladder and to rescue somebody. There is no electronic robot that does
that for us. We need boots on the ground.

There was a time when the advent of mutual aid and the
creation of it was exactly to have the unique specific event of a major
incident -- a fire that would cause the need for other departments to come
in. And as you have mentioned earlier, Mr. Chairman, we went from
having the once-in-a-year fire where we needed mutual aid, to incidents
where we have a house fire, an attic fire requiring automatic -- what they
refer to as automatic -- mutual aid. There’s going to be discussions about
regionalization; we are not far from a department that has regionalized.
And it is one of our biggest problems -- one of our areas where it could have
been the great success. However the cuts were so drastic afterwards that
they were unable to deliver. So regionalization, a 15-letter word, isn’t
necessarily the panacea that we would think. It has to be done with labor
and management support.

I just want to touch on -- and the individuals who are going to
spealk after me are going to talk about specific incidents -- but when the
City of Elizabeth’s fire department responds to Hoboken for a fire, which is
1 1-and-one-half miles away, and it impacts somewhere between 12 and 13
fire departments along the way. When Jersey City responds into Elizabeth,
when Montclair responds into Union City, there is a problem. We have a
serious problem. It takes two to three times the amount of fire apparatus to
bring the amount of firefighters to a scene that it used to take. And I just

want to have us create a dialogue with our fire coordinators, with our fire
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chiefs, in an open forum to discuss what is happening. You heard
testimony earlier from the East Orange Deputy Chief; it takes a significant
amount of time to bring a company from a neighboring community. And
then imagine coming from a not-so-neighboring community. Obviously,
when we have bedroom fires that become entire house fires, house fires that
become block fires we have a remarkable problem to take a look at.

It is staffing; it’s also-- There was some discussion about
civilian positions, Assemblyman. We have taken our fire prevention
bureaus and civilianized them. We’ve civilianized our dispatch units, our
arson units, in some situations. There is a cost to that. When you have
dispatchers who are-- There is a transiency from there; they don’t last very
long. They are stepping stones to other jobs, so if they're there for a year
they’re not committed; it’s not a career position. So you don’t get
somebody who is a firefighter on the scene who can anticipate things or
who cares about getting the proper information or the right street. So we
have delay in alarms. We have fire inspections that are not being done, so
we create situations where we have tenement fires in areas that may have
been inspected in an earlier climate where we had the manpower. So each
of these cuts has a cumulative effect. Yes, we save the initial money on a
reduction in salary, but there is a cost because now a fire that was a small
incident now becomes a block fire.

And we have the news. The last thing I'll say is that our
relationship with the press and with the community is inverse to how good
of a job we do. The mayor and the chief of Jersey City mentioned that
we’re a victim of our own success. And I'd just like to end with: That is

actually true. When we’re burning down a block of homes, or when we
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have a warehouse in Elizabeth that burns for a week or two weeks, we have
media, we have attention, and firefighters are putting themselves out. That
is a failure of government; it’s a failure of the fire department. Our job is to
get there in a reasonable amount of time with a group of firefighters who
attack the fire and put it out at 2 a.m., before anybody knows what
happened, and rescue the people. When we have a multiple-alarm fire, that
is a failure. Those failures are becoming more and more everyday
occurrences because we don’t have the reach and the immediacy of
manpower and boots on the ground.

So I could speak for a long time; I hope this isn’t the last
opportunity that we get. I hope we get an opportunity to speak to the
Senate as well. I can’t thank you enough, Mr. Chairman, for your previous
meetings on this subject. I believe we are at a crisis. I believe there are
solutions to it, as the Chief said. And the union stands ready with
management to facilitate those solutions.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, Mr. Lavin.

We'll start to my right, your left.

PAUL PALUMBI: My name is Paul Palumbi; I'm a Trenton
firefighter for 18 years,

Back on October 15 of last year, we're doing our regular thing,
doing our job -- working -- went to several calls that day. Approximately
7:00 that night -- 7:30 that night we went to a reported house fire. Went to
go do our job. Unfortunately that day will live with me forever. We pulled
up to a house fire, it has smoke showing; reported fire on the second and
third floors. We went in to do our job. As we were doing our job, we’re

working harder with less, because that’s apparently the new norm. After
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getting me another bottle to go back inside and fight the fire -- continue
fighting the fire, because the manpower is not there like it used to be -- we
were finishing our second bottle of air when my captain said, “We need to
take a break.” About -- I can’t tell you time-wise -- maybe 30 seconds later I
told my partner who I was working with, “Ryan, we have to get out. We
have to get some more air and take a break.” About 2 seconds later the roof
came down and collapsed on us.

Unfortunately, I took the brunt of the injury -- I was knocked
unconscious laying on the third-floor steps, not having a clue what was
going on. Not knowing where my partner was, who got pushed forward
into the fire, and my captain, who got pushed down the steps.

From what I'm told, about a minute later, after being carried
out of that fire to the second floor, I woke up and I'm like, “Hey, what’s
going on here?” Not having a clue of what just happened because I was just
doing my job. After going downstairs with assistance from the RIP team --
which is very important -- I got outside, and the medics took me
immediately to the trauma unit. I come to find out that I had two
compressed discs in my vertebrae that weren’t there an hour before. After
months of seeing doctors and pain specialists it was determined that the
only way that this problem was going to be resolved was to have surgery.
Now I'm thinking about my family, my children, am I going to be able to
work again, or what’s going to happen next -- how am I going to provide for
my family?

On January 24 we had the surgery; thank God it was a success.
Coming this Friday I will finally be able to go back to work after six-and-a-

half months. Not only was the pain on me, but my poor wife who is doing
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everything; my children who thought they lost their father. My Director,
who is going to testify later on, had to backfill my position for six-and-a-half
months. It’s not just, when it happens to one person, it only affects that
one person; there are a lot of people out there that it has to affect: it
affected me, my family, my co-workers, my Director who now has to
backfill spaces. I mean, I have the article here to show you exactly what
happened that day. And if that wasn’t bad enough, as we’re waiting for the
roof -- as we call venting, when they cut a hole in the roof -- they finally
went out to go get the saw, someone was stealing the saw off the truck in
the City of Trenton. He yelled to the gentleman, “Hey, stop!” The
gentleman stopped, dropped the chainsaw, and took off. If that wasn’t bad
enough, that delayed our operations. Maybe because 110 cops were cut out
of the City of Trenton, that we don’t have the police force we used to have
on a fire scene. But on top of that, as the one article said -- I'm not even
sure this is the right article -- it said it was made for a movie or Hollywood
screen set here, because five blocks away a man got shot. He ran to the
lights for help. As we’re fighting a fire we had some gentleman -- had to
stop to assist this man with a gunshot to the chest. This is all happening
within a 15-minute period.

I was fortunate enough to get to the hospital and get immediate
help, but four other gentlemen that day also had to go to the hospital to get
treated for their injuries. And there’s nothing like sitting in the trauma
room looking up at the bright lights and hearing a doctor say, “Get the
chest cutter out.” You could see my heart rate pound. It wasn’t for me; it

was for the guy who got shot next to me.
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But the importance of this is that we can’t keep cutting,
expecting us to keep doing more, without making the ultimate sacrifice. I
was lucky; Manny Rivera, two years ago, wasn’t so lucky.

So I ask the Committee-- I appreciate you taking the time to
listen to people, but if we don’t have a working dialogue like President
Lavin said, we’re not going to get anywhere. And we need to get someplace
before somebody else gets hurt or killed.

Thank you. (applause)

BRIAN McGORTY: Brian McGorty, retired captain, North
Hudson Regional; currently the Chairman for the New Jersey State FMBA
Civil Service Committee, and Chairman for New Jersey FMBA Critical
Incident Stress Committee.

I want to thank everybody for being here to hear our concern,
but what that does is tell us we do have a lot to be concerned about. It’s an
interesting situation to see chiefs and heads of departments, mayors, stand
up here and ask you exactly what we’re asking you for -- and that’s
manpower.

We heard repeated references to mutual aid. Jersey City does
require a lot of mutual aid, and they give a lot of mutual aid. What it really
defines is that we’re in a state of mutual inefficiency. We can’t fight our
own fires. We can’t protect our own streets. We have to rely on each
other.

And that doesn’t change. You know, you’ll hear, “Well, we’re
restructuring to do it this way, or that way.” But anyone who knows fire

science knows that the outcome is determined in the initial response -- you
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still have to force entry, search, vent, and get water on the fire. And that
requires manpower.

I'm in the department that was regionalized to address five
different municipalities that had inadequate manpower. And initially it
worked well because we had sufficient manpower. Now, instead of five
individual towns with insufficient manpower, we have one large department
that’s been depleted through attrition, through not replacing; initially
through rotational closings of companies, and then permanent closings of
companies.

What we need to do, collectively, is seek solutions. I saw on
the national level, when there was a crisis of teachers, the development of
Teach America. What we need to do is use our collective minds to develop
a program to protect New Jersey. And it could be done in various ways.
We spend a ton of money in trying to develop tests, in trying to do things
that make -- for the workforce to reflect our communities. I say we need to
develop programs that give a path to protecting our cities and employing
the personnel from those cities. We have to develop programs at young
ages, not think afterwards, “Let’s look at our department; we'’re
inadequate.”  Let’s develop programs that channel people into the
emergency services. Instead of looking to cut, let’s look at ways to
efficiently, cost-effectively bolster our numbers. And that could be done
with a little creative thinking and using funding that’s going elsewhere to
address these needs.

I thank you for your time on this.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.

Sir.
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TROY POWELL: Good afternoon.

My name is Troy Powell, and I'm a 10-year veteran of the
Montclair Fire Department, where I hold the rank of firefighter on Engine
1, and serve as Treasurer for Montclair Local 20. In addition, I've also
served as Treasurer of the New Jersey State Firefighter’s Mutual Benevolent
Association since September of 2010.

I would first like to thank the Committee for allowing me to
speak today and for the work they do on behalf of public safety.

On Thursday, January 19, at 03:32 hours, we were dispatched
on mutual aid to Jersey City. Needing more information, my Lieutenant,
John Grapes, called our dispatchers and ascertained the following: We were
to meet up with five additional units from Essex County at the corner of Sip
and Garrison Avenues, and form two task forces comprised of two engines
and one truck each, and then we were to proceed to the headquarters of
North Hudson Regional Fire and Rescue Ladder 4, located at the corner of
60th Street and Tyler Place. For the record, the other units were engines
from Bellville, Bloomfield, and Nutley, and trucks from Irvington and East
Orange.

According to Google Maps, this trip from our headquarters at 1
Pine Street to the staging area and then on to our assignment is 19.2 miles
and would take 38 minutes. Imagine this drive as we travel through Glen
Ridge, Bloomfield, East Orange, Newark, East Newark, Harrison, Kearny,
Jersey City, Union City, and West New York. That’s 11 different
communities; that’s 841,750 taxpayers who now have compromised fire

protection. This is not effective mutual aid.
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Retired New York Fire Department Battalion Commander and
fire service author Dr. Harry Carter wrote an article back in 2000 entitled
Mutual Aid Mooch, and he eventually rewrote it again in 2010 because
nothing in fire service had changed. In both articles he describes the
growing phenomenon of requesting but not providing mutual aid, of
understaffed departments relying on neighboring towns during multiple-
alarm incidents. He states: “Any group formed on the unequal footing of
active versus moochy participants will collapse under the weight of the
strain caused by the mutual aid mooch.”

We have very diverse communities in New Jersey, and the
taxpayers who choose to properly fund their fire departments are ultimately
subsidizing the ones who don’t.

We didn’t clear West New York until 09:59 hours, and we
watched during shift change as North Hudson scrambled to swap out crews
so as not to incur overtime. The taxpayers of Montclair weren’t so lucky.
They had to pay two firefighters and one lieutenant three hours of overtime
for a fire almost 20 miles away.

Getting back to our drive: Google Maps estimates it would
take 38 minutes. At 03:32 hours we thankfully did not have to navigate
through any traffic. However, our apparatus is governed at 58 miles per
hour so we cannot even go the speed limit on highways. If you add the
time it took to gather the proper information before we left our firehouse,
along with the time spent waiting for everyone at the staging area, it had to
take us an hour to get to Ladder 4 headquarters.

According to the NFPA code 5.2.4.2 -- initial full alarm

assignments -- the fire department shall have the capability to deploy an
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initial full alarm assignment within a 480 second travel time to 90 percent
of the incidents. I want to say that again: 480 seconds, or 8 minutes. Our
drive was at least 38 minutes. It’s a fairly simple concept: If there’s more
fire than water being applied to the fire, the fire is going to continue to
grow. It’s as simple as that.

Underwriters Laboratories states -- they use mathematical
formulas when rating building materials for fire resistance. A graph
included in my testimony will show the time-temperature curve. To
simplify this concept, it is how long an item will maintain its structural
integrity as compared to a standard baseline. It took us 38 minutes at least.

Now we have arrived in West New York, and we have to wait
again to gain access to the firehouse. Our apparatus carries water and
cannot freeze as it will damage the pump as well as disable us an engine
company. When I attempted to put my engine in pump, I experienced
trouble with the controls, and I could not operate the throttle at the pump
panel. If we were dispatched to a fire, we would have been useless as an
engine company and unable to put water on that fire. Our mechanics later
diagnosed it to be a frozen electronic pump transfer module. It froze on the
drive down there. These rigs were not designed to travel long distances to
fires. We operate in urban settings, and we usually arrive to our fires within
two to four minutes of dispatch. The distance and temperature caused a
new mechanical problem in our apparatus, and it could have been
catastrophic. After getting into the firehouse, our engine eventually began
to work due to the thawing of the module.

However, our problems don’t stop there. The next hurdle was

interoperability of radios, couplings, and SOPs. The Battalion Chief of
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North Hudson, who was serving as our guide, did not have a shared
frequency, nor did he have enough radios to equip every firefighter at the
scene. To overcome this, he provided one radio to each apparatus, so our
officers would have to monitor two frequencies at any alarm. The other
mutual aid units found a common frequency because we were all from Essex
County, luckily, and we could then talk amongst ourselves. But the
Battalion Chief still couldn’t monitor that traffic.

The next problem was finding a common coupling to use on the
fireground. Every department uses a different size thread to attach to their
hydrants. So a decision needed to be made in order to ensure we would all
get additional water on the fire. These interoperability problems should be
worked out in an office by management-level officers, not in the dayroom at
4 a.m.

Lastly, we need to decide on the basic operating procedures.
Each one of us does it a little different. We have over 100 years of history.
And, again, we're finding common ground at 4 a.m. in the dayroom.

In order for mutual agreements to work -- and I quote Dr.
Harry Carter again -- “There should be provisions for regular meetings of all
the signatories to the agreement, and drills among the participants should
occur on a periodic basis. Fire departments work much better together
when they are familiar with the manner in which their neighbors worlk.”

In closing, the Governor called my President, Bill Lavin, a
fearmonger and stated nobody is going to die. But according to the United
States Fire Administration, an entity of FEMA, since January 1 there have
been 816 civilian fire fatalities in residential structures. That’s 113 days, or

7.25 people a day. Of those, 26 were in New Jersey -- 26. That’s one of
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our fellow residents perishing every 5.3 (sic) hours -- days, or 104 hours.
That’s one of our fellow citizens perishing every 4.3 days, every 104 hours.
Thank you.
ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.
EDDIE DONNELLY: Good afternoon, Committee.

And thank you, Assemblyman Mainor, for agreeing to this
much-needed hearing on the demand that mutual aid has placed -- and due
to the manpower reductions that are going on across New Jersey.

My name is Eddie Donnelly. I'm a career firefighter of 12 years
working in Union. We have felt the effects of this Administration’s
misguided attempts at curtailing property taxes. Since this Governor has
been in office, we have lost positions through attrition. Municipal leaders
are applauding the facts of no layoffs or rehiring firefighters. It was
rewarding to hear mayors today who were addressing the fact of the mass
exodus in the fire service, in which positions are being eliminated.

We have seen the mutual aid system misused and abused at
alarming rates. Municipalities surrounding my community and across New
Jersey are operating at dangerously low manpower levels which clearly
equates to the number one reason we are in this predicament.
Unfortunately, the fire service in New Jersey was not staffed at adequate
levels before the new norm -- of laying off firefighters and eliminating vital
positions in our table of organizations -- was established.

We are here today to implore this Committee to take a long,
hard look at the effects of such things as the 2 percent property tax -- which
is handcuffing municipalities in forcing layoffs and lowered staffing levels

through attrition.
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Safety of firefighters and the citizens of New Jersey should be a
top priority for this Governor and Legislature. In Union, we have done real
cost comparisons in relation to property taxes and the cost of a professional
and dedicated fire/EMS service. In some instances it equates to less a
month than people pay for basic cable television. It equates to more (sic) a
day than a good cup of coffee you could buy at a Starbucks or a Dunkin’
Donuts these days.

Mutual aid occurrences are happening more frequently for
longer periods of time and are taking our manpower and apparatus to
further locations. I would like to give an example of a campaign fire and
two Christmas Eve fires that occurred in Elizabeth. First was the fire of
Berry Biscuit, that I'm sure many of you are aware of, and the two fires that
happened on Christmas Eve in Elizabeth. My Department hired overtime
for three days to operate at that fire at Berry Biscuit. We also hired
overtime to send manpower to Elizabeth on Christmas Eve for the two
structure fires they were fighting. Elizabeth was down close to 60 members
at that time. Elizabeth did not incur any costs to reemploy firefighters to
staff their municipality while units were operating to distinguish those fires.
The reward for the taxpayers of Union was a bill of approximately $30,000
of manpower and equipment costs, and longer response times for our
residents in the Township of Union.

Please understand that mutual aid is needed. We’ve been using
it for many years to lend assistance to municipalities in times of need. The
problem today is the lack of manpower, which is putting a strain on that
system. It is a time bomb waiting to explode. You can only stretch certain

things so far before a tragedy happens. If a tragic situation was to occur due
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to a constant abuse of mutual aid with the lack of manpower, the
responsibility will lie on the elected officials. Is there a price tag for public
safety? Do the numbers. Look at what taxpayers are really paying for
professional, dedicated fire and EMS services in New Jersey.

I thank you for the opportunity to express a couple point on
this issue today.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.

Let me just start by saying that I'm very happy that you're here
with us today, and I'm happy that you're on your way back to work. I wish
you the very best from this point forward.

MR. PALUMBI: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR:  Mr. Lavin, you had made
mention about regionalization, and I want you to understand something.
That’s something that’s going on in different parts of the state right now,
but it is not the answer. Because, again, if you take two understaffed
departments and put them together, you have one understaffed department.
And here in Hudson County we did the regionalization with Union -- with
North Hudson Fire Department. And at that time, if I'm not mistaken --
prior to that, Union City was paying $6 million for their Department.
Once it all came together, they’re now paying $18 million. So there was no
savings there. And that’s one nightmare that we, here in Hudson County,
would not like to go back down again. But I just wanted to make that --
bring that out, because I know that you had mentioned about

regionalization.
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With that, I'm not going to take up much time. We’re going to
open it up to any of the Assembly.

Assemblyman Cryan.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: I have a couple of questions.

First off, this is about -- you do a property tax cap in three days,
which is what we all did. Yeah politics. Nobody here wants higher
property taxes. You guys don’t; we don’t. But the reality is -- we’ve called
it unintended consequences. We can call it anything we want, we just didn’t
plan it out properly. That’s one of the net effects here.

I just want to-- The phenomenon that I've heard about
consistently is that smaller departments don’t replace personnel and, as a
result, incur overtime costs, much like -- even though these are larger
departments in the Union and Elizabeth example. Is that a phenomenon
that you guys have seen -- where smaller communities who think they’re
saving money actually end up incurring overtime as a result because of
mutual aid? Is that a common experience that you guys have seen?

MR. LAVIN: Assemblyman, there’s a culture of-- It used to be
where you had your anchor fire departments. You had your Paterson,
Newark, Jersey City, Elizabeth, Bayonne. You're funding your departments
responsibly. And the smaller departments could always count on them, in
the event of a large-scale incident, to -- that we would have these men
available in those instances. What has happened over time -- and a
statement was made by a mayor who is no longer in office in Hillside at the
time that -- “Why should I hire-- I'm not going to hire firefighters, because
I have Elizabeth there and I have Newark. I could always call on them.”

Well, that type of attitude has become pervasive. Now in the event of the 2
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percent property tax and the economy being what it is, we’ve seen the
hardship in the anchor departments who we’ve traditionally counted on.
The Chief of the Jersey City Fire Department said they used to be able to --
they’d have two big conflagrations in town and not have to call mutual aid.
To think that we’re traveling 11 communities to bring departments-- And
what-- This is an instance -- when Troy speaks of Montclair responding --
every department that he mentioned, every city that he passed through had
sent somebody there. Imagine the City of Harrison’s Fire Department,
which is down to one engine company; which has reduced their Department
by one-half; which, at times, doesn’t even have fire officers on duty.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Really?

MR. LAVIN: Yes, they were 69, and they’re now 29 members.
They’re sending companies outside of their community to help other
departments. It’s like asking the poor and the needy to give to another
poor. There is an economy of scale here.

Here’s the other thing that is an issue: When departments take
their level of safety out of their community, they’re at risk. We haven’t had
it yet. But to imagine taking a safe community -- a safely staffed
community -- and the reward for Bayonne, the reward for Elizabeth, the
reward for Jersey City of having a staffed department is, “Guess what? You
get to give more. You get to be asked for more.” And we continue to do
more with less. And it’s almost like the drug addict. We become an enabler
to these communities to say, “You know what? We can rely on getting this
in the middle of the night. What’s the chance of us having a fire? Chief,
don’t mention that. Because if you do mention that, you won’t be the

Chief any longer.” So we pretend, and we continue to pretend, until we are
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here today telling you we can’t do it anymore. We’re stretched to the
absolute limit. The givers are broke. They can’t give it anymore. So we
have to find a solution.

There is a cost to fire safety, but there’s a cost to not having fire
safety. Imagine the property-- We talk about property taxes. What are the
property values of a house in Jersey City that is in the proximity of a block
that is now blighted and has 10 burned-out buildings? Has the property
value gone up or has it gone down? That is the consequence. If people
don’t feel safe, they’re not going to purchase in that community.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: I just have a couple of other--

MR. LAVIN: TI'm sorry, I just got a little carried away there.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: No, that’s all right, Bill.

I have to ask: The couplings didn’t fit from your-- I mean--

MR. POWELL: People use different couplings. Some people
use National Standard, New York Corp, different size threads. Some
people use five-inch, six-inch, four-inch on their hydrants.

MR. McGORTY: Assemblyman, what happens is, when you're
bringing people from further and further away, they’re encountering
something that is not their norm. For instance, within Hudson County,
we're aware of that, and we use mutual aid so frequently our responding
companies have adapters to deal with that problem. But now mutual aid is
being used where it’s never been used before. So new problems arise that
haven’t been anticipated. It’s just, as Billy said, stretching things too thin.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: At least for me that was eye-
opening. I don’t want to lose sight of the story and the 11 towns and the

number of residents that you went through -- the forest through the trees.
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But between that and the other thing-- In a post-9/11 world -- and let’s not
even go there, even though we’re in Jersey City -- let’s just go post-2 percent
cap. This inoperability thing with radios is just nonsense. There’s got to be
a way. Jesus Christ, we're the Legislature of the State of New Jersey.
Enough is enough. We have to figure out a way. I don’t pretend to have
the answer; I admit it. And I don’t want to grandstand here. But how
many times can radios not be on the same bands and the same frequencies?
If we’re going to screw everybody, we ought to at least let them talk to each
other while we’re doing it. (laughter) (applause)

We've just got to figure out a way to-- This has to get
mandated and be done, because it is one of the more frightening things out
of all of them.

MR. LAVIN: Assemblyman, if I could just respond to that.
We're in Jersey City University, where they have the finest fire science
program going. Kevin Malley is the Chairperson here. We train our chiefs
and our fire officers here to be safe, and to be able to communicate, and to
have enough supervision and manpower. None of that is happening on the
fireground.

Elizabeth wasn’t meant to be in Hoboken unless we have a
9/11, unless we have an incident. We burned down a five-story historical
occupancy there. We had the inability for Elizabeth to speak to Hoboken
firefighters. And what you never do is put master streams into a fire when
there are firefighters actively working on a suppression unit. We nearly
killed a unit of Hoboken firefighters because they couldn’t talk to one
another, and they were giving hand signals back and forth. We're going

backwards.
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And if you hear some frustration in the voices-- And, again,
we’re not here to -- we're here to point out a problem. If government -- if
the Legislature, if the cities do not want to-- We’ve done our job here
today. We feel responsible to let the people know that we are hard-pressed
to keep people safe. If we do nothing about it-- We’ll continue to do our
best. And that’s been our problem. These guys behind me -- the firefighters
and the police officers -- they don’t know how to say no in an emergency.
They will continue to put the mask on and go in until they’re so exhausted
that they put themselves in jeopardy. And that’s been used against the fire
service since its inception -- do more with less. Okay, we’ll do more with
less.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: My final piece, Charlie, is--

First off, like everybody, your story was incredibly moving.
Thank God you're here. And thank God the folks who were in that fire are
on this earth to talk about it. And we need to remember the heroes who
aren’t. And we tend to forget. We’re in a new cycle. It’s less than 24
hours. And we forget the folks who come in and save us. I just think we’ve
got to actually focus more and more on the long-term.

And to my colleagues, the message, at least to me -- at least one
of these is -- with what I opened with in this segment. We passed this thing
in no time. I mean, let’s face it, we all know this 2 percent cap came down
with -- I don’t want to say closed door, but let’s just say not wide open and be
polite. And it passed in almost no time. We do that far more often than
we ever have to in the Legislature, and we constantly run into unintended

consequences.
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And I thank you, Chairman, for having this hearing to point
this out in particular. This is real life, real life and death for folks. It truly
is. But we need to keep that message -- not only in this particular aspect
and the follow up -- in all the things we do. We ought to think it through
all the time, especially with the issues that we have coming up. It’s a lesson
learned here and one that we have to fix for the safety of these heroes who
are in front of us.

Thanks.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Assemblyman, I agree with you
100 percent.

Mr. Lavin, I want to say that you’ve come here today and
you’ve educated us on certain things that we had no knowledge of. It is a
shame that things are going the way they are. But, again, let me just
remind you that this meeting here was to bring about a dialogue. Knowing
what we know now at this time -- that we take that information and we
move forward. It’s not to point fingers, it’s to bring out the information
that we didn’t know, and we now take it and move forward to make things
a little better than what they are. So I want to thank you, again, for coming
and bringing that information to us.

MR. LAVIN: I appreciate that. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Assemblyman, please.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiMAIO: Thank you.

Through the Chair, if I may, a couple of points. First of all, I'd

like to ask Mr. Lavin--
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You head up the statewide organization. And certainly in your
circles you must share information with some of the leaders from other
states.

MR. LAVIN: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiMAIO: What are you hearing from your
peers across the country? Because we’re all in the same situation,
economically. Are they coming up with solutions to their problems in a
similar way, or are they doing something different? What are the best
practices you're hearing about that you can share with us?

MR. LAVIN: Well, it’s not unique to New Jersey, these issues.
What is being addressed, I see, in a positive way-- We talked about
regionalization a little bit. There are some good examples of that. If you
look at the Cherry Hill model and how we went from fire districts to a
department that is efficient-- It can be done, and it’s a useful tool. What
I'm saying -- it’s not a panacea.

But the thing that I see is the focus being taken away from
buying equipment. We have spent a significant amount of money buying
equipment in other states and in New Jersey. I say we’re equipment rich
and manpower poor. To empower people like the Division of Fire Safety to
have somebody, when they go to purchase a piece of equipment -- that
maybe they would have to have a litmus test and go to the Division for
approval for that, so that we don’t have departments threatening not to
either volunteer or we have five truck companies with 110 foot aerial
ladders in a three-mile square -- which we have, by the way -- but nobody to
respond. So I do see in some places a shift from equipment focus. We

would like support in the area of the grants that are out there. The grants
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are for capital improvements and for-- You know, it drives me crazy. The
Governor is going to be at one of our firehouses in Springfield, in Union
County. It is a wonderful facility. Unfortunately, there are twice as many
toilets in the place than there are firefighters on duty. (laughter) I mean,
that’s just a fact.

We have the infrastructure. We have great firehouses built, we
have equipment that are all millions of dollars, and yet we continue to lack
the manpower. So it’s a nationwide crisis. 1 do see that shift. My
colleagues from the PFAN] and the International will be able to speak more
on that. But clearly it’s not just New Jersey, it’s nationwide. And I just
think that this is an elastic type of reaction. We’re starting to see the fruits
or the tragedy of our cutbacks, to the point of guys being 27 years -- and
retiring at that age. And that’s true. And we’re concerned about people
retiring. But those departments that have championed the fact that they
have not laid off, haven’t hired-- We shrunk our departments from the
bottom rather than from the top. We don’t replace the senior guys. When
somebody retires, it’s now a critical event. It used to be a celebration. Now
it’s, “Guess what? When you retire we’re not--”  We have municipalities
now who are waiting for our members to retire so they can celebrate the fact
that they’re not going to replace them.

MR. POWELL: If I could just add on to that: I would say,
What are we doing? We're not. We're failing. Again, according to FEMA,
we have the second highest civilian residential fire mortality rate in the
world -- United States. So we’re the wealthiest nation, and we’re the
greatest nation, but we have the second highest civilian residential fatality

rate.
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ASSEMBLYMAN DiMAIO: If I may just follow up with a
couple of points.

I don’t sit on this Committee, and I volunteered to come down
here today to listen -- not just to fill up a chair, I wanted to hear.

I come from a different part of the state than you fellows
represent. We are primarily volunteer-driven, and we do mutual aid. I'm a
former mayor, former freeholder, so I know the system and how it operates.
We worked very hard to put together a radio system that works through the
whole county now. And we can even talk to other counties in our area. It’s
just something that had to be done. Because when we have an incident--
For example, if it happens in my town, then units coming in from
surrounding towns -- other units come in and they backfill the stations.
And that’s the world that we live in. We have to. We don’t have the
resources or the need, probably, to have paid personnel. So we rely on
volunteers. And our volunteers do a great job. I can’t deny that. They’re
trained the same as you guys are, and they do a very good job for us.

But it would seem to me that you need to start communicating
within your own ranks and your own regions -- from inner counties to out
in your whole area -- to work on that interoperability. And we need to
maybe look at funding -- if we're going to put money in equipment, we
should be putting money into radios. We put a lot of money in radios in
our county, and it works well. We now interoperate with the State Police.
We did, and we lost the State Police in our county a decade ago because we
couldn’t find them. And we got the radio system so now we can talk to

them so we can get the job done.
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I mean, if we need to be smarter to get through these times--
You know, let’s keep something in mind. We’re in tough economic times.
It would be interesting -- before the doctor went, and I should have asked
the question earlier -- what in the world did they do during the Depression
to get through these types of times? It had to be just as bad or worse,
because there was no money anywhere to pay anyone. So the point is, we
will get through this, and it will get better, and money will come down the
pike some day to backfill these positions. We need to work together now
and to be smart about this to cover for each other.

And you, sir-- I'm very happy to see you here today, and all of
your peers who have suffered as a result of the line of duty. We appreciate
it. Don’t think we don’t.

MR. LAVIN: Assemblyman, if I could just respond to that. I
think you're-- I agree 100 percent. The fire service in general -- the various
management, labor-- The League of Municipalities needs to weigh in here
as well. The problem is we're putting out fires, literally putting out fires.
And we don’t have the time. This is a time out for us today. We need to
take a time out. We need the Legislature to be in the lead to allow us to
have this type of dialogue.

Not so long ago, under the McGreevey Administration and
then into the Codey Administration, there was a Fire Service Task Force
where volunteer, career, labor, management all joined together and created
a document that I did provide to all the members of this Committee.
Hopefully you have it and read it. And if you haven’t we’ll get it to you.
But it talked about all of these things -- the need. You can imagine, as we’re

struggling to put boots on the ground to fight a fire -- the discussion of
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interoperability and anticipating -- three counties over Elizabeth going into
Hoboken. We don’t anticipate this. What we're finding is that what used
to be the exception is now the rule. Mutual aid -- or mutual -- it’s certainly
-- it’s not mutual anymore -- but this charity aid that we’re giving to other
communities used to be the rare incident, and now it’s every week. And
we’ve seen that since January 1, since the fire that Eddie talked about in
Elizabeth. It’s just an every week occurrence now.

MR. McGORTY: Assemblyman, if I could, just for a second--

I appreciate that, and we want to work together on this. We
know these are tough times. We would be naive (sic) to think that. And we
hope that it’s a dual-track approach. Too often it’s just looked at as an
economic problem. And what we wish is that we would be brought in to
discuss the firematic aspects of it, because it’s a two-pronged problem, and
we wish to be part of the solution.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: I understand. Thank you.

And without becoming too controversial here -- and I am just
going to throw this out there -- we live in a world of volunteers. Is there
any combination fire company where you have volunteers and paid
personnel who work together?

MR. LAVIN: All throughout the state. We represent many of
them. Carteret is one, Roselle is another. Absolutely. Edison is another.
We have situations where the volunteers become kind of the feeder program
for the career-- My experience with the volunteers is that a good three-
quarters of them aspire to be -- volunteers aspire to be career. So we do
work with them, and we try to understand their challenges as well as ours.

The problem with the volunteer situation is, in a bad economy they’re out
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there hustling, trying to work two jobs to make ends meet. Volunteerism is
down. That is the other drain on it. We used to be able to rely-- I'm in
Union County, and we have Kenilworth, Roselle Park departments that are
largely volunteer. Well, the lack of volunteers creates a greater need for the
career guys. If we cut the career guys, these incidents become ever growing.

ASSEMBLYMAN DiMAIO: We’ll get through this.

MR. LAVIN: I appreciate that.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: I'm going to ask if we can cut the
questions short. We have another set of firemen who are going to come
forward. So maybe they can answer the next set.

Thank you, gentlemen.

MR. LAVIN: Does that mean our two minutes are up?
(laughter)

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Yes.

MR. LAVIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate it.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.

MR. McGORTY: Thank you for your time.

MS. WHITBECK: The next group of persons we would like to
come up to testify: Mr. Qareeb Bashir, Trenton Department of Fire and
Emergency Services; Mr. Steven Dyl, Kearny Fire Department; Mr.
Dominick Marino and Mr. George Borek, Professional Firefighters of New
Jersey.

The Chairman would appreciate it if we could try to keep our
comments under three minutes at this point because of time.

Would you like to start, sir? State your name for the record.
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CHIEF STEVEN M. DYL: Good morning, Assemblyman
Mainor, members of the Law and Public Safety Committee, distinguished
guests, members of the law enforcement and fire protection community.

Thank you for allowing me to present my concerns concerning
the impact of cuts on public safety.

My name is Steven Dyl. I'm a member of the fire service for 27
years, and I serve as Chief of the Kearny Fire Department.

While there are many areas impacted by the budgetary impacts,
I'd like to speak to you about three areas affected by the lack of funding
and the 2 percent budget cap on a medium sized department. These areas
are administration, operations, and labor.

Administration: ~ Funding reduction and cutbacks caused a
reduction in administrative staff. Day to day operations are difficult to
manage. The remaining staff members are overworked and cannot handle
the work load. The result is a lack of oversight in many areas. Some
examples include grants. A lack of staff personnel results in an inability to
seele grants. There is a great deal of research required to apply for a grant.
Once received, there are requirements to manage and oversee grants.
Deadlines are not easily met and, at times, cannot be met. We're in
jeopardy of losing grant funding.

Review and updating of SOPs-- There are delays in reviewing
SOPs and department policies which should be done on an annual basis.
The result is outdated policies and decreased efficiency in operations.
Purchasing of equipment is delayed due to lack of research. Processing bills
for payment is delayed, and the resulting vendors are not compensated for

their work which can lead to increased costs. Managers are stretched to the
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limit. The proper time cannot be devoted to thoroughly analyze and
prepare all the issues placed in front of them. Decisions are forced to be
made without complete attention.

Budget: The Town of Kearny has shown fiscal responsibility
during these lean budget years. Replacing employees who retired was done
on an case by case basis. The overall workforce was reduced by over 10
percent. Since 2009, the Town of Kearny had to use approximately $17
million in surplus to balance the municipal budget. In 2011, Kearny was
able to generate less than $3 million in surplus funds. And in 2012, the
estimate is that the town will generate less than $1.5 million in surplus
funds by the end of the year. In 2013, the estimated budget shortfall is
over $3.5 million. The result of our fiscal responsibility will be more service
reductions and maybe even layoffs. We’re not cutting fat, we're cutting
bone.

Operating expenses are kept at a minimum and seldom rise. In
Kearny, the operating budget is kept at a 2007 funding level, and was
decreased in 2011. Maintenance is performed only when required, and
preventative maintenance may not be completed. In order to replace
equipment such as fire apparatus and self-contained breathing apparatus,
we must first explore alternate sources. This causes a delay in replacement.
We applied for grant funding in 2010 and 11, and were denied both times.
We will try again in 2012 for AFG funding. This process takes a long time
and the equipment keeps on aging. It can take up to two years to purchase
an aerial ladder from the time of bid to delivery. Our ladder is 21 years old
and would be 25 years old at the time of replacement if we’re successful.

The cost of the replacement is $850,000.
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Fire prevention: The main focus of the fire department is to
prevent fires. Fire prevention consists of fire safety education, fire
prevention, code enforcement, and origin cause. The trend is to reduce the
number of uniform members serving in these positions. Uniform members
are being reduced -- replaced by part-time civilians, not even full-time
civilians. Use of part-time employees results in a higher turnover rate. Jobs
are being used as a stepping stones pending full-time employment or people
seeking higher paying positions. Benefits are rarely included in these
employment packages. What was once a four-member department now has
two full-time employees supplemented by part-timers.

Funding cuts require us to do more with less. Firefighters are
forced to take more risk. During a recent three-alarm fire in Kearny, two
firefighters were forced to jump from a first-floor window after their escape
route was cut off by fire. Three additional firefighters were knocked down a
flight of stairs by the advancing fire. All these members felt compelled to
return to fighting the fire because there were no replacements available to
relieve them. One firefighter received medical treatment after the fire. A
firefighter, when confronted with a fire or other life-threatening emergency,
will do whatever it takes to save a life or stop a fire. They will not think of
the dangers of acting alone or putting themselves in harm’s way to help
others. It’s common in smaller fire departments to see firefighters go
through three or four tanks of air before being relieved.  The
recommendation is rehab after the second tank. In smaller departments
such as Kearny, we’re not able to meet the national standards for staffing --
NFPA 1710. The recommendation is four firefighters on each apparatus,

one of which is an officer. A pumper and a ladder should arrive at the scene
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within four minutes of the receipt of the alarm, the remainder within eight
minutes, bringing a minimum of 14 or 15 firefighters. Due to budget cuts,
Kearny will no longer be able to meet this standard without mutual aid.
We are forced to operate with three firefighters on a pumper and only two
on a ladder. The result of continued cutbacks and insufficient personnel is
that we will not be able to keep a one-room contents fire from spreading
beyond the room of origin.

Mutual aid: Budget cutbacks and mandates place an increased
burden on mutual aid. In addition to the firefighters necessary to fight the
fire, other critical positions are required to be staffed. Some include a rapid
intervention crew, incident safety officer, accountability officer, OSHA
mandated two in/two out, and firefighter rehab. Early in my career, mutual
aid was an occasional experience. Now it’s more of a routine response
which happens almost daily. It’s so common that recently we provided
coverage to a neighboring community. The dispatcher advised over the
radio to stand by at the firehouse and someone will respond to let you in.
The response from the relocating company was, “That’s not necessary, we
have our own key.”

Mutual aid is overrelied upon, even to the point of being
abused. Mutual aid is necessary. Some issues are: The burden of a routine
fire in one community places a drain on another. Example: If Kearny sends
mutual aid out to another community, we will leave only nine firefighters
should a fire occur in Kearny. Kearny may be forced to recall men to man a
replacement apparatus at a cost of $1,700 a fire. One municipality in our
area cannot supply mutual aid unless they receive mutual aid coverage for

their town. Mutual aid to provide mutual aid. Mutual aid companies
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cannot communicate with each other due to lack of common radio
frequencies. If a radio was shared with a mutual aid company, the other
firefighters assigned to it will not hear the radio traffic that’s going on.

There’s a delay in response time for mutual aid. At a recent
fire, it took us 17 minutes for a mutual aid company to arrive on the scene.
The town may not be able to provide aid due to budget restrictions. Some
communities able to supply an engine and a ladder for mutual aid, due to
budget cuts may only supply one. The result is that we have to reach out
further and further away to get the assistance that we need. Different
towns may rely on the same towns for assistance. This happened recently
with the two major fires in Jersey City and Hoboken. In order to fulfill the
requirement of 15 firefighters on the scene, Kearny is going to require
mutual aid to do so. In 2011 Kearny was called upon to provide mutual aid
68 times and received aid 8 times. In 2010 we provided aid 118 times and
received aid 5 times. During the period from February 25 to March 15 of
this year, we experienced four multiple alarm fires in Kearny that all
required mutual aid.

On the labor front: Contracts were settled before the
enactment of the new budget mandates. We were forced to fit the existing
contracts into the budgets, which were required to conform to these
mandates.  This was an impossible task to complete without the
combination of layoffs, retirements, and givebacks by the labor unions.
New contract discussions are under way.

The budget cap and cutbacks are forcing us to negotiate lower
salaries and other givebacks. In 2013, in the fire department budget, there

will be only $119,000 available to meet contractual obligations. This
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includes the reduction of retirements that are going to take effect in 2012
and just moving on the (indiscernible) alone. The result is a reduced
workforce and poor morale. By July, Kearny will face a 13 percent
reduction in its firefighting force. We will be forced to close a fire
company, reducing available companies from five to six -- from six to five,
I'm sorry; and our on-duty staff will be reduced from 17 firefighters to 15
firefighters. There are three studies out there recommending a minimum
staffing of 21 firefighters on duty in Kearny.

The fire service exists on the combination of the experience of
senior personnel and the strength of junior personnel. Senior members
extend their knowledge and experience to junior members. This is often
referred to as on-the-job training during real-life situations.  This
combination allows junior members to gain valuable experience working
side-by-side with a senior member during adverse conditions. There is no
substitute for experience. Budget cuts cause layoffs. These young people
become unemployed. The result is an older workforce, and an older
workforce results in increased injuries.

Conversely, funding cuts and legislative changes to pensions
and benefits result in reduced funding for salaries and benefits. Senior
members who feel threatened by a reduction in benefits will retire early.
Years of experience walks out the door without passing on this valuable
information to junior members. The on-the-job training is lost and the
result is injuries due to inexperience.

The constant threat of benefit reduction, layoffs, demotions,
firehouse closings, and insufficient staffing results in poor morale. Poor

morale results in an inefficient workforce, increased injuries, and legal fees.
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The constant threat of layoffs-- Our members can’t plan their future, their
family needs, and home purchases knowing that they may not have a job
next week.

One factor unfazed by these budget cuts is the fire. It is always
hot and it is always vicious, and fire does not discriminate. It destroys
everything in its path and can kill anyone.

I need your help. The fire I described to you happened on
February 27, 2012, in Kearny. There are some pictures in the packet that I
distributed to you that show the fire. Four firefighters were assigned to the
first floor to search for residents and extinguish the fire. Five firefighters
were assigned to search the second floor and extinguish the fire. Two were
assigned to prevent the fire from extending to the building on the right, and
two were assigned to prevent the fire from extending to the building on the
left.

Due to budget cutbacks, they’re forcing me to eliminate one of
these assignments. Any recommendations on which one of these I can
eliminate?

Thanks for the opportunity to address you. I look forward to
working with the members of the Committee and be part of a solution.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN CONNORS: Thank you, Chief.

Before we go further, I know that we don’t have a clock here.
But if we can try to refrain to two minutes, if we can. We understand.
Obviously your issues are very important to us, and we're getting the gist of
it. But we do have three other panels that we would like to get to as well.

Thank you.
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QAREEB A. BASHIR: Thank you very much.

Good afternoon, Chairperson and also the other Committee
members.

My name is Qareeb Bashir. I am the Director of Fire and
Emergency Services for the capital city of Trenton, New Jersey. I would like
to thank all of you for having us here and giving us an opportunity to
express some of our concerns. And I will try to be brief.

In the City of Trenton, the consolidated municipal property tax
relief aid went from approximately $42 million to currently $20 million.
Capital city aid went from approximately $35 million to $22 million. Of
course some of that was replaced with what is known as transitional aid. But
as you can see by just the preliminary numbers or figures I gave you, it does
not even measure up -- not even remotely close to what we had traditionally
been receiving from the State. And as a result of that, we’ve had, definitely,
an adverse impact.

The name of our Department is Fire and Emergency Services.
And I think it’s important for me to bring this up because ofttimes we just
look at -- “Okay, they’re the fire department. There’s a fire; you respond.”
But when we say emergency services, we also deal with high-angle rescue,
confined space rescue, general rescue. We have a dive team, we have search
and recovery, we have a hazardous materials team, and the list goes on, and
on, and on. So all types of special operations-- We even respond to just
basic lockouts. We respond to water in the basement. So there’s a lot that
we do. But because of the reduction in aid, we’re looking at -- and have
already experienced -- reduced manpower, closing of fire stations, a cutback

in terms of some of the special operations that I just mentioned; pretty
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much a nonexistent fire prevention bureau -- which all statistics nationally
will show that an effective and continuous fire prevention program will
reduce the amount of fires and also save lives. That’s pretty much
nonexistent because we do not have the manpower. It also affects response
times, which is crucial and very, very important; which, again, could
determine if someone remains alive or if they’re killed in a fire.

Mutual aid -- and I'm not going to spend much time on that
because, of course, many people have already spoken on that. But in
Trenton we have several surrounding municipalities. I've already received
letters from them stating that, “I'm sorry, but we cannot help you in the
same way that we used to help you.” When we have a second alarm fire,
we're pretty much -- that’s it. We really have hardly any units left. So we
definitely rely on mutual aid, but they’re experiencing some of the same
things that we’re experiencing. So, of course, there is a problem.

Also, too, in fire departments we're under the guidelines of
PEOSHA laws and also NFPA guidelines. And to be perfectly honest with
you, we are struggling to be compliant with those guidelines. And if some
of the guidelines and/or some of the PEOSHA laws -- if we do not adhere to
them, we could be -- we could actually get fined. Now, how can any
municipality afford to pay fines when they can’t even afford to keep the
standard of manpower and provide the services that they’re traditionally
used to.

There’s been a lot in the news lately about user fees.
Municipalities are looking at that because they need the revenue. I just
presented a preliminary study to my business administrator for

implementing user fees. Unfortunately it was at the same time that it was
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in the newspaper. I'm saying, man, I picked a bad time to really present
this. But that’s what we're looking at. We have to look at this.

And also, too, brownouts -- which is another hot topic. All of
you are elected officials. You try to do things that -- what pleases your
constituency. We're in the hot seat because we have to do things that
people hate -- they literally hate -- but we’re not getting the funding.

Also in Trenton, 110 police officers were laid off. That’s about
one-third of the Department. I'm in unison with all of my brothers and
sisters here in the fire service and in public safety in general. However, I'd
like to step to the side a little bit as I represent “the capital city.” And when
you walk out of the State House and all of the other buildings that are
occupied by State workers, our police department has to actually
redistribute manpower for their safety, but yet our funds are being reduced.
We respond to -- based on percentages -- we respond to a State House-
owned facility every single day, in terms of our fire service. Every single day
we respond, but yet our aid has been reduced. So even though I stand in
unison with everyone else, I say, “Take a special look at Trenton, because
we provide services for--" (recorder malfunction).

One of my officers, Paul Palumbi, spoke about his injuries.
Injuries are on the uprise because of-- One reason is because of rehab. We
follow certain NFPA guidelines relative to rehab. That’s being thrown out
of the window. Firefighters are fighting fires and other emergency services
tired, actually out of breath, not being able to actually perform. So the end
result is injuries. Our overtime-- I think another Assembly person had

mentioned it. Our overtime is on the rise, but our overtime is on the rise --
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part of the reason is because of injuries. Just recently I had 12 firefighters
who were out on long-term sick leave as a result of injuries.

So when we look at the big picture, who is going to look in the
eye of these families and say, “They’re dead; they’re injured.” But why?
And it can somehow be tied into budget cuts.

And also, too, I want to bring this point up because I believe
that it’s important. In terms of the layoffs and people losing their jobs,
ofttimes what’s going to happen is, women and minorities are going to lose
their job. Why? Because of a consent decree and recruiting efforts. Some
of the newer firefighters are minorities. So therefore, when the layoff
comes, they’re going to lose their job. And as an end, direct result of that,
some of the grants that some of the officers were mentioning-- Contained
within the grants are questions that have to be answered. “How many
minorities do you have on the job? What type of recruiting efforts do you
have?” So that might even affect some of the departments receiving grants.

So there is a lot more that I could say, and I know I took more
time than you asked me to take. But I really appreciate it. And also, too,
one last thing is -- the cities -- their ISO ratings will also be reduced because
of the reduction in manpower. So that means that now the cities are going
to be taxed even more -- or the residents I should say -- will be taxed even
more through their insurance companies because the ratables will go up.

Thank you very much. I appreciate your time.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Sorry, ISO?

MR. BASHIR: Insurance Service Organization.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: I'm sorry, I lost an acronym there.
(laughter)
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ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: I knew that one, Joe.

(laughter)
DOMINICK MARIN O: Dominick Marino, with the
Professional Firefighters Association of New Jersey, President. We are the
State organization for the IAFF, which is the International Association of
Firefighters.

I am not going to go through everything that everybody’s been
doing. I will try to keep it as short as possible. TI'll just give you a few
pointers that I think may put a face to what we’re talking about.

It was mentioned earlier that we're a task-oriented group. We
have certain things that have to be performed right away -- attack the fire;
search and rescue; water supply; ventilation; second attack lines; safety
officer; a RIP team -- rapid intervention team; exposure protection. All
these functions need to be done in a relatively short period of time in order
to remedy the situation, in order to reduce that incident so it stays small
and doesn’t get larger.

When you omit some of these things, or most of these things,
that fire now becomes bigger and bigger, and you start losing control of that
building. So that’s why we say our manpower is very important. And I
guess since I do coaching on the side, I'll relate it to-- If you were going to
go in a football game, and you’re supposed to have 11 people on that
offense or 11 people on that defense -- if you cut out 4 of them, you leave
yourself vulnerable. Something is not going to work right. You're not going
to be able to be successful. In order for us to be successful, we need the
proper manpower in order to get the job done. So, I mean, it’s a small

analogy, but I'm just trying to put a little basis to it.
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We did mention-- You know, somebody had talked about
regionalization. I am from North Hudson, I am from that regional
department. When we regionalized in 1999, we had 220 firefighters. We
are down to 158. So in a little over 11 years they’ve reduced us by over 60
firefighters through attrition -- no layoffs, but through attrition. They’re
not hiring back. The manpower is not there, the apparatus is not there.

The incident in Hoboken where we were talking about response
times and other towns coming in-- Newark was called. It was 7:00 at night.
I believe it was -- I'm not sure what day it was, but the traffic was heavy. It
took them 50 minutes from Newark to get into Hoboken to that fire scene.
That’s not mutual aid, that’s just, “Come on down, and when it gets to the
corner help us put it out.” Mutual aid is no longer mutual aid. It’s abused.
It’s now supplementing everybody’s fire department. “This town isn’t
keeping the manpower up, so they’re going to call the town next door. I
know they can come and help me, so I will just call them. I won’t hire
back.”

It’s a problem. It does take money to work out these problems,
and I know that’s the big issue -- the economy. And we all understand that.
But it’s safety. Our lives and the lives of the citizens we’re supposed to
protect are the ones at risk. Our injuries are going up because we are doing
more with less. We’re asked to do a lot more in these fire situations, or
rescue situations, or accident scenes. Whatever we're going to, we're doing
more with less, and our injuries are going up.

So I will leave you with just the thought that we understand the
economy, we understand the ramifications. The 2 percent cap really did

not help in the way it should have helped. It helps as far as keeping the
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number down as far as tax, but it did not give the avenue for the
departments of public safety to do what needs to be done. Because,
unfortunately, there’s a cost factor. And to get the new techniques, the new
technology, the cost factor goes up.

To answer the Assemblyman’s question before -- he’s not here
right now -- there are different ways of-- The IFF has -- throughout the
United States and Canada -- has a Health and Safety Committee. We are
able to work with the Committee. So I offer that. When we can sit down --
that the Health and Safety department from the IFF has data from all
across the United States, and that we would share that with the Committee
whenever it’s needed.

So with that, I thank you for your time.

GEORGE B OREK: Chairman, members of the Committee, my
name is George Borek. I'm the Vice President of the Professional
Firefighters. I'm also starting my 31st year as a firefighter here in this great
city of Jersey City. And I'm also an elected official. I'm in my 5th year as a
Councilman in West Windsor Township, Mercer County. So I bring a
different perspective -- a rounded perspective on the issue. Because it
certainly impacts us in different ways.

I want to go back to the opening statements this morning of
Chief Comey and Chief Rivers. And one of the questions from the
Assemblyman -- you know, we spoke about -- as far as people on the job
and their experience. Five years ago this spring we had a fire -- multi-alarm
fire on Randolph Avenue. I'm assigned to the rescue company. And the
call came in at 12 noon and so forth -- what it was -- that there were people

trapped. My job with my colleague and the other members of the ladder
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company was to go to the roof and start ventilation. Well, we made that
trel up to the roof. What happened was, before the officer was able to get
up there, we were cut off. The fire came out and cut us off. Within a
matter of two minutes, three minutes the fire came up on three sides. Now,
I'm a 25-year veteran at that point. And you talk about experience. We
had no officer. But I looked at my fellow colleagues and I said to them,
“This is going down bad really quick. Get to the parapet.” I issued the
mayday. My chiefs who knew me in my career -- they knew, “When Borek
calls a mayday, there’s something here that’s going on.” It was going down
quick. In my eyes, in 30 seconds, I'm saying, “If they don’t get to us, we're
going to have to make a decision here. We either have to jump off this
roof, or if the roof collapses we’ll go into the fire.” The members heard the
mayday, the chiefs heard the mayday. I got my members to the parapet,
waiting for that rescue to come. They came and got us off.

So when you talk about what Chief Comey had said, as far as
the rumors and so forth-- Rumors spread quickly. People make decisions
based on what you’re hearing. We can’t afford that. What happens when
people like myself and other people who already left -- they’re gone? You're
not going to -- and they don’t have an officer up there. Who are they going
to rely on? That day there could have been four firefighters that -- if I
didn’t look quick enough and see what was going on -- might have been a
different outcome. There might have been funerals that day. But I knew
enough through my experience in being on the Department for 25 years --
this is what we needed to do. But, again, that’s just one snapshot.

The other point -- going back to what Chief Comey had said --

and one of the questions was -- is that, “Well, you have these big classes.”
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The Class of 92 -- that I came on -- we got 79 -- 89 firefighters in my class.
So when you do something on a grand scale, it affects a much bigger
population in urban cities. May not have that same affect in a small
community, because you're only hiring two or three.

The Chief here spoke about consent decree. We have consent
decree cities in this state. Those jurisdictions have a much harder time of
hiring police officers and firefighters because there is so much more criteria
you have to go through. You have Justice Department oversight of what --
you know, who is on the list, who’s hired, and so forth. So it’s not as
readily easy for-- If Jerramiah Healy turned around tomorrow and said,
“Let’s hire 50,” that 50 might take six months or eight months. So, again,
just understand, not every city is the same, and there are complexities when
we’re talking about the manpower when you have a class of 60, class of 70.
Because that’s how we hire. We don’t hire one or two when they leave.
We hire or make promotions on a bigger scale. So that’s just to answer
some of your questions.

Going back as a-- Now I'm going to put my other hat on as a
Councilman. We have a combination department. We have paid staff in
the daytime, we have volunteers at night time. One of the difficulties that
we’re facing right now is that we can’t get volunteers. Volunteers are slowly
but surely -- they’re retiring. I mean, they’re leaving. They no longer can
do it. We can’t backfill. So as a governing body, it makes it very difficult
for us as we go through the budget process. “Okay, how do we provide the
services?” So certainly it may-- Again, it may work in some communities --
it may work. You have a trove of people that you can get to become

volunteers. But certainly when you look at the 2 percent cap and the
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impositions that are imposed on municipalities to do the best, there’s
problems on the horizon. Certainly we’ve done -- we’re doing everything we
can with our volunteers to try to encourage them. But one of the things--
And we passed our budget, and we kept it under the cap. We’ve done
everything we need to do to make sure the taxpayers are taken care of.

But one of the things that the Assembly is -- you're talking
about right now, which I think would help in a lot of these situations here.
You have the energy tax receipts. West Windsor Township-- If you were
to return that to us, that’s $1.2 million that we get. If we got that money
back, certainly-- We’re short three police officers. We haven’t had them
for the past three years because we’ve been trying to be prudent with our
tax dollars. But if you gave us back the energy tax receipts-- And we’re
only $1.2 million. What’s Jersey City, what’s Elizabeth, what’s the other
big cities? What do they get back out of it? That could help in some of the
process here as far as getting police officers back, getting firefighters back,
because you have this. I know we passed a resolution from the Mayor and
Council. We sent that to the State House. Please, give us back our energy
tax receipts, because-- Again, I'm not saying it’s going to solve the whole
problem, but certainly it can help us in this endeavor right now to put
firefighters back, put police officers back, give the mayors and the councils
the opportunity to try to provide to the citizens the essentials they need as
far as police, fire, and EMS.

And I will just leave you with one more point.

Assemblyman Mainor, you may know, we had a mayor in
Jersey City one time -- okay? -- they laid off 50 police officers. And this

mayor’s idea was this: “If I have less police officers on the street, then I
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don’t have a police car responding to someone when they pick up 9-1-1 to
report a call.” Because, again, if no one has gotten there, it’s not reported.
Let’s not do the same thing here with our blinders. Let’s provide the tools
to municipalities so we can have someone respond when someone does pick
up 9-1-1, and not have the mentality of the former mayor who said, “No,
I'm going to lay them off. If they can’t respond there, it’s not reported.”
Let’s do the right thing.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: I want to thank you for that, and
I agree with you 100 percent. You are 100 percent right. That mayor did
make that comment, and that’s how he kept the crime stats lower, because
there was no one answering those calls. (laughter) So we were the safest
city at that time.

I’'m going to open it up. Does anyone have a question?

ASSEMBLYMAN CONNORS: Through the Chair; Chief, the
two grants that you said you were rejected for -- what are the names of
those?

CHIEF DYL: They were assistance to firefighter grants.

ASSEMBLYMAN CONNORS: And that was through the
State or Federal?

CHIEF DYL: Federal.

ASSEMBLYMAN CONNORS: Federal government?

CHIEF DYL: Yes.

MR. BASHIR: Could I just make a brief comment relative to
that? Some of the grants that you've been hearing about -- they’re

matching grants. Some of the municipalities may have the revenue to say,
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“Okay, we’ll pay the 20 percent, 25 percent, 30 percent, and the Federal
government will give the balance.” I can speak for Trenton. We got an
order from our Mayor and our Business Administrator. We cannot even
apply for grants if it’s matching. We just don’t have the money.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Assemblyman.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Are you the first responder in
medical emergencies as well, in Trenton?

MR. BASHIR: Yes, we do first response.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: All right. So you-- Many of you--

MR. BASHIR: We do 13,000 calls a year for first response.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: When we talk about these cuts, I
think it’s one of the things that we kind of haven’t emphasized enough
here. We’'re also providing less support for that first responder. What is it,
about 80 percent of fire around the state, or so, is first responder?

MR. BASHIR: I'm not really sure. I know it’s quite a few.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: [ see a couple heads nodding yes.
It’s pretty high, right?

MR. BASHIR: Yes, it is.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Are all you -- for your communities
that you represent?

CHIEF DYL: Yes.

MR. BOREK: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: So another factor in this that we
need to understand--

MR. BASHIR: Without a doubt. And one of the things that

we would possibly be looking at, in terms of cutting, is our first responder
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program. And I can also substantiate or back it up with facts or stories
where, because of our first responder program, lives have been saved.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: I suspect so.

I just have one other comment. You know, we’re talking about
experience. You can send all the experienced guys to a fire at my house any
time you want. (laughter) I’ll take them. And I can’t imagine that we don’t
want the right mix or feel that doesn’t work properly.

Thank you all for your service.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Assemblyman.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Sir, thank you.

I think you might have missed my point. What I was saying to
the Chief was take the 2 percent cap out of the picture, take the great
recession and its effects out of the picture. This country has an enormous
brain drain going on over the next 10 to 15 years due to the baby boomer
generation. And that is even more acute when you're able to retire at full
benefits after 25 years. So whether or not the 2 percent cap and great
recession, there is still going to be a brain drain that management has to
deal with.

There has been a great deal of focus, it seems, in the last two
sets of testimonies -- panels -- on the 2 percent cap. Let us not forget that
you can exceed the 2 percent cap. We had three towns do that, and two
failed last week, and one passed. So if the need is that great in your
community to provide for the safety of its citizens, there is an outlet. So
with all due respect to those who may feel that the 2 percent cap is flawed

in every respect, I see it as being very flexible in that respect. It’s up to the
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community leaders to sell to its community, “We have a justifiable reason
to exceed the 2 percent cap.” The same thing goes with school budgets.

I am thankful to Assemblymen Cryan and DiMaio for calling
attention to the whole interoperability issue. Because I think it’s an
oversimplification to say that we’re putting people at risk because of the 2
percent cap or because we're down on manpower. I think it might be bad
public policy to have mutual aid agreements with towns with which there
isn’t interoperability.

I know in Somerset County we are working urgently to have all
19 police departments on one frequency, all fire departments on one
frequency. And we just did a study in Somerset County. We have 19
police departments. We have 19 different sets of standard operating
procedures. Now, I'm not asking you, but rhetorically I would say, “Can
anyone explain to me why a road divides Bound Brook and Bridgewater?”
The response would be different depending on what side of the road you are
on. I mean, those are the kinds of things that our citizens don’t know, but
those are the kinds of things we do need to address.

MR. MARINO: It does, but-- I'm sorry, but one size doesn’t
fit all. So, I mean, the makeup of the community is going to determine how
or what you’re going to be doing.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: I'm not suggesting one size
fits all. But what I am saying is that it is an oversimplification to just say
this is about the 2 percent cap or manpower. It’s also about what Karcher
referred to as municipal madness when you have 566 towns. So when we talk
about doing more with less and working smarter, one of the things we need

to do, and I suggest -- on a regional basis with county government, speak to
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your county officials about getting regions consistent in their application of
services.

MR. MARINO: And I hear where you're going with it, and I
understand that. And yes, each town has the ability to exceed that 2
percent cap. I happen to live in one of them that did it. And we knew what
they were doing, and that was fine. Elected officials decided that that’s the
route we were going to go. Elected officials, when they’re going to their
own constituents, tend to not really want to put a question to them that
says, “I need to raise your taxes by this,” because they’re not going to be
voted in the next time they get in.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: I love what you're saying,
because that’s what the 2 percent cap is all about: making the local officials
tell people the truth.

MR. MARINO: Exactly.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: It’s one of the reasons why
State government took away the energy receipt tax and COMPTRA aid.
What it’s saying to local officials is, “We’re not going to allow you to
camouflage the true-blue cost of your municipal operation anymore with
these other revenues,” which towns are now trying to do with fees.

MR. MARINO: State government took away the ability of the
local elected officials to do what really needed to be done. They put a
blanket -- they put a one-size-fits-all, and it’s not one-size-fits-all.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: I would respectfully
disagree. I think there’s benefit.

Listen, a friend recently said to me, “I don’t know why you got

involved in elected office. I can’t think of a worse time to serve.” 1 can’t
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think of a better time to serve, because there’s a fundamental assessment
going on at every level of government as to how to deliver our services. I
think it’s a good exercise. Is it painful? You bet.

To Assemblyman DiMaio’s comments, New Jersey is not
immune. It’s the entire nation right now. It’s the entire nation. So we’ll
pull through this, but we really need to challenge ourselves.

The last comment I have to make, Chairman, before I leave is
that -- and I'm sorry that I have to leave -- but this panel referred back to
the Jersey City Police Chief’s testimony. I heard him say, “We shouldn’t be
punished for doing better.” They’ve got less cops, but yet had less crime
because of the way they’re deploying their cops. That kind of contradicts
what the professor from Rutgers was saying.

So not in all situations does a reduction result in an increase in
something else. And I think the Jersey City Police Chief’s testimony was
evidence of that.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: I want to thank you--

MR. MARINO: I can directly--

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Sir, excuse me.

MR. MARINO: I'm sorry.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Assemblyman, I understand what
you're saying, and I do remember the Chief saying that they have less cops
and less crime. That’s less reported crime, because the cops can’t get there
to take the reports. So we must keep that in mind.

Also, we have to remember that what’s good for Somerset

County is not good for Hudson County.
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ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: I couldn’t agree with you
more, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: It doesn’t work. It’s two
different animals. (applause)

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: They are.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: It’s totally two different animals
with Somerset County and Hudson County.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: You're not suggesting that
where there’s mutual agreements -- mutual aid agreements in place that
there shouldn’t be interoperability?

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: No, I'm not.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Or different sets of
standard operating procedures or couplings that are different from town to
town?

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Each town has a different
circumstance.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIATTARELLI: Okay, but that should not
be a regional issue. I don’t think you're suggesting that.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Well, that’s a conversation that
we need to have at another time.

But to end this here session at this time, I just want to say, in
reference to Trenton, it’s a shame to hear that you're saying there’s a
possibility that when something has to be cut, it may be the first
responders. I mean, that’s an issue that we really have to really, truly take

seriously and look into. And I want to let you know that, again, you're

105



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

educating this Committee. And hopefully we can come together and make
some suggestions for that not to happen.

MR. BARISH: Thank you very much. I appreciate it.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, gentlemen.

MR. MARINO: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: We're going to ask Anthony
Wieners, from the PBA; and Robert Quinlan, New Jersey State Association
of Chiefs of Police.

I'm going to remind you of our--

ANTHONY F. WIENERS: We have two minutes.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: --two minutes.

MR. WIENERS: I was hoping to open up today saying good
morning, but good afternoon. (laughter)

I’'m going to make it brief.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.

MR. WIENERS: And I could make it comical in saying that if
you think I'm going to stick to two minutes while Billy Lavin had 25--
(laughter)

But we’re all very passionate about what we do. And I want to
start off talking about myself. I'm a 32-year veteran of the Bellville Police
Department. I've been the PBA President for the State for the last five
years. I’d like to think that I've been very vocal on the issue of police
staffing.

But I want to talk about the Committee for a minute. This is
the most important committee in the State next to Homeland Security,

because your number one responsibly, being government, is to provide a
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safe and secure environment for all the citizens. Before anything else;
before education, before-- And all these other issues are important. The
streets should be dirty before they’re unsafe. I know a lot of your residents
of Jersey City would rather see a police car than a street sweeper, although
that is very important.

I am going to make it brief. I've provided written testimony
that I was going to testify on today. Everybody has a copy of it, along with
crime stats in the Uniform Crime report -- which I'd like to mention are a
few years old -- and some recent newspaper articles referring to
understaffing and how crime has risen. I think if we can--

I just want to note that it’s a breath of fresh air to come before
a committee and talk about crime and public safety along with the mayors,
and the directors, and the chiefs. Because in the past it was the PBA, the
FOP, the IAFF, and the FMBA, and we were labeled as alarmists,
fearmongers.

In September of 2010 I had a press conference in the State
House when we were facing the layoff of 60 Atlantic City police officers. At
the time they laid off those 60 officers, they did away with their
investigative unit. At that time there were nine unsolved homicides. I
mean, where are we going? If we can put this in a nutshell, our cities are in
turmoil and we’re in trouble, and we need some help.

I had mentioned that the understaffing levels-- We did away
with our gang units, our drug units, our warrant squads. And the Chief
from Jersey City -- I think it might have been interpreted wrong. If you
don’t have a gang unit -- gang investigative unit -- you're not making

arrests. And going along with gangs, you get drugs, and you get guns, you
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get violence you get leads to homicides -- your drug units. And it only
makes sense that when unemployment is up and the economy is down, and
police staffing is at its lowest, and gold is at $1,600 an ounce, you're going
to get burglaries, you're going to have street crimes. We need some help,
and we want to be a resource in providing some alternatives and some ideas,
and to work along with you, Chairman Mainor, to work through these
tough times. And I agree that it’s all economy driven. But our cities are in
turmoil.

December 26, the day of the big snow storm-- And I believe it
was up in Randolph -- where the front page of the Ledger, they had the
following day, where this-- They laid off a DPW worker, and some poor
gentleman had to shovel himself out to the end of the street to get to work.
But on Page 18 you had an incident in Newark where you had two kids
who killed each other. Where are our priorities?

Like I said, our number one responsibility is to provide a safe
and secure environment. And you -- when I mean you, I mean the
government -- has an obligation to give us the tools to do so to make sure
that my officers are safe and the people who we protect.

I just want to-- We’ve been labeled many things, me and Billy
Lavin. We work very closely. We’re very passionate about public safety. I
had two unfortunate incidents in the last year and a half. And it can relate
to understaffing. But when somebody is out on a warrant and kills one of
my police officers, or out on a parole violation and kills a police officer --
and there’s no warrant squad, no people out there making those arrests on
the warrants, or we're not going after parole violators -- and my officers are

losing their lives, I think it’s a disgrace. On that issue, when I came out
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very vocally when Officer Morgan was killed in Newark I was labeled as an
opportunist to get more members.

What are we doing here? Just take a ride around our cities.
When I did the press event on September 30 in Trenton, they were facing --
110 officers were facing layoffs. It didn’t happen at that time, but it
happened at a later date. Just steps from the State House. Everybody goes
into Trenton. They go in on 29 and they come down Calhoun and park on
State Street, and get out. Hang a left, go for a cup of coffee, go for a piece
of pizza. Let the Governor lose his State Troopers and go for a walk
through those neighborhoods. We had an incident there where they put a
hit out on the cops, and they had to take the cops off the street. What are
we doing?

I thank you for your time. I look forward to working with each
and every one of you. I'm going to leave my business cards. In my
testimony I had-- Assemblyman Cryan said more cops equals less crime. I
had the opportunity to go to Washington and the University of Omaha,
Nebraska -- University of Nebraska, Omaha had a very in-depth study on
that. I testified in Washington before then-Senator Biden. I urge you all to
research that report. And this gentleman who sat next to me from Rutgers--
Listen to what he said. Maybe you should bring him in at a later date and
on an individual basis and have him talk about crime and where we’re
going. But it’s not good.

I come here today as not only PBA President, but I come here
as a resident who loves this state. I come here as a husband whose wife
works in the inner city. I have two children who both use mass transit. So

I'm concerned. I care, we care, we all care together. But let’s figure it out.
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Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.

Mr. Quinlan.

CHIEF ROBERT B. QUINLAN: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

My name is Robert Quinlan. I'm Chief of Police of the Hillside
Police Department, which is in Union County.

I’'m here today on behalf of the New Jersey State Association of
Chiefs of Police. Unfortunately I didn’t have a lot of notice. I put a few
notes together. I don’t have a prepared speech for you, but I would like to
share a few thoughts.

I first want to thank you for the opportunity to come here and
speak before you.

I have just a little bit more seniority than my friend Mr.
Wieners here. 1 have 34 years of experience in police work as a police
officer in Hillside.

I'm here, though, out of concern not only for the policing
profession in general, but on a personal level, because I have a son who is
also a police officer. And he served four years in the Marines. Quite
frankly I'm more concerned about his safety now as a police officer than I
was when he was in the Marines. I'd like to explain why.

We've often heard the cliché that in public safety now we have
to do more with less. I disagree with that statement. I think what we’re
being forced to do is less with less. Many speakers who have been up here
today have been quite passionate in their statements. It’s obvious that they

care about what they do, and they want to do the best job they can, despite
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some of the roadblocks that have been thrown at us in the past two years
specifically.

About two years ago, the town where I work in Hillside had 77
police officers. We’re not a large city; we’re not like Jersey City or Newark.
But out of 77, we lost 11 through attrition and layoffs. That’s quite a few
officers for us to lose. It had a very substantial impact on a town like
Hillside.

From my experience, the budget cuts in municipalities like
Hillside have caused a number of detrimental impacts. It’s reduced police
safety, I think it’s impacted police performance and morale, I thinlk it’s
impacted public safety, I think it’s impacted the business community, and
it’s had various other impacts on the community. These are all interrelated.

I'd like to start off by talking about some of the ways police
safety has been impacted by some of these cuts. With fewer officers on the
streets, our officers are responding to crimes -- often violent crimes -- with
less show of force. This often results in criminal suspects more likely to
challenge police officers in their authority. Quite often this means more
fights, more struggles, police officers putting their hands on more people.
This equates to more lawsuits against townships. Almost every time the
police have to drag somebody in forcibly, there may very well be a lawsuit.
But there is some hope on the horizon for that. I'm very happy to hear that
we’re soon going to be having the tool of lasers available. And I hope that
will reduce some of the need for physical confrontations.

I've also witnessed that many officers are increasingly stressed
and fatigued not only by the stress of having less support, but by fatigue

brought on by moonlighting. Many of our officers have to moonlight now
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who never had to moonlight before. I'm talking about officers who
normally work during the day moonlighting at night; I'm talking about
officers who work during the night who moonlight during the day. It
creates tired cops, fatigued cops. I don’t want to get into all the intricacies
of it.

I just want to reiterate, I want to remind everybody that unlike
any other profession, police officers wield tremendous power. They have
the power to take life, liberty, and property without -- or I should say before
due process of law. We want officers out there who are clear-thinking, who
are making these critical decisions with a clear head and with a good night’s
rest. So I see some of these budget cuts as forcing police officers to go out
and moonlight. And the budget cuts I'm talking about may be freezes in
salaries, they may be reductions in salaries, they may be demotions, they
may be increased costs of healthcare benefits and pension deductions. My
son is dealing with what I never had to deal with before. He’s dealing with
reductions in his salary, he’s dealing with contributions to health care that I
never had to make, and he has a family to support, and he’s moonlighting.
And I worry about him. I worry about him getting enough rest. And I
don’t think a lot of cops are getting enough rest. That’s just one effect.
And as I've often said, every day and night police chiefs across New Jersey
are putting heavily armed men and women onto the streets of this state
quite often without enough rest. We want them sharp, we want them ready
to make those critical life decisions. They’re out there on their own and
they need every resource at their disposal. And we need them well-rested
and sharp at all times. Again, my concern is not only as a police chief but

as a father.
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The impact on performance and morale, I think, is evident.
Many police officers don’t have the promotional opportunities that many of
us have had in the past. They’re losing ambition, they’re showing less
initiative, and they’re not upwardly mobile as in the past. What this means
to a lot of people in New Jersey is police officers coming to their houses that
maybe don’t have any hope of a future. And I've experienced that in my
own Department where I have men and women who expected to be
promoted who are on promotion lists. They’ve given up all hope. And I
often ask people, “What would you rather have at your house -- coming to
your house at 3:00 in the morning when you hear glass breaking? Do you
want an officer just showing up, taking a report with a notebook in his
hand, or do you want a police officer getting to your house as fast as he can,
ready to chase somebody miles down a railroad track if need be?” I think
the answer is obvious.

I'd like to talk about a few of the ways the budget cuts have
reduced public safety. There has been a dramatic decrease in police
visibility on the streets in a lot of towns like my own, like Hillside, in Union
County.  There has been a corresponding decrease in effectiveness,
particularly affecting elderly residents. In Hillside, we’ve seen an increase in
crime against the elderly, particularly the elderly walking in their own
neighborhoods, walking from their homes -- from their cars into their
homes. We've had delays in response times to emergency calls. We’ve had
to reduce services dramatically.

The gentleman was here who is President of D.ARE. I'm
ashamed to say that in Hillside we had to cut out the D.A.R.E. program for

lack of funding. D.A.R.E. is no longer offered in the Hillside schools, and
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we need the D.A.R.E. program. Hillside is located in a very busy, urban
community. We’re bordered by some of the highest crime areas in the
state. Drugs are an influence, and they’re influencing our children. We've
been performing the D.A.R.E. program for well over 15 years. It’s now a
thing of the past, and I'm not proud to admit that.

We’ve had increased complaints from the public about quality
of life violations that we can no longer address. We’ve had reductions in
our detective bureau staff. Our narcotics investigations have been
dramatically reduced. We no longer can respond to motor vehicle accidents
unless there is somebody injured. Some departments have had to take more
drastic measures than we’ve had.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Chief, I'm going to have to cut
you off. I'm going to ask that you summarize. We have to be out by 3:00,
and we have a number of people behind you.

CHIEF QUINLAN: Okay, I will do that.

I just would like to say that this notion I often hear about
taking cops out from behind the desks and putting them on the street--
Personally, I think that’s a lot of bologna. The cops you're taking from
behind desks are largely experienced police officers who are older and more
mature. They’re detectives. They’re experts at what they do. To take these
guys -- many of them older, older than me -- and put them on the streets
doesn’t help policing. It makes them-- It’s just putting ineffective cops on
the streets.

So I will cut my -- I'll cut it short. In closing, I'd just like to say
that the police profession in this state has been very much impacted by

these cuts, and I'm sure I'm speaking for police chiefs throughout New
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Jersey. We've dealt with it in many different ways. Some of us have done
our best to cut down our departments, to cut some fat where we can, but
it’s not easy. And we’re going to continue to do our best with what we
have.

But I would like to salute one man in this room who has been a
steadfast supporter of the police, and fire, and public service, and that’s
Assemblyman Cryan. I want to thank him on behalf of the Township of
Hillside and a lot of other police departments. He’s been there for us, and 1
salute him for that.

If you have any questions, I'd be happy to take them. But,
again, I want to thank you all for having us here today.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, too, sir.

Assemblyman, do you have any questions? (no response)

Thank you.

MS. WHITBECK: The next person to be invited to the
testimony table is Steven Demofonte, Fraternal Order of Police; and James
Stewart, Fraternal Order of Police.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: I'm going to ask that you state
your name for the record. And let us remember the time. I notice we have
three people.

STEVEN J. DEMOFONT E: I'll explain.

Mr. Chairman, thank you very much.

I'm Steve Demofonte. I represent the 16,000 members of the
Fraternal Order of Police in New Jersey. I have a prepared, three-page

statement. I'm not going to read it. I think everybody who is still here --
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unfortunately we don’t have half the Committee still in attendance, but
they can read it.

With me I have the honor to present Camden City FOP
President John Williamson, and Newark City FOP President James Stewart.
We have some interesting material, facts, figures that are all included in the
packets that we’ve submitted. They’re thick; I understand that.

So right off the bat, the purpose of government is to enable the
people of a nation to live in safety and happiness. Government exists for
the interest of the governed, not the governors. And that was Thomas
Jefferson, one of our founding fathers who built this government -- was
instrumental in its creation, in its formation of its rules -- recognized so
many years ago -- that we are about providing for safety, and comfort, and
happiness to our citizenry.

Before you are law enforcement officers of this state who have
sworn to do that. We represent small departments, large departments all
across this state. And frankly, you've already heard it enough today, I
think. We’re being worked to death. We’re being forced to work more
hours, we’re being forced to endure hardships financially and emotionally
because we have-- What we used to have was a support system in place
with other officers, with backups. We don’t have that anymore. We've
been forced to accept contracts and collective bargaining negotiations that
are not negotiations. We’ve been forced to make concessions on these
contracts under the threat of layoff. We’ve had to take hits on our salaries,
we’ve had to take hits on our pensions -- all things that were in place long
before we were hired and after we were hired for almost 20 years. Now

we're expected to make more financial payments. So are they angry? Are
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my members angry? Yes. Are they disheartened? Yes. Every emotion that
you can feel when you're under crisis my members are feeling right now.

Some of you who have a history in law enforcement who sit on
this Committee understand that frustration. And I don’t-- And I apologize
for making it so blunt. But it’s not fair, and something is going to give. It’s
going to come. Cops are dying, maybe from heart attacks, maybe on the
job, maybe off the job. But cops are dying and they’re hurting. And it’s
because of the way they’re being treated by government and people in
authority who say, “You're fat, you're lazy, you're slovenly, you're greedy
public workers.” It’s not fair.

I implore you to do three things: restore State budgetary
funding to the various public safety pension systems and restore the rules
governing -- and remove the rules governing the funding of the pension
system from politics. The days of pension holidays have to go. The days of
underfunding the pension system have to go. My officers have to have an
agreement when they get hired -- and complete confidence in this
government -- they have to understand that when they get hired for this
job, number one, they’ll have back up and that their futures are assured if
they do everything they’re supposed to do. And every day I have officers
out there doing everything they’re supposed to do, and are rewarded with
takeaways and out-and-out theft from their purses because somebody in
authority decided that they should be paying for their health care, or they
should be paying more for their pensions, or they should just be paying
more for other benefits that they receive. It wasn’t negotiated, it wasn’t

bargained. It was just taken.
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Increase assistance to local governments for the purpose of
hiring and retaining law enforcement officers. The State has a grant
program in place. It’s the Safe and Secure Communities Program. It was
established in 1993 and provides funds for local governments to hire and
retain cops. Plain and simple: You have to fund it and you have to keep
funding it. In fact, we ask that you fund it more as part of the budgetary
process.

Third: restore elements of collective bargaining to a
fundamentally fair process. You have taken away, not personally but
collectively, the ability of law enforcement and public servants in this state
to negotiate fair contracts. You've done it by imposing arbitrary standards
on arbitrators to cap those awards at a certain figure, even though salaries
haven’t been going up in proportion to the cost of living; yet they continue
to maintain these arbitrary rules.

As you’ve heard already in this Committee, every community in
this state is different. What I have is not what either officer on the side of
me has. When I retired I didn’t get health benefits upon retirement, yet
people in this state still continue to believe that law enforcement officers in
this state, by and large, receive health benefits after retirement. I pay for
my health retirement, thank you very much -- and I'd like to make that a
matter of record -- as others very well do.

And I'm going to close with Assemblyman Cryan’s comment
earlier on the report from the doctor from the Rutgers School of Criminal
Justice. When you have more cops, you have less crime. When you lay off
cops, people die, whether it’s one of my guys or one of our citizens, and it

has to stop.
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Thank you very much.

I will answer any questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.

I’'m going to ask one of you gentlemen to start speaking but to
please adhere to the three minutes.

JAMES STEWART JR.: Yes, sir.

Thank you for the opportunity today.

I'm James Stewart, and I'm the President of Newark Fraternal
Order of Police Lodge 12, the union representing the men and women in
the state’s largest city. I'm proud to say I'm a fourth generation Newark
police officer. My great-grandfather came on the job in 1890, followed by
my grandfather in 1940, my father in 1977, and I joined the Department in
1995. Subsequently, my younger brother came on in 2007.

If things don’t change -- the way things are going in public
safety today -- I will not be encouraging my children to follow in my
footsteps. Things must change; things are getting dangerous out there.
They need to be corrected.

Clearly the men and women of public safety are in the
crosshairs of the politicians, both locally and in Washington. The
perception from the public is that we are the reason for their blight. Their
taxes are too high, their request for services aren’t answered. Maybe the
price of gas is too high. Everything seems to be pointed back at us. We are
the reason for that. Cries that our benefits are too rich, our pay is too high
is what we hear all the time. Clearly that’s not the case. They seem to

think that if our benefits are reduced they’ll benefit financially.
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We all took this job knowing the risks that we had -- the
physical and mental stress that we have to deal with, missing kids plays, the
things that go along with being a police officer -- we accepted that.

Last year we had the Legislature down in Trenton impose new
penalties upon us -- increase in pension, increase in healthcare costs. Again,
it was legislatively-- It’s something we’re dealing with.

Now, thanks to cuts in budgetary aid, the Newark Police
Department is down 200 members at least in the last 17 months. That
doesn’t include the men and women who retired in 2010. Since November
of 2010, when we lost 162 officers, another 36 who retired in 2011, and
another 44 who are currently scheduled-- But like Chief Healy said earlier
today, we also expect that number to balloon as we get closer to the
beginning of 2013, due to the oncoming additional healthcare benefits the
Newark Police Department officers are going to have to pay because our
contract expires at the end of 2013. So that’s easily over 200 men and
women gone in the last 17 months, and I haven’t even gotten out the
calculator yet to be more specific.

The City of Newark has no provisions to hire anybody new.
There is no hiring process in place. We're at levels that we had in 1987.
The crime problem is not the level we had in 1987. Crime today is through
the roof. We have a gang problem that is out of control. It is not
uncommon to recover automatic weapons that our armed forces see in
Afghanistan and Iraq in the streets in Newark. We have crime scenes with
50-plus shell casings scattered about. This is a war zone going on in
Newark. We have a carjacking problem so prevalent we now have a task

force to combat it. That task force consists of detectives who go out after
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the fact. It’s not really a task force. They’re reacting just like the guys in
the radio car are reacting. We no longer have the added personnel to have
that -- every cop on the corner, the operation impact we had several years
ago, utilizing members just out of the academy. We don’t have those guys
anymore, let alone that program. That’s where the citizens of Newark are
suffering. You all heard the term -- or some of you may have said the term
-- “Wow, Newarlk; that’s a tough place.” Well, imagine it now down 200-
plus members in the last 17 months.

Funding for new police officers is not a luxury, it is a necessity.
At some point in every cop’s career -- every cop sitting here behind me
knows what I'm talking about -- you reach the point where you are no
longer able to be the front-line officer. It doesn’t mean you have to give up
the job; there are other places for you. You can be a supervisor, the
detective squad, the traffic squad, what have you. But you cannot be that
front-line cop anymore. Age and injury takes its toll on all of us. The bad
guy never gets older. He is always 22 years old.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: I have to ask you to close it out.

MR. STEWART: I'm going to close up, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you.

MR. STEWART: The bad guy is always 22 years old. He’s
always eager to fight or run. When he gets arrested, another 22-year-old
replaces him. When that guy falls victim to the streets, he’s replaced by a
22-year-old. We need the funds to be able to hire younger police officers to
keep us physically safe out in the street and doing the job we need to do.

My package is in writing. There are several attachments to it. I

hope you review it when you have time. And I appreciate the time today.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.

JOHN D. WILLIAMSON: I'm going to keep-- I'm going to be
very, very brief. I want to give you something -- give everybody something
to think about.

We’ve been accustomed to doing more with less.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Could you state your name just
for the record?

MR. WILLIAMSON: John Williamson, President of the
Fraternal Order of Police in Camden.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you.

MR. WILLIAMSON: The general atmosphere is: do more with
less. But in our communities -- dealing with crime -- the criminals see that
the numbers of police officers are slowing dwindling, but their numbers
aren’t dwindling. They’re concept or their thinking is, “There’s less cops, so
it’s time to recruit more of us.” Cops go down, crime thrives.

And to have the mentality that public safety, first responders
should do more with less is simply not fair to the residents of our
community or your constituents.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you.

Assemblyman, anything? (no response)

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN CRYAN: Laying off cops in Newark and
Camden: How stupid can that be?

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: I agree.
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MS. WHITBECK: We have Gerald Lyons, Jersey City; and
Esther Wintner, from Jersey City, to come up and testify.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: I'm going to ask that you just
state your name for the record. And please remember our three minutes.
GERALD LYONS: Two is fine. (laughter)

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Great. Thank you, sir.

MR. LYONS: My name is Gerald Lyons. I live in Jersey City,
and I've been an educator here for 25 years. And I thank you today for
honoring my alma mater and my neighborhood by having the meeting here.

I live next door to the vacant Greenville Hospital. =~ That’s
become a huge problem now because of drugs, violence, illegal dumping,
and vandalism. Apparently there’s 180 buildings in Jersey City that are
now vacant, which adds to all the work that the police have to do.

I also teach at County Prep High School in Jersey City. The
problem with gangs has infiltrated our school. We’ve been on lockdown
several times. In fact, we now have five different levels of lockdown
depending on whether it’s going on within our grounds, within our school,
in the neighborhood, which is now-- When we were kids we had duck and
cover for nuclear bombs. Now we have all types of real situations where
people are trying to break into our school to get at kids in there. It’s gotten
to the point now where we have to have cops waiting at the bus stops
because the gang members are going on to the bus looking for the people
they’re after.

The kids stop coming to school if they feel they can’t be safe.
It’s not just in the school; it’s getting to and from the school. I know

because we constantly contact the police, and we know how stressed they
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are, how limited they are in what they can do with all the resources. I hope
people start realizing that you cannot take money away from the police and
the firemen, because these jobs are important to the inner city for us to
successfully live here in the city. And I hope they do everything they can to
reinstate any money they can so they can operate efficiently.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you, sir.

Ms. Wintner.

ESTHER WINTN ER: My name is Esther Wintner. I'm a
resident of Jersey City.

Firstly, thank you all for coming. I hope this is the first of
many other meetings here in Jersey City -- and invite other committees to
our great city.

The issue of crime is an ongoing concern and is one that can
only be combated when all factions agree to work in unison. It is neither a
campaign issue nor a weapon to be used against political opponents for
one’s own benefit.

Jersey City, often referred to as the economic engine of the state,
faces its own set of challenges, especially in the area of public safety. We
have a wide range of socioeconomic strata with many varied constituencies
seeking assistance for different needs.

To face these challenges due to economic downturns, Jersey
City has been forced to live with the reduction in manpower in its public
safety divisions. Unlike other cities, this was managed over a number of

years through attrition rather than layoffs.
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It is essential that as a city we begin focusing on rebuilding a
diminished force. As a consequence of this reduced force, areas of the city
have begun to see a spike in crime. I have experienced this upward trend.
My car was broken into, my home burglarized; and just two months ago my
child was mugged outside our home in the afternoon by two men who said
they had a gun, on what is considered one of the safer streets in the area.

It is just within the last year that residents read about the
savage beating and rape of a woman, the beating of a pastor in a robbery
attempt, multiple carjackings, muggings of the elderly, robberies, shootings,
and the list goes on. The recent town hall meetings held through various
parts of our city by our Mayor and Police Chief have brought to light the
concerns of residents who feel as if they live under siege. Is this our
America?

We must be proactive, using the lessons of our own past so that
we will never again resemble the broken city of the 1970s. Jersey City, due
to its close proximity to New York, has the best potential for attaining
economic liberty, self-determination, and continuing to remain the
economic engine that the State depends heavily on. Our Gold Coast and
Wall Street West have contributed the corporate revenue that has benefited
not only our city, but the State as well.

We sit here at the crossroads of gangs, drugs, and terrorism.
The first World Trade Center bombers used Jersey City as their home base.
Our proximity to New York City and the lifelines of roads and rails that run
to New York through here are always tempting targets. Jersey City is one of
two cities and seven counties classified as a member of six Tier 1 urban

regions considered at greater risk of terrorist attacks.
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As per the 2010 municipal law enforcement response to the
New Jersey State Police gang survey, Jersey City is listed as having large
populations of three major gangs. In addition to its own gang problems, we
also get the overflow of Newark’s gangs coming down the pipeline of Routes
I and 9. A police force stressed to handle its daily duties cannot be
expected to do the necessarily intelligence and intervention work to keep
these problems at bay. It puts all of our safety at risk, and you cannot allow
that to happen.

It is for the reasons stated that I respectfully request the
following for your consideration: Firstly, the support of all Committee
members in assisting to attain the United States Department of Justice’s
COPS grant for the City of Jersey City’s Fiscal Year 2012. As you heard
our Police Chief and Mayor talk about this grant, our City was denied the
past two times because of the fact that the City had suffered no police
layoffs. The City did, in fact, experience furloughs and the layoff of 350
low-level employees who were made the sacrificial lambs, who allowed us to
keep public safety first and foremost while at the same time halting the
unsustainable level of tax increases we had experienced. Difficult decision-
making such as this should be recognized and rewarded, not punished. As
time is of the essence, your calls to our Federal representatives supporting
this grant is essential in helping us to realize this request.

Secondly, as we’ve heard about the UEZ funding, our Police
Department was supplemented in part by UEZ funding. That funding has
gone from approximately $15 million two years ago to $7.5 million last

year, and this year to zero dollars.
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While I concur with our Governor’s wishes to restrict the use of
UEZ funding for its intended purpose of urban renewal, it is my belief that
there will be no urban renaissance, no matter how much is invested,
without first ensuring safe communities. It is the natural order of
progression.

I request alternate funding, as a line item appropriation,
dedicated solely to the Jersey City Police Department for Fiscal Year 2012
in the amount of $1 million, and a commitment for the same amount for
Fiscal Years 2013 and 2014 to fund manpower and cameras. This lifeline
would allow the Administration to focus on strategically setting a course for
economic expansion, which would benefit not only our city but the state as
a whole.

Lastly, I invite you to join us on a tour of our city so you can
understand better the challenges we face and see the gears that make the
economic engine of this state run.

I would like to just add on one last note. After sitting here for
the past couple of hours and listening to the many people who have come
here on bended knee looking for money -- and we’re blaming the 2 percent
cap, and we’re looking at budgetary cuts, and all of the issues that we face --
as an American, as a resident of Jersey City, I find it very upsetting, I find it
sad, and I find it galling that our Federal government will find money to--
How we spend our money is how we set our priorities. When our Federal
government gives out a $592,000-plus grant to study the origin of behavior
as to why chimpanzees throw food and feces; or when we spend $375,000
over the course of two years to study the effect of cocaine and risky

behavior in Japanese quails, I think we have a real problem. Much in the

127



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

same way that I put pressure on our local level -- and now I'm here before
you and putting pressure on you -- I hope that this body will now turn and
look upward and put pressure where it needs to be placed so that we can get
the funding that we need at the local level. Because what we are doing here
today should never happen in our great country of America.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you very much.

Seeing that there are no other slips, people to testify, I'm going
to say thank you very much for coming out.

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBERS OF AUDIENCE: (indiscernible)

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR:  Was there someone else?
(affirmative responses)

Did you fill out testimony slips?

UNIDENTIFIED MEMBERS OF AUDIENCE: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Would you please come forward?

Are these the last two? Is there anyone else who filled out a
slip? (no response)

If you would, just state your name, please, for the record.
CHIEF MICHAEL ROBERTS: Good afternoon, Chairman
and members of the Committee.

My name is Michael Roberts. I'm the Chief of the Millburn
Fire Department, in Essex County.

Assemblyman Cryan, I believe I represent that small fire
department that you spoke about.

We're a small career -- combination career/volunteer fire

department. We're not big, but I think we experience a lot of the problems
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that larger cities have. We have a career department of 47 members, a
community we serve of 20,000 people.

I think you’ve heard most of what’s going on and the challenges
with mutual aid and with staffing. And I don’t think in a small department
we're any different. In some ways I think it’s worse. I just replaced seven
people in our Department. Now, we’re fortunate. And as Mayor Healy
said, Millburn is a well-run community. We did not have to lay off. We
saved for a rainy day. And as my boss says, we're spending that money in
hopes to hold the line.

But we didn’t have to lay off. So the punishment for that is the
request that we receive for mutual aid. And I understand it’s the cost of
doing business. I have to give mutual aid in order to receive it. My town is
willing to allow me to pay overtime for backfill. Now, last year I -- we
responded to 186 requests out of Millburn for mutual aid to anywhere in
Essex, Union. We did not go to Hudson County. In return, we requested
mutual aid into Millburn 79 times. So when I sit at a budget meeting and
my elected officials ask me to define that word mutual, and why are we
subsidizing other departments that are not willing to make those staffing
levels that are needed, I don’t have that answer.

You know, I sit in the seat the same as many other chiefs, and
we talk about response time and how critical it is. And that’s why Millburn
has a career department. We respond to about 2,000 calls a year, and that
is not first responder. We do not involve ourselves in EMS, although we
require our people to be EMTs.

I'm stuck with the same budget challenges. We’re being as

creative as we can. We’ve had a shared service with our dispatch center for
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28 years, long before the word shared service became popular in the last 3 or
4. We've ask the Chief of the Department next to me -- and myself --
requested a shared service study to be conducted between our two
departments to come up with a best practice sharing of services, with the
possibility to look at combining our two departments. Our mayors didn’t
ask us to do that. We came up and asked to do it together. But the
difference was looking at what happened in North Hudson. We wanted to
do it the right way; we wanted to bring labor and management together and
do it together. We have open communications. They’re part of the
committee. So we’re trying to be creative in making strides.

But what keeps me up at night is the shell game that I never
know where we’re going to go on mutual aid. We have new people who still
have to be trained. And as I said--

It’s two minutes; it’s been a long day. But I just want to go on
record. Small towns are no different than larger communities. And you
talkk about response times. If I have to go into a community three towns
away, our drivers don’t know where they’re going. So you don’t have a
short response time, even when our members are in other towns ready to
respond.

So I thank you. I feel great today being here, along with other
chiefs, mayors, and business administrators. I know I'm not in the same
boat. I know we’re all on the same playing field, and I appreciate your help.

I did testify last year in Trenton. I was disappointed that
nothing came out of it, but I'm not willing to give up. So if you have
another meeting, I’d be more than happy to be here.

Thank you all very much.

130



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Chief, I thank you. And I
apologize for missing you, but you had noted there was no need to testify
on your slip. That was the reason you weren’t called. But I apologize.

CHIEF ROBERTS: I apologize for checking the wrong box.
(laughter)

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: No problem.

Sir, if you could just state your name.

LATHEY WIRKUS: Yes, Lathey Wirkus. I'm the Union County
Fire Coordinator.

And in order to stick to your time frame, I'll apologize in
advance for being blunt.

I'm a battle-tested fireground commander with 35 years
experience. If you look at the definition under the law of what mutual aid is,
mutual aid is to be used after your community handles its expected
emergencies. So if you have high rises, if you have planes that come into
your community, shipping ports, you should be able to handle those
emergencies.

How has mutual aid changed? You heard about the talk of the
Hoboken fire. Well, I served at the Hoboken fire. And I'm the Union
County Fire Coordinator. And I responded there at a request for assistance,
which is not only going countywide, but it’s now becoming statewide.

You heard about manpower reports. There is a 2 percent cap
imposed by my wife, so I only have one copy for each of you that I will
leave here. (laughter) But basically I'm telling you factual information.
The fire companies that respond are undermanned. There is not enough

personnel on board.

131



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

I will leave you three studies that will prove that, over the years,
the fire trucks that pull up now don’t have enough people to do the job. So
when they question why the fires are getting larger, it’s a no-brainer.

In 1990, there was a report from Union County Fire Mutual
Aid where there were 88 requests for mutual aid. That’s 1990. To date --
and this was done on Sunday, and we can add two to this -- the total
requests are already at 72 out of Union County, with not 50 or 60 pieces of
apparatus, but hundreds of apparatus being requested not only to the local
community, but beyond our boundaries. These requests, and last year’s
requests, are in the 365 range, one per day. That is not what mutual aid
was meant for.

So what does all this mean? And I can tell you this factually --
35 years of experience. The fires are getting bigger. I'm seeing it firsthand.
I'm there, I'm watching it. I can tell you, “Save your money for reports that
you're going to request.” I can tell you this: Injuries and deaths for
firefighters and civilians will increase. It’s a no-brainer. It’s going to be
there, so don’t bother doing those studies. I'm telling you, factually, it’s
going to happen.

The overall problem with all of this is an ineffective response.
We’re responding to these fires with not enough people, we're relying on
mutual aid, and the fires are getting bigger.

One thing that I heard mentioned here that I find interesting
was the fact that everyone has different couplings. There is a fire chief who
retired out of Union. His name is Charlie Hall. And 25 years ago he went
before the Legislature and tried to push the fact that we need to

standardized couplings and hydrants. Twenty-five years ago he brought
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that up. And if you have time, stop by. He’ll tell you the story. No one
listened. So we’re here today talking about hydrants that open different in
Hoboken. When my guys got there -- trying to open the hydrant -- they're
not getting any water. They open different from where I come from. So I
need you to understand that.

In closing I will say this: All I ask everyone to do is tell the
public the truth. We cannot serve you in the way we did in the past. Your
fire will get bigger. It’s proven. Look on the TV. We have never, never
had as many multiple-alarm fires as we are having. The fires are growing,
people’s houses are burning that don’t need to burn. This is a proven fact.
So that’s all I ask -- is tell the public the truth.

We have mandated things that we can’t live up to. So they
need to know that when we come, we cannot do an effective job.

Thank you very much for your time.

ASSEMBLYMAN MAINOR: Thank you.

Assembly people? (no response)

Thank you, gentlemen.

Seeing that there are no others, we are going to close out.

Meeting is adjourned.

(MEETING CONCLUDED)
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OFFICE OF THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR
THE CITY OF EAST ORANGE, NEW JERSEY

44 CITY HALL PLAZA
EAST ORANGE, NEW JERSEY 07019

ROBERT L. BOWSER

Mayor
JILLIAN C. BARRICK Telephone: (973)
266-5310
City Administrator Fax: (973) 675-
5090

April 25, 2012

STATE ASSEMBLY LAW AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING
TESTIMONY

Thank you for having me here this morning. My name is Jillian Barrick, and I am the
City Administrator for the City of East Orange. Our City is geographically small but
heavily populated with public safety needs that are typical for a somewhat urban
community. Over the last few years, the City has experienced multi-faceted budget
constraints that have directly impacted on our ability to provide services to our
constituents; particularly Police and Fire services which account for more than half of our
operating budget. As with any municipality, public safety is the foundation of the
services we provide and essential to our sustainability; so without effective public safety

services the financial recovery of our City would be in jeopardy.

We have done the best we can despite the increasingly limited resources available to us.
But the cost of providing these services at a level that is expected and deserved by our
residents continues to grow faster than the resources available to fund them. T would like

to describe the tough choices we have made to illustrate the impact of these budget cuts
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on our public safety services.
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POLICE

As part of the City’s efforts to balance the FY2011 budget, the City was forced to lay off
16 of the 258 sworn police personnel and eliminate any vacancies created by retirements
and separations. As a result, the Police Department adjusted their crime fighting

strategies to fit the available resources while maintaining a satisfactory level of service.

To ensure a consistent police presence, all sworn personnel were reassigned to patrol
duties including investigative personnel who were often instructed to be in uniform to
assist in patrolling duties. All nonessential administrative personnel of all ranks were
also redeployed to the Patrol Division leaving the remaining minimal administrative staff

members to ensure that the day to day operations of the department were still run

effectively.

Investigative techniques were also modified to reduce the amount of time spent
conducting criminal investigations. Nonetheless, a backlog of investigations was created

for a short period because of the redeployment of these personnel for patrol.

One of the most significant modifications was to shift the manpower focus from soft
crime to violent crime. In that effort we were successful in achieving a 14% reduction in
violent crime in 2011. But at the same time fewer personnel were available to respond to
and investigate non-violent crimes which are more likely to impact the average citizen.

As aresult, we saw an increase in this category for the first time in 7 years.

Reduced manpower has a direct effect on the officers who remain, increasing fatigue,
injury and burnout. Further, despite the successes achieved even with all of these

challenges, I have no way of rewarding them, decimating morale and creating distrust in

our leadership.

The City’s youth have also been impacted by the reduction of school resource officers by

60 percent and the number of crossing guards by a third.

In addition to personnel reductions, spending on equipment is at a bare minimum. And
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our fleet is deteriorating faster than we can repair or replace vehicles. We have had to
rely on grants and forfeiture funds that are inconsistent and nonrecurring. Training and

recertification for our personnel has also been adversely impacted.

Overall, our Police Department is close to maximum capacity without some sustained

financial relief.

FIRE

Our Fire Department has been similarly impacted by the financial challenges facing the
City. The table of organization calls for 170 sworn personnel but we are only staffed to
85% capacity. Because our complement is down, we have had to take a company out of
service, so they are forced to respond to the same amount of calls with fewer people and
one less apparatus causing an increase in injuries and fatigue. Morale has also

substantially declined.

Despite reduced headcount and limited resources, we’ve responded to an increase in calls
for mutual aid from neighboring municipalities with similar fiscal challenges. In 2007,
East Orange responded to 77 calls for mutual aid, but in 2011 responded to 125 calls for
mutual aid, a 63% increase in 5 years. Two of our neighboring towns, Orange and
Irvington, have substantially increased their use of mutual aid during that time period
from 20 calls to 41 calls and 27 calls to 77 calls respectively. This increase in calls
continues to tax our limited manpower and equipment without equal benefit to East

Orange.

Our ability to repair and replace old equipment has also been substantially limited. Our
fleet of fire apparatus is aging and in some cases has gone beyond industry standards for
the useful life of frontline apparatus. The older the equipment the more likely it is to
need repairs and the more expensive repairs become. Older apparatus also does not
always perform at peak levels when needed- thereby risking delay or injury when

responding to calls for emergency.

v



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

Further, we have had to reduce the amount of fire safety education programs in the
community due to lack of funding in the budget. The same can be said about the ongoing
training we provide for the men and women of the department, which is a critical part of

preparing our personnel for emergency response.

CLOSING

In closing, our City’s public safety services have been impacted greatly by recent
economic realities and its resulting impact on our operating budget. I believe we have
two of the best public safety agencies in the State, and those men and women work hard
for us. But we are not in a position to support them the way they should be because of
our financial constraints. I will continue to be as creative as possible to create financial
relief so that we can properly invest in these important functions, but only so much blood
can be squeezed from a turnip, and I’m sure East Orange is not alone in these challenges.
I appreciate your attention and consideration of these issues and offer any assistance you

may find helpful to identify viable solutions.

Thank you for your time.
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New Jersey State Legislature, Assembly Law and Public Safety Committee

Robert Apel, Ph.D.

Associate Professor of Criminal Justice
Rutgers University

123 Washington Street

Newark, NJ 07102
robert.apel@rutgers.edu

April 25, 2012

By way of background, | hold a Ph.D. in criminology and criminal justice from the University of Maryland,
and | am currently on the faculty of the School of Criminal Justice at the Rutgers University, Newark
campus. My substantive expertise largely concerns the impact of employment and the labor market on
criminal behavior. Also, | have recently co-written a review of the research on criminal deterrence, in
particular the degree to which police have a causal impact on crime rates. | would be happy to briefly
share with the committee some of the findings from academic research that might be of use in
discussions about the impact of budget cuts on public safety.

XXX

| will begin by providing an overview of what we know about the impact of police manpower on crime
rates. Research in the last 15 years has shown quite consistently that law enforcement has a substantial
deterrent impact on crime rates. Specifically, putting more sworn personnel on the street—either by
hiring new officers or by allocating existing officers in ways that put them on the street in larger
numbers or for longer periods of time—has a substantial deterrent effect on serious crime. It is very
important to point out that police manpower studies speak only to the number and allocation of police
officers, and not to what police officers actually do on the street. That being said, most estimates reveal
that a 10% annual increase in police manpower yields a reduction in total crime in the neighborhood of
3%, although reductions in violent crime tend to range from 5-10%.

The figures cited above are from studies that attempt to quantify what is referred to as the “marginal
deterrent effect” of police. That is, the impact of additions to, or subtractions from, law enforcement
personnel which are by and large incremental in nature. What might be of greater interest to this
committee are studies of the impact of substantial reductions in police manpower on crime rates.
Unfortunately, there is much less empirical evidence that addresses this.

| can identify only a single, direct study of the impact of law enforcement cuts on public safety. In 2003,
the Oregon State Police underwent a massive layoff in which 35% of troopers were cut. This led to a
substantial decrease in citations and, as a consequence, an increase in the number of highway injuries
and fatalities, on the order of 10-20%.

Other, indirect evidence for the impact of changes in law enforcement staffing stems from studies of
municipal police strikes. Regrettably, very little of this evidence comes from the United States, and what
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evidence there is, is historical rather than contemporary. The international research suggests that large
reductions in police presence due to strikes are often followed by increases in assaultive violence,

looting, and disorderly behavior.

XXX

What necessarily complicates any assessment of the impact of law enforcement cuts on public safety is
the current economic climate. The unemployment rate is as high as it has been since the early 1980’s,
and recovery from the recession has been slower than expected, based on the rate of growth following
previous recessions. As we will see, high unemployment and periods of recession are mildly
criminogenic, for at least certain kinds of crime.

Criminological research shows that the state of the economy is consistently correlated, albeit weakly,
with “acquisitive crimes” such as robbery, burglary, larceny, and vehicle theft. For example, rates of
acquisitive crime increase by about 1-3% when the unemployment rate increases by 10%, say from 8%
to 8.8%. Furthermore, based on national studies of the business cycle, we know that robbery and
burglary are strongly countercyclical, meaning that they have a reliable tendency to increase during
periods of economic contraction and to decrease during periods of economic growth. Interestingly,
economic conditions are not consistently correlated with violent crimes like murder, rape, and

aggravated assault.

Even in the absence of law enforcement cuts, then, we would expect either modest growth, or
otherwise slowed reductions, in some crimes, strictly due to short-term fluctuation in economic health.
This means that, in this recession and recovery, it requires even more attention to be devoted to law
enforcement staffing and initiatives that can mitigate the impact of the economy.

XXX

I am very grateful for the opportunity to address the committee on the urgent issue of budget cuts and
public safety. Allow me to volunteer my assistance, and the assistance of the School of Criminal Justice,
for future deliberations where the state of research evidence on criminal justice issues is required.
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WILLIAM J. LAVIN
PRESIDENT

February 28, 2012
Dear Assemblyman Mainor,

There is a serious public safety crisis in New Jersey and I feel it is my responsibility
to request a special public hearing within your Homeland Security and State
Preparedness Committee.

For reasons directly related to recent legislation, fire departments across the State
of New Jersey either through attrition, layoffs, or demotions, have understaffed their
departments to such critical levels that local city departments can no longer
respond safely and efficiently within the borders of their own city. The result of this
understaffing has created an ever growing dependence on “mutual aid” from not
only neighboring communities, but in some instances, deployment of fire
departments from as much as 20 miles away, spanning three counties.

Since December 21, 2012 there have been at least eight multiple alarm fires which
demanded in excess of ten fire departments responding. The following are only a
few examples of the dangerous realities our firefighters face every single day since
the 2 percent cap has come into law.

December 21 - Elizabeth, NJ - Burry Biscuit Warehouse Fire on Newark Avenue
required the presence of over 20 fire departments, some as far away as Jersey City.

December 25 - Elizabeth, NJ - Fire at the corner of Grier and Summer Streets. First
responding companies came from Cranford, Kenilworth, and Clark, due to Elizabeth
companies fighting the warehouse fire as well as an additional 3 alarm blaze.

January 19 - Seven alarm fire in Union City, NJ (Home of the North Hudson Regional
Fire Department), required responses from East Orange, Irvington, Belleville,
Bloomfield, Montclair, Nutley. Please note that Montclair is 16.8 miles from Union

City.

February 19 - Hoboken, N] - Five story building burns to the ground while most of
Hohoken firefighters were in Jersey City fighting a five alarm fire due to the fact that
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Jersey City is closing 3 to 4 companies a day on a rotational basis. Fire departments
from Newark and Elizabeth responded into Hoboken on mutual aid leaving those

communities unprotected.

Westfield Fire Department recently had two major fires involving businesses that
required mutual aid response from no fewer than 12 fire departments with an initial

response of 6 firefighters on duty.

I would be remiss not to mention a Trenton City fire which occurred on October 15,
2012, which I believe dramatically illustrates the absurdity of understaffing public
safety. While attempting a rescue at a 2 % story home on Genesse Street two
firefighters were knocked unconscious and had to be rescued by other firefighters.
As this was evolving, a shooting victim from a block away ran toward the lights of
the fire trucks and passed out at the feet of firefighters working at the scene. This
confused all emergency personnel to believe the shooting took place at the fire
scene. To add further insult and chaos, individuals began to steal chainsaws from
the fire truck and flee from the scene. This is just a snapshot of what is occurring in
our State Capitol as well as throughout New Jersey. I submit to you something must

be done and quickly.

All of the above fires represent unprecedented safety violations, distances traveled
to assist, and monetary fire loss. Each and every one of these fires, I believe, are a
direct result of a lack of manpower available to these departments on the initial
response.

The National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) recommends a minimum of 17
firefighters on the initial response to a routine single family structure fire.
Westfield, for example, responded to a business fire on initial response with only 6
firefighters available on duty. Hoboken responded to a five-story occupied multi-
family structure fire with only 9 firefighters on duty. Please note this type of fire
requires an initial response of almost 50 firefighters.

Fires grow exponentially as precious minutes are lost without quickly putting water
on the fire and effecting rescues within the first 4-5 minutes of the fire. There is
little question in each and every one of these cases that the fires grew in magnitude
as a direct result of insufficient manpower at the initial response stage.

Several of these fires placed members of the respective firefighting forces in grave
danger. Safety precautions and protocol have been virtually thrown out the window
in chaotic attempts to address the extreme lack of manpower.

My number one concern is the inevitability of a tragic loss of life involving either
firetighters or the civilians we are sworn to protect. For those who may consider
only the financial aspect of providing fire safety should also consider that any
savings with regard to municipal or state taxes as a result of this municipal cap or
cutbacks are dwarfed by the loss of property values, business revenue, jobs,
insurance vatings, aond the overall blight oo the conumunity
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I respectfully request, in the interest and safety of the members who put their lives
on the line each and every day as well as the innocent, unsuspecting taxpayer, and in
the strongest possible manner, that your committee hold emergency hearings on
this subject as soon as humanly possible before any further injury or tragedy occurs.

Thank you for your consideration and your anticipated timely response.

Respectfully,

William Lavin
President NJFMBA

CC: Assemblyman Upendra Chivukula
Assemblyman Jason O’Donnell
Assemblyman David Russo
Assemblyman Robert Schroeder
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KEARNY, NJ 07032
Steven Dyl PHONE: 201-955-7419
Chief of Department FAX:201-998-8287

sdyl@kearnynj.org
April 25,2012

Assemblyman Charles A Mainor, Chairman
Assembly Law and Public Safety Committee

Good Morning! My name is Steven Dyl. I am a member of the fire service for over 27 years
and serve as the Chief of the Kearny Fire Department.

While there are many areas impacted by the budgetary cutbacks, I’d like to speak to you about
three areas affected by the lack of funding and the 2% budget cap on a medium size fire
department. These areas are Administration, Operations and labor.

FIRE DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATION
Funding reduction/cutbacks caused a reduction in administrative staff. Day to day operations are
difficult to manage. The remaining staff members are overworked and cannot handle the work
load. The result is a lack of oversight in many areas. Some examples include:

e Grants. A lack of staff personnel results in an inability to seek grants. There is a great

deal of research required to apply for a grant. Once received there are requirements to
manage and oversee the grants. Deadlines are not easily met and at times cannot be
met. We are in jeopardy of losing grant funding.

e Review of and updating SOP’s. There are delays in reviewing and revising SOP’s and
department policies which should be done annually. The result is outdated practices
and decreased efficiency in operations.

e Purchasing of equipment is delayed due to the lack of research.

e Processing bills for payment is delayed resulting in vendors not being compensated for
their work. This can lead to increased costs.

e Monitoring sick time. The lack of monitoring can lead to abuse which results in
staffing shortages and increased overtime costs.

e Managers are stretched to the limit. The proper time cannot be devoted to thoroughly
analyze and prepare for all the issues placed in front of them. Decisions are forced to
be made without complete attention.

BUDGET
The Town of Kearny has shown fiscal responsibility during these lean budget years. Replacing

employees who retired was done on a case by case basis. The overall workforce was reduced by
over 10%. Since 2009 the Town of Kearny had to use approximately $17 Million in surplus
funds to balance the municipal budget. In 2011 Kearny was able to generate less than $3 Million
in surplus funds. In 2012 the estimate is the Town will generate less than $1.5 Million in
surplus funds by the end of the year. In 2013 the estimated budget shortfall is over $3.5 Million.

www.kearnynj.org
Smoke Detectors Save Lives
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The result of our fiscal responsibility will be more service reductions and maybe even more
layoffs.

MAINTENANCE/EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT

Operating expenses are kept at a minimum and seldom rise. In Kearny, the operating budget is
kept at a 2007 funding level and was decreased in 2011. Maintenance is performed only when
required and preventive maintenance may not be completed. In order to replace equipment such
as fire apparatus and Self Contained Breathing Apparatus, we must first explore alternate
sources. This causes a delay in replacement. We applied for grant funding in 2010 and 2011 and
we were denied both times. We will try again on 2012 for AFG funding. This process takes a
long time and the equipment keeps on aging. It can take up to 2 years to purchase an aerial
ladder from the time of bid to delivery. Our ladder is 21 years old and would be 25 years old at
time of replacement. If funding is denied it is not known when local funding will be available.
The cost of a replacement aerial ladder is approximately $850,000.

FIRE PREVENTION
The main focus of the fire department is to prevent fires. Fire prevention consists of fire safety

education, fire prevention, code enforcement and fire origin cause. The trend is to reduce the
number of uniform members serving in these positions. Uniform members are being replaced by
part time civilians, not even full time civilians. Use of part time employees results in a higher
turnover rate. Jobs are being used as stepping stones pending full time employment or people
seeking higher paying positions. Benefits are rarely included in these employment packages.
Which once was a 4 member dept. is now down to 2 FT employees supplemented by part time

employees.

OPERATIONS
Funding cuts require us to do more with less. Firefighters are forced to take more risk. During a

recent 3 alarm fire in Kearny two firefighters were forced to jump from a first floor window after
their escape route was cut off by fire. Three additional firefighters were knocked down a flight of
stairs by the advancing fire. All of these members felt compelled to return to fighting the fire
because there were no replacements available to relieve them. One firefighter received medical
treatment after the fire. A firefighter when confronted with a fire or other life threatening
emergency will do whatever it takes to save the life or stop the fire. They will not think of the
dangers of acting alone or the harm they may do to themselves. It is common in smaller fire
departments to see firefighters go through three or four tanks of air before being relieved. The
recommendation is rehab after the second tank.

In smaller departments (such as Kearny) we are not able to meet national standards for staffing
(NFPA 1710). The recommendation is four firefighters on each apparatus, one of which is an
officer. A pumper and ladder should arrive at the scene within four minutes of the receipt of the
alarm. The remainder of the first alarm should arrive within 8 minutes brining a minimum of 14
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to 15 firefighters. Due to budget cuts Kearny will no longer be able to meet this standard this
without mutual aid. We are forced to operate with three firefighters on a pumper and only two on

a ladder.

The result of continued cutbacks and insufficient personnel is that we will not be able to keep a
room and contents fire from spreading beyond the room of origin.

MUTUAL AID
Budget cutbacks and mandates place an increased burden on mutual aid. In addition to the

firefighters necessary to fight the fire, other critical positions require staffing. Some include the
Rapid Intervention Crew, Incident Safety Officer, Accountability Officer, the OSHA required 2
in/ 2 out and Firefighter rehabilitation. It is also recommended to have one alarm in reserve.
Early in my career, mutual aid was an occasional experience. Now it is more of a routine
response which happens almost daily. It is so common that recently we provided coverage for a
neighboring community. The dispatcher advised over the radio to stand by at the firehouse and
someone will respond to let them in. The response from the relocating fire company was “that is
not necessary, we have our own key”.

Mutual aid is over relied upon, even to the point of being abused. Mutual is necessary. Some

issues with mutual aid:
e The burden of a routine fire in one community places a drain on the resources in another. Ex:

Keamny sends mutual aid to another community; we will leave only nine firefighters should a
fire occur in Kearny. Kearny may be forced to recall off-duty personnel at a cost of $1700 to
staff a reserve apparatus.

e One municipality in our area cannot supply mutual aid unless they receive mutual aid
coverage for their town. “Mutual aid to provide Mutual Aid”

e Mutual Aid companies cannot communicate with each other due to lack of common radio
frequencies.

e Ifaradio is shared with a mutual aid company, not all firefighters are on the frequency and
will miss vital radio transmissions.

e There is a delay in response time for mutual aid to arrive at a scene. A recent fire mutual aid
arrived 17 minutes after requested.

e A town may not be able to provide aid due to budget reductions. Communities which were
able to supply an Engine and Ladder may be able to supply only one. The result is we need to
reach out to communities further away in order to receive aid.

o Different towns may rely on the same towns for assistance. This happened recently with fires
in Jersey City and Hoboken.
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e In order to fill the requirement of 15 firefighters’ on scene in Kearny, we will require mutual
aid.

e The use of mutual aid to fulfill basic firefighting requirements is becoming the “norm” rather
than the exception

e Mutual aid stats: in 2011 Kearny was called upon to provide aid 68 times and received aid
only 8 times. In 2010 we provided aid 118 times and received aid 5 times.

During the time period of February 25 to March 15 we had four multiple alarm fires alarms in
Kearny. All required mutual aid.

LABOR
Contracts were settled before the enactment of the new budget mandates. We were forced to fit

the existing contracts into budgets which were required to conform to these mandates. This was
an impossible task to complete without a combination of layoffs, retirements and givebacks by
labor unions. New contract discussions are under way.

The budget cap and cutbacks are forcing us to negotiate lower salaries and other givebacks. In
2013 there is will be only $119,000 available in the fire department budget to meet contractual
obligations. This includes the reduction of the retirements which take effect in 2012.

The result is a reduced work force and poor morale. By July, Kearny will face a 13% reduction
in its firefighting force. We will be forced to close a fire company, reducing the available
companies from six to five. Our on duty staffing will be reduced from 17 firefighters to 15
firefighters. There are three studies recommending 21 firefighters on duty.

MORALE
The fire service exists on the combination of the experience of senior personnel and the strength

of junior personnel. Senior members extend their knowledge and experience to junior members.
This is referred to as on then job training during real life situations. This combination allows
junior members to gain valuable experience working side by side with a senior member during
adverse conditions. There is no substitute for experience. Budget cuts cause layoffs. These
young people then become unemployed; the result is an older workforce. An older workforce
results in an increase in injuries.

Conversely, funding cuts and legislative changes to pensions and benefits result in reduced
funding for salaries and benefits. Senior members who feel threatened by a reduction in benefits
will retire early. Years of experience walks out the door without passing on this valuable
information to junior members. The “on the job” training is lost. The result is increased injury
due to an inexperienced workforce.
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The constant threat of benefit reduction, layoffs, demotions, firehouse closings and insufficient
staffing results in poor morale. Poor morale results in an inefficient work force, injuries and an

increase in legal fees.

The constant threat of layoff and demotions has a negative effect on morale. Our new members
cannot plan their future, family needs, home purchase not knowing if they will have a job next
week. All these factors trying their emotions while they are expected to perform under life
threatening situations on a moment’s notice.

One factor unfazed by budget cutbacks is fire. It is always hot and vicious. Fire does not
discriminate. It destroys everything in its path and can kill anyone.

I need your help. The fire described earlier happened on February 27, 2012. Four firefighters
were assigned to the first floor to search for residents and extinguish the fire. Five firefighters
were assigned to search and extinguish the fire on the second floor. Two were assigned to
prevent the fire from extending to the building on the right. Two firefighters were assigned to
prevent the fire from extending to the building on the left. Budget cutbacks are forcing me to
eliminate one of these assignments. Any recommendations on which to eliminate?

Thank you for the opportunity to address you today.

Sincerely,

- J/lc el NI
Steven M. Dyl
Chief of Department
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Statement of Anthony F. Wieners
State President
New Jersey State PBA

Assembly Law and Public Safety Committee
April 25, 2012

Police Staffing Concerns - Overview

I have come before this Committee several times over the last few years to discuss my concerns
with the drop in law enforcement staffing levels in the State. We all know the economy remains
stuck in neutral that taxes take on a more onerous impact to the public as a result. I’m not here to
do anything more than urge government to do its job provide our officers with the manpower and
tools they need to protect the public.

This is not a topic that should be taken lightly or kicked around like a political football. Whether
these concerns are expressed by the head of the State PBA or by a civilian reviewing the
numbers, the reality is that our staffing levels have dropped, programs designed to stamp out
gangs and drugs have ceased, community policing initiatives in our cities have been closed down
and crime has risen across the State.

Before anything else, Government’s #1 responsibility is to provide for the safety and well being
of its citizens. The streets should be dirty before they are unsafe. The horrible economy , along
with other matters impacting local government budgeting, has severely reduced the staffing
available to perform even the most basic law enforcement functions at the local level. This is
developing into a perfect storm across New Jersey. ~

Impact of the economy, crime and less cops

Criminologists and sociologists have long debated the link between crime and economic
downturns; law enforcement in New Jersey is facing substantial practical pressures today as a
reduction in staffing makes crime of any nature more obvious and difficult to resolve for the
public. This is not a problem reserved for cities like Camden, Newark or Trenton. According to
our internal experience and the most recent Uniform Crime Report (2010), crime rates are rising
and the numbers of officers are dropping in urban and suburban communities of all sizes across

the State.

Former NYPD and LAPD Chief Bill Bratton was recently quoted in an online forum offering a
connection between the economy, crime rates and cuts to police staffing. His comments are
entirely applicable to our situation today:
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“Such extended downturns (in the economy) are also likely to ... result in sharp cuts to
policing and other government services, as is already happening now. These cuts tend to
reduce dramatically the staffing flexibility of police managers and the very innovative
policing programs that have helped drive the crime decline of the past 20 years because
the resources that remain are needed for baseline operations.

“If the police are disabled in this way just as a larger pool of crime-prone youth comes on
the scene, you might see a repeat nationwide of the circumstances that drove crime in
New York City in the late 1970s and 1980s. With these dual factors — poorly socialized
youth and weakened police departments — simultaneously at work, the long-term outlook
for crime could worsen significantly, and the positive crime trends of the past 20 years
could be reversed.”

Local law enforcement officers, in addition to having a difficult time staffing shifts and
responding appropriately to day to day calls for service, are seeing a jump in petty thefts, smash
and grab burglaries, car thefts and other quality of life crimes that undermine the security of
communities and stress law enforcement ranks to their limits. The dramatic drop in cops at the
local level leads to several problems:

Risks to Officer Safety

Rising Crime rates

Longer Response times

Loss of specialty units (Drug and gang Task Forces, Community Policing, DARE, SRO)
Elimination of Detective Bureau’s
Underreporting/Downgrading of crimes

No response for “quality of life” crimes

Higher overtime costs

Officer fatigue

Lower Officer morale

Public backlash over loss of immediate police presence

VVVVVVVVVYVY

Each of these concerns on their own would present any community with a problem. However,
more often than not local Police Departments are facing a number of these problems at the same

time.

Fewer officers, quite simply, means less enforcement and more crime. In our cities this has
become a significant problem. Immediately following the layoff of over 100 Trenton Police
Officers, a threat from gang members to target cops led to foot patrols being eliminated in certain
areas. In Paterson, the ranks are so depleted that officers who arrest and must process drug
dealers cut the numbers of officers on the streets needed for routine patrolling. Cities across the
State have cut back on community policing, responding to nuisance crimes and responding to the
basic public safety needs of the residents.

This is not merely an urban problem. Communities of all sizes in the State face staffing
problems. Over the last few Budget cycles, our officers have agreed to givebacks when faced
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with layoffs and Mayors and Councils have slashed or frozen police budget levels to prevent
layoffs in the face of the 2% cap. Eventually, there are only so many retirements available to a
Department, only so much to sacrifice in a contract and only so far to cut into a Budget before
layoffs become unavoidable in the current environment.

Shared services and mergers are being investigated and some may make sense. But if we are
looking to share or merge 2 or more understaffed police forces that create 1 large understaffed
police force then we have accomplished nothing that benefits the safety of the public and only
perpetuates the risks facing our officers.

Police staffing in steady decline

According to the 2009 and 2010 Uniform Crime Reports, New Jersey lost a Net Total of 1163
municipal police officers, and a total of 2015 for all local law enforcement agencies, through
layoffs, retirements and attrition. Civilian staff also dropped significantly in this time as well
placing more pressure on sworn officers to perform non-law enforcement functions as well as
building up a backlog of record keeping and research.

However, those numbers were dwarfed by the record loss of officers from layoffs and
retirements in 2011. According to the PFRS Board of Trustees, the latest actuary report indicates
that retirements have depleted law enforcement ranks by more than 2000. More than 700
officers have been laid off over the last year. While some of the officers have been rehired or
retained elsewhere, this coupled with few police academy graduations, have not made a dent in
replacing the thousands of cops no longer on the job today.

The State can’t permit these numbers to drop much lower or public safety, officer safety and
community welfare will be impacted for years to come.

Conclusion

Ultimately, it isn’t enough to give speeches about the loss of police officers in the State. We
must work together to find solutions. This Committee and the Leadership in Trenton can start by
speaking positively about cops at every level. We need to make sure the public knows cops
aren’t the average public employee and that a properly staffed police department doesn’t have to
create an “us” versus “them” battle during Budget debates. We need the tone of the discussion
coming from Trenton to change.

We also need more from the State, especially in our cities, to combat crime and stay ahead of the
game. Yes, every city could benefit from more State aid devoted to law enforcement. Every
town could also benefit from a limited exception to the 2% cap when they are facing layoffs.
Such an exception could focus exclusively on the costs of officers facing a layoff when no other
options are left open. It would be limited and it wouldn’t a regular occurrence. But it could give
a city or town just enough breathing room to prevent a depletion of a police force to dangerous
levels until the economic environment clears.
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A robbery, a murder, a drug deal or a carjacking are preventable when the police are on the
streets. The State PBA stands ready to work with you on solutions to this problem. In the end
we are all in this together. Thank you.
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ANTHONY F. WIENERS ORGANIZED 1896 732-636-8860
President MEMBERSHIP OVER 30,000 FAX 732-636-0172
- 1-888-4NJSPBA
Nefu Jersey State 1-888-465-7722

Jolicemen’s Benetrolent Association, Inc.
158 Main Street Woodbridge, New Jersey 07095

MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the Assembly Law and Public Safety Committee
FROM: Anthony F. Wieners, State Rresident
DATE: April 25,2012
RE: Public Hearing Comments/Data on Police Staffing

For your information, attached are my comments and relevant data for the April 25, 2012
Assembly Law and Public Safety Committee hearing on police staffing in New Jersey today.
There can be little debate that New Jersey law enforcement agencies are doing more with fewer
officers today. Dramatic increases in retirements, coupled with layoffs, have forced Departments
to cut back on critical police services and investigative tools. Our officers are working
understaffed and crime is rising. This is not merely an urban problem and finding solutions to
providing the correct number of officers in any community in New Jersey should be a major

priority for government.

Thank you for your attention to these comments and I hope you will look to the State
PBA as a resource to work on this critical problem.
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY
FULL TIME POLICE EMPLOYEES — 2009

Police Officers Total Police
Department Civilians
epa Male Female Total Employees
2008 20,241 1,474 21,715 4,443 26,158
Municipal Police 2009 19,908 1,469 21,377 4,526 25,903
Percent Change -2 * -2 2 -1
2008 4,828 939 5,767 3,189 8,956
County Police 2009 4,887 863 5,750 3,076 8,826
Percent Change 1 -8 * -4 -1
2008 368 66 434 397 831
Universities and Colleges 2009 408 76 484 410 894
Percent Change 1 15 12 3 8
2008 2,921 119 3,040 1,459 4,499
State Police 2009 2,924 116 3,040 1,352 4,392
Percent Change * -3 0 -7 2
2008 7,217 1,348 8,565 3,609 12,174
Other State Agencies 2009 6,942 1,287 8,229 3,434 11,663
Percent Change -4 -5 -4 -5 -4

apprprlate tables for additional breakdowns
* Less than one-half of one percent.

174 — New Jersey Police Employee Data —
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POLICE EMPLOYEE DATA

The Uniform Crime Reporting Program of New Jersey incorporates the collection of pertinent data relating to the police of the state. Information
regarding police employees strength and trends are discussed in this section.
Individual listings of full-time state, county, university and college police departments are shown in tables within this section. Listings of municipal

- police departments will be found in Section VIl
The determination of police strength for any given area or municipality should be subject for serious consideration. Such consideration, however,

should be based on the numerous factors which create the need for police services. For example, the increased need for police service in a municipality
which has a highly mobile or seasonal population differs from a municipality which has a relatively stable population. Some other factors, discussed
elsewhere in this publication, relate to size, density of population, geographic location, character, and proximity to metropolitan areas. The tables and
charts shown in this section should not be interpreted as recommended strength for any given municipality.

TOTAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

Total police employees are defined as the total number of ful-time police officers and dvilian police employees (clerks, dispatchers, mechanics,
etc.) employed by all law enforcement agendes in the state.

. During 2009, there were 51,678 full-time police employees in New Jersey. This represents a decrease of 2 percent when compared to the
52,618 full-time police employees in 2008.

. The number of full-ime police officers decreased 2 percent, from 39,521 in 2008 to 38,880 in 2009.
. The number of full-time civilian employees decreased 2 percent, from 13,097 in 2008 to 12,798 in 2009.

. Seventy-five percent were sworn officers and the remaining 25 percent were civiian employees.

MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

This category consists of the number of police employees, induding civilian personnel, employed full-time by municipalities of the state.

. During 2009, there were 25,903 municipal police employees, a decrease of 1 percent compared to the 26,158 in 2008.

. For every 1,000 inhabitants of the state there were 3.0 municipal police employees.

. Union County reported the largest increase in municipal police employees, an increase of 3 percent (55 employees).

. Atlantic County also recorded the highest police employee rate; 4.6 per 1,000 population; (this rate is computed on the static population

and does not take into account the large influx of seasonal and recreational population).

A~

: Hunterdon and Warren Counties recorded the lowest police empioyee rate of 1.5 per 1,000 popuiation.

— New Jersey Police Employee Data — 181
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MUNICIPAL CIVILIAN POLICE EMPLOYEES

The personnel of each department differ as to the demands and responsibilities placed before them. Many police officers are fully occupied
with clerical tasks and are not free to perform active police duties. Employing dvilians in police departments to perform clerical duties is in line with the
thinking of many police administrators who recommended the use of civilians in this capacity. Thus, freeing the swomn personnel for actual police-related

SEervices.

. There were 4,526 municipal divilian police employees in 2009, an increase of 2 percent compared to the 4,443 in 2008.

. Seventeen percent of all municipal police employees were chvilians.

MUNICIPAL POLICE OFFICERS

This indudes the number of swom police officers employed full-time by municipalities of the state. The police employee rate per 1,000 |
population presented here should not be construed as recommended ratios. The determination of police strength for any municipality should be based
on the numerous factors that create the need for police services. These factors, as crime, vary in type and degree from place to place. Some examples

are: seésonal population, geographic location, density and composition of the population.

. There were 21,377 full-ime municipal police officers in 2009; this represents a decrease of 2 percent when compared to the 21,715 full-
time municipal police officers in 2008. ‘

. The number of full-time municipal police officers was calculated at 2.5 per 1,000 population; this remains the same when compared to

2008.
. Swom officers represented 83 percent of all municipal police erﬁployees.
. Somerset County recorded the largest numerical increase (22) which represented a 4 percent increase of municipal police ofﬁcers.
. The largest numerical decrease occurred in Essex County, a decrease of (68) municipal police officers, or 2 percent.

. Essex County, with 3.7 police officers per 1.,000 inhabitants, recorded the highest rate of full-time municipal police officers.

. Hunterdon County recorded the lowest rate of full-ime municipal officers with 1.3 police officers per 1,000 population.

OTHER POLICE (State Agencies)

In addition to the State Police, there are ten other state agencies reporting to the system. These agencies consist of: NJ Forest Fire Service,
Department of Corrections, Department of Human Services, Division of Criminal Justice, Division of Fish and Wildiife, Office of Weights and Measures,
Palisades Interstate Parkway, Port Authority NY/NJ, NJ Transit Police and New Jersey State Park Police. No rates were computed due to the variations

3 H pmnes voamdAdavad ~pmdd date S RN I ML LI L.
in the types of poice Services Tenaered, ana tneir statewioe junsaictions.
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY

FULL-TIME POLICE EMPLOYEES - 2010

Police Officers

Total Police

See appropriate tables for additional breakdowns
* Less than one-half one percent.

174
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Department Civilians

Male Female Total Employees

2009 19,908 1,469 21,377 4526 25,903

Municipal Police 2010 19,126 1,424 20,550 4,055 24,605
Percentage Change -4 -3 -4 12 -5

2009 4,887 863 5,750 3,076 8,826

County Police 2010 4,739 886 5,625 3,031 8,656
Percentage Change -3 3 . 2 R -2

2009 408 76 484 410 894

University and Colleges 2010 369 68 437 373 810
Percentage Change -1 -12 -1 -10 -10

2009 2,924 116 3,040 1,352 4,392

State Police 2010 2,826 110 2,936 1,297 4,233
Percentage Change -3 -5 -4 -4 -4

2009 6942 1,287 8,229 3,434 11,663

Other State Agencies 2010 6,723 1,235 7,958 3,157 1,115
Percentage Change -3 -4 3 -9 -5
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POLICE EMPLOYEE DATA

The Uniform Crime Reporting Program of New Jersey incorporates the collection of pertinent data relating to the
police of the state. Information regarding police employees strength and trends are discussed in this section.

Individual listings of full-time state,county,university and college police departments are shown in tables within this
section. Listings of municipal police departments will be found in Section VII.

The determination of police strength for any given area or municipality should be subject for serious consideration. Such
consideration, however, should be based on the numerous factors which create the need for police services. For example, the
increased need for police services in a municipality which has highly mobile or seasonal population differs from a municipality which
has a relatively stable population. Some other factors, discussed elsewhere in this publication, relate to size, density of population,
geographic location, character, and proximity to metropolitan areas. The tables and charts shown in this section should not be

interpreted as recommended strength for any given municipality.

TOTAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

Total police employees are defined as the total number of full-time police officers and civilian police employees (clerks,
dispatches, mechanics, etc.) employed by all law enforcement agencies in the state.

e During 2010 there were 49,419 full-time police employees in New lersey. This represents a decrease of 6 percent when
compared to the 2009.
®  The number of full-time police officers decreased 4 percent, from 38,880 in 2009 to 37,506 in 2010.

®  The number of full-time civilian employees decreased 7 percent, from 12,798 in 2009 to 11,913 in 2010.

®  Seventy-six percent were sworn officers and the remaining 24 percent were civilian employees.

MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

This category consists of the number of police employees, including civilian personnel, employed full-time by the
municipalities of the state.
During 2010 there were 24,605 municipal police employees, a decrease of 5 percent when compared to the 25,903 in 2009.

e For every 1,000 inhabitants of the state there were 3.0 municipal police employees.

e  Sussex County reported the largest increase in municipal police employees, an increase of 2 percent (6 employees).

e (Cape May and Essex Counties recorded the highest police employee rate; 4.4 per 1,000 population; (this rate is computed on
the static population and does not take into account the large influx of seasonal and recreational population).

®  Hunterdon County recorded the lowest police employee rate 1.4 per 1000 population.

— New Jersey Police Employee Data — 181
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MUNICIPAL CIVILIAN POLICE EMPLOYEES

The personnel of each department differ as to the demands and responsibilities placed before them. Many police officers
are fully occupied with clerical tasks and are not free to perform active police duties. Employing civilians in police departments to
perform clerical duties is in line with the thinking of many police administrators who recommended the use of civilians in this

capacity, thus freeing the sworn personnel for actual police services.

° There were 4,055 municipal civilian police employees in 2010, a decrease of 10 percent when compared to the 4,526 in 2009.

. Sixteen percent of all municipal police employees were civilians.

MUNICIPAL POLICE OFFICERS

This includes the number of sworn police officers employed full-time by the municipalities of the state. The police employee rate
per 1,000 population presented here should not be construed as recommended ratios. The determination of police srength for any
municipality should be based on the numerous factors that create the need for police services. These factors such as crime, vary in
type and degree from place to place. Some examples are: seasonal population, geographic location, density and composition of the

population.
There were 20,552 full-time municipal police officers in 2010; this represents a decrease of 4 percent when compared to the

21,377 full-time municipal police officers in 2009.
The number of full-time police officers was calculated at 2.3 per 1,000 population; a decrease of less than one-half of one
percent when compared to 2009.

. Sworn officers represented 84 of all municpal police employees.

° Collectively, all 21 counties in New Jersey experienced a decrease of municipal police officers in 2010.

¢ The largest numerical decrease occurred in Bergen County, a decrease of (105) municipal police officers, or 5 percent.

Essex County,with 3.6 police officers per 1000, inhabitants, recorded the highest rate of full-time municipal police officers.

o Hunterdon and Sussex Counties recorded the lowest rate of full-time municipal officers with 1.3 police officers per 1,000

population.

OTHER POLICE (State Agencies)

In addition to the State Police, there are ten other state agencies reporting to the system. These agencies consist of: NJ Forest
Fire Service, Division of Parks & Forestry, Department of Corrections, Department of Human Services, Division of Criminal Justice,
Division of Fish and Wildlife, Office of Weights and Measures, Palisades Interstate Parkway, Port Authority NY/NJ, NI Transit Police, and
New Jersey State Park Police. No rates were computed due to the variations in the types of police services rendered, and their
statewide jurisdictions.

e Together, these agencies reported a total of 11,115 full-time employees; a decrease of 5 percent compared to the 11,663 police

employees in 2009.

®  There were 7,958 sworn police officers in 2010, a decrease of 3 percent compared to the 8,229 in 2009.

e Seventy-two percent were sworn personnel, while the remaining 28 percent were civilians.

— New Jersey Police Employee Data —
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CRIME TRENDS - NUMBER - RATE - CLEARANCES
2008/2009 - PERCENT CHANGES

A E S

INDEX OFFENSES INDEX OFFENSES INHABITANTS CLEARED CLEARED
2008 376 - 228 60.6
MURDER 2009 320 - 7 53.4
Percent Change -15 0 -25 -12
2008 1,090 0.1 448 411
RAPE 2009 1,041 0.1 429 41.2
Percent Change -4 0 -4 *
2008 12,694 1.5 3,354 26.4
ROBBERY 2009 11,637 13 3,316 285
Percent Change -8 -13 -1 8
2008 14,121 1.6 8,332 59.0
AGGRAVATED ASSAULT 2009 14,110 1.6 8,139 57.7
Percent Change - 0 2 -2
2008 40,132 . 4.6 5,538 13.8
BURGLARY 2009 36,928 43 4,969 13.5
Percent Change -8 ‘ -7 -10 -2
2008 138,644 16.0 26,604 19.2
LARCENY - THEFT 2009 128,304 14.8 26,326 20.5
Percent Change -7 -8 -1 7
2008 20,120 2.3 1,115 55
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 2009 15,501 1.8 938 6.1
Percent Change 23 22 -16 11

* Percent change less than one-half of one percent.
& Percent change not calculated due to small volume.
- Not calculated due to small volume

— State Summary & Offense Analysis — 13
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CRIME INDEX FOR THE STATE - 2010

NUMBER OF RATE PER NUMBER OF PERCENT OF

PERCENT
INDEX 1,000 OFFENSES OFFENSES

OFFENSES ,
OFFENSES INHABITANTs | DISTRIBUTION CLEARED CLEARED

e e g o e

e 916 o o i o] i T
Attempted Rape 69 * * 33 47.8

BEREE ; TR Sk S e e
Knife or Cutting Instrument 975 0.1 0.5 249 255
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Knife or Cutting Instrument 3,147 0.4 1.5 1,675 53.2
Other Dangerous Weapon 4,413 0.5 2.1 2,307 52.3
Aggravated (Hands, Fists, Feet, etc.) 4,282 0.5 2.0 2,786 65.1

Unlawful Entry - No Force 12,821 1.5 6.1 1,794 140
Attempted Forcible Entry 4,066 0.5 1.9 423
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" Autos 13,650 ' 6.5 761

Trucks and Buses 830 0.4

Other Vehicles 0.5

* Not calculated due to small volume.
Percent distribution may not add to 100 due to rounding.

Breakdowns may not equal totals due to rounding.
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ASSAULTS ON POLICE OFFICERS

Police assault statistics are important to the police administrator who attempts to identify the causative factors of
this type of criminal activity. Many factors contribute to police assaults, and circumstances vary from place to place.
Identifying specific reasons for these assaults is therefore extremely difficult. The following information illustrates the
frequency of these events, and any attempt at analysis of these assaults should include consideration of the unique
variables present in each jurisdiction. Due to the broad field of services performed by many state and county police
agencies, no assault rates are computed for total police officers. v

VOLUME/RATE/TREND
® There were 2,418 police officers assaulted in 2010, a decrease of 3 percent when compared to 2009.

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS
®  Twenty-nine percent (706) of the officers assaulted sustained injury.

®  Physical Force, such as hands, fists and feet were used in 87 percent (2,110) of all police assaults.

®  Thirty-one percent of police assaults occured when officers responded to disturbance calls.

®  Eleven percent of the assaults on police officers occurred during the 2-hour period of 10:00 p.m. to 12 midnight.

CLEARANCES
- ®  The police of New Jersey were successful in clearing in 85 percent of the assaults directed at them.

ASSAULTS ON MUNICIPAL POLICE OFFICERS

VOLUME/RATE/TREND

®  Atotal 2,138 of municipal police officers were assaulted during 2010, decrease of 1 percent when compared to 2009.

®  The assault rate, for every 100 municipal officers, was 10.4,a 3.7 'percent decrease compared to 2009.

ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS
®  Twenty-five percent of the municipal officers assaulted sustained injury.

®  Physical Force, such as hands, fists and feet were used in 87 percent (1,858) of all police assaults.

®  Thirty-four percent of the municipal police assaults occured when officers responded to disturbance calls.

®  Attempting Other Arrests accounted for 17 percent of the municipal police assaults.

OTHER POLICE OFFICERS ASSAULTED

The following law enforcement agencies are dealt with separately and are not included when computing municipal

assault rates; the services performed by these agencies vary greatly from the functions of municipal police agencies.

®  (County law enforcement agencies reported 68 police officers assaulted with 26 sustaining injury.
o The New Jersey State Police reported 50 police officers assaulted with 20 sustaining injury.

®  Other state agencies with police powers reported 152 police officers assaulted with 129 sustaining injury.

®  University and collegé police agencies reported 10 police officers assaulted with 6 sustaining injury.
— Law Enforcement Officers Killed & Assaulted —
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NEW JERSEY STATE LODGE
FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICEe

STATE HEADQUARTERS - 108 WEST STATE STREET - TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 08608

609-599-1222 - FAX 609 599-1221

EDWARD R. BRANNIGAN WAYNE WINKLER
PRESIDENT SECRETARY

Prepared Statement
for the
New Jersey General Assembly
Law and Public Safety Committee
April 25, 2012
New Jersey City University
Jersey City NJ.

Chairman Mainor, Vice Chairman Wilson and esteemed members of the General Assembly Law
and Public Safety Committee,

Thank you for inviting me to speak today. I am Steven Demofonte and I represent the more than
16,000 members of the New Jersey Fraternal Order of Police. I would like to begin today with a
quote for Thomas Jefferson.

“The purpose of government is to enable the people of a nation to live in safety and
happiness. Government exists for the interests of the governed, not for the governors.”
— Thomas Jefferson

With those words in mind from one of our founding fathers, how is it possible that government has
been permitted to demonize the very people within government whose sole purpose is to ensure the
safety and happiness of the public? Law enforcement officers in New Jersey, the protectors of our
society, have been symbolically hung by their necks in effigy. They have been made the
scapegoats by governments, at all levels in New Jersey. My members, servants of the public trust,
have devoted their lives to the protection of our citizens, yet they continue to face the depravations
of their employers. They ask for what any citizen would demand, Fundamental Fairness. Instead
their requests are answered with threats of layoffs and demands for contract concessions. In
addition, the state government has mandated more financial burdens on the working families of our
police officers by increasing health insurance, pension costs and other previously negotiable

benefits.

No one in government has claimed any responsibility for its own mismanagement and the
widespread failure of local governments to provide for the fundamental protection of public safety.
What governments have done is dehumanize the people who provide law enforcement. Law
enforcement officers as a profession and also individually have been singled out by politicians as
being greedy and self-serving in the public eye. The public has been given the wrong impression
that the causes of the current financial crisis in government are the result of public employees,
including law enforcement. The full consequences of which are now being felt. Staffing levels are
at historic low statewide. Criminals have taken advantage of the notoriety of the significant
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decreases in staffing and have increased their activities with the confidence of knowing that they
are less likely to be arrested or identified. This particular aspect of the recent decreases in police
personnel have been widely reported in the media. Violent crime has spiked immediately
following the announcement of layoffs, particularly in our cities.

Most concerning to our members, has been the sharp rise in attacks on law enforcement officers.
Statistics have shown a steady decline over the past two decades in the numbers of felonious
assaults and felonious deaths of law enforcement officers. Unfortunately beginning in 2010, the
trend has shifted toward more felonious deaths among law enforcement officers, peaking in 2011 at
95 deaths, nationwide. Data for the number of felonious assaults nationwide are not yet available,
but the trend suggests a total number of about 58,000 nationwide.

The latest data available publicly from the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits is from
June 30, 2011. Two retirement systems in New Jersey cover almost every law enforcement officer
in the state. They are the New Jersey Police and Firemen’s Retirement System (PFRS) and the
New Jersey State Police Retirement System (SPRS). The PFRS has membership of both local and
state corrections, police officers employed by the state who are not troopers, local and county
police, and county sheriff’s officers. Last year, the PFRS reported active membership of 42,849 as
compared to the report from June 30, 2008 when the PFRS reported 46,345 members. Since June
30, 2011, it has been widely reported in the media that there have been increased layoffs and
attrition through retirements. The New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits reported on June
30, 2008 that it had active membership in the SPRS of 3,141 and as of June 30, 2011 it was down
to 2,813. With no State Police Academy class held in 2011, and none scheduled until the fall of
2012, the total number of State Troopers has undoubtedly fallen through attrition since June 2011.

I implore the members of this committee to consider the following when considering the next fiscal
budget.

1. Restore State Budgetary Funding to the Various Public Safety Pension Systems and
Remove the Rules Governing the Funding of the Pension System from Politics.

Law enforcement officers throughout the state serve the public trust and are held a
higher level of responsibility than any other citizen. They accept this grave
responsibility willingly and without hesitation. In return, they ask that the people
whom they serve accept their obligation to adequately fund the retirement system in
a manner that does not imperil its financial stability. Political gimmicks and
unacceptable accounting practices have brought about a depressed actuarial outlook
and have caused the members of those systems grievous harm by threatening their
futures. Pensioners who retired with the expectations of Cost of Living Adjustments
are forced to fear factors such as Inflation and Loss of Credit.

2. Increase Assistance to Local Governments for the Purpose of Hiring and Retain Law
Enforcement Officers.
The state must ensure that the public is safe in their homes and workplaces. The
state must ensure that criminals can no longer act as opportunists in a depressed
economy, feeding off of the decent citizens of our state. Additional funding must be
made available to the state “Safe and Secure Communities Program”. The Safe and
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Secure Communities Program, enacted into law in 1993, is designed to provide
municipalities with funding to add law enforcement personnel vital to effective
police operations and other crime related strategies as warranted by the needs of the
community. The program allows for the funding of additional officers or funding of
law enforcement support personnel which would free-up officers for direct law
enforcement activities.

Limitations imposed upon local governments under the guise of “Property Tax
Reform” have left already strapped police departments scrambling to maintain safe
communities and work environments. The state, through legislation and
administrative policy has forced local governments to choose how to slash budgets.
In doing so the state has placed targets on the backs of every law enforcement
officer in the state.

3. Restore Elements of Collective Bargaining to a Fundamentally Fair Process.
Laws enacted in the past two years, coupled with a drastic change in the working
philosophy at the Public Employment Relations Commission have had a detrimental
effect on employer/employee relations at all levels. Law Enforcement Officers by
the very nature of their employment have no ability to cause work actions or strikes.
It has been understood for decades that there needs to be a level field on which to
negotiate terms and conditions of employment, as guaranteed by our state
constitution. Political interference has broken long established policies and
practices designed to ensure fairness and replaced them with rules designed to
cripple a fair and impartial hearing before a neutral arbitrator.
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EMPLOYEE DATA
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY

FULL-TIME POLICE EMPLOYEES - 2010

Police Officers

Total Police

Department Civilians
Male Female Total Employees

2009 19,908 1,469 21,377 4,526 25,903

Municipal Police 2010 19,126 1,424 20,550 4,055 24,605
Percentage Change -4 -3 -4 -12 -5

2009 4,887 863 5,750 3,076 8,826

County Police 2010 4,739 886 5,625 3,031 8,656
Percentage Change -3 3 2 R -2

2009 408 76 484 410 894

University and Colleges 2010 369 68 437 373 810
Percentage Change -1 -12 -1 -10 -10

2009 2,924 116 3,040 1,352 4392

State Police 2010 2,826 110 2,936 1,297 4,233
Percentage Change 3 -5 4 4 -4

2009 6,942 1,287 8,229 3,434 11,663

Other State Agencies 2010 6,723 1,235 7,958 3,157 11,115
Percentage Change -3 -4 3 9 5

See appropriate tables for additional breakdowns
* Less than one-half one percent.
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FULL-TIME STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT EMPLOYEES

(Excluding State Police) — 2010

Police Officers - Total Police

Agency Male Female Total Civilians Employees
Department of Corrections 5,239 1,085 6,324 2,558 8,882
Department of Human Services 120 8 128 7 135
Division of Criminal Justice 145 39 184 398 582
Division of Fish & Wildlife 45 4 49 5 54
NJ Forest Fire Service 45 45 42 87
NJ Transit Police 193 21 214 57 2N
Office of Weights and Measures 12 15 18 33
Palisades Interstate Park 26 0 26 0 26
Port Authority NY/NJ 830 65 895 70 965
NJ State Park Police 68 10 78 2 80

FULL-TIME MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES BY COUNTY - 2010

—

— New Jersey Police Employee Data —
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Police Officers L Total Police
County Male Female Total Civilians Employees
Atlantic 748 75 823 202 1,025
Bergen 1,960 76 2,036 347 2,383
Burlington 718 43 761 99 860
Camden 1,163 97 1,260 216 1,476
Cape May 304 21 325 100 425
Cumberland 273 20 293 51 344
Essex 2,413 404 2,817 611 3,428
Gloucester 549 25 574 46 620 .
Hudson 1,702 157 1,859 294 2,153
Hunterdon 164 4 168 14 182
Mercer 824 72 896 211 1,107
Middlesex 1,472 65 1,537 384 1,921
Monmouth 1,388 74 1,462 287 1,749
Morris 994 32 1,026 167 1,193
Ocean 1,039 44 1,083 276 1,359
Passaic 1,116 9N 1,207 228 1,435
Salem 97 2 99 18 117
Somerset 561 26 587 120 707
Sussex 194 4 198 66 264
Union 1,295 92 1,387 307 1,694
Warren 1 152 1 163
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NUMBER OF MUNICIPAL POLICE OFFICERS
and
RATE PER 1,000 POPULATION BY COUNTY - 2010

5-4i]  Rate Per 1,000 Population by County
I | Number of Police Officers by County

State of New Jersey [[2:3 | |20,550|
Atlantic {30} 823
Bergen | |z,036|
Burlington [{1:7 761

[1,260]

Cumberland B9

J2,817]

Essex

574

Gloucester |12.0,

Hudson

Jt,sssl

] 896 |

i

#

#

]
Hunterdon [}1.3

[

|

Middlesex [{1.9] uﬁi’
Monmouth E% 1,462 |
W

Morris

Ocean |

J1,387]

Fl A
Warren || 1.4
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NUMBER OF MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES
and
RATE PER 1,000 POPULATION BY COUNTY - 2010

Rate Per 1,000 Population per County
I__—I Total Police Employees

State of New Jersey [ 24,608 |

Atlantic J1,029]

Bergen | |2,386|

Burlington [}4:91 ] 862 I

Camden |{2:9 | 1'479|

il
Cumberland |{2:2

13432

Essex |

Gloucester [{2.2

J2,156]

Hudson |2

Hunterdon [t

Mercer {1,110 l

] 1,923 I

Middlesex [j2.4]

Monmouth ] 1,752 I
Morris [|2 ] 1,195 I
Ocean | 1,361 I
Passaic [[29} |1,438|

Salem iF
Somerset [{2:2{ 709
Sussex fjih8 f
Union | 1,021
Warren |1
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FULL-TIME COUNTY POLICE EMPLOYEES - 2010

Department Police Officers Givilians Total Police
Male Female Total Employees
ATLANTIC COUNTY 155 30 185 115 300
Prosecutor 60 17 77 90 167
Sheriff 95 13 108 25 133
BERGEN COUNTY 558 82 640 301 941
Prosecutor 84 26 110 141 251
Sheriff 394 45 439 85 524
Park Police 80 " 91 75 166
BURLINGTON COUNTY 116 34 150 73 223
Prosecutor 56 21 77 59 136
Sheriff 60 13 73 14 87
CAMDEN COUNTY 248 76 324 109 433
Prosecutor 100 56 156 77 233
Sheriff 131 20 151 31 182
Park Police 17 0 17 1 18
CAPE MAY COUNTY 126 35 161 68 229
Prosecutor 27 9 36 46 82
Sheriff 99 26 125 22 147
CUMBERLAND COUNTY 77 19 96 77 173
Prosecutor 29 9 38 71 109
Sheriff 48 10 58 6 64
ESSEX COUNTY 448 83 531 200 731
Prosecutor 113 29 142 136 278
Sheriff 335 54 389 64 453
GLOUCESTER COUNTY 103 18 121 " 192
Prosecutor 28 5 33 57 90
Sheriff 75 13 88 14 102
HUDSON COUNTY 252 70 322 241 563
Prosecutor 66 30 96 127 223
Sheriff 186 40 226 114 340
HUNTERDON COUNTY 32 13 45 31 76
Prosecutor 15 8 23 27 50
Sheriff 17 5 22 4 26
| MERCER COUNTY 154 26 180 149 329
Prosecutor 40 " 51 115 166
Sheriff 114 15 129 34 163
178 — New Jersey Police Employee Data —
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FULL-TIME COUNTY POLICE EMPLOYEES - 2010

Department PoliceOfficers | Civilians Total Police
Male Female Total Employees

MIDDLESEX COUNTY 225 32 257 162 419
Prosecutor 57 18 75 120 195

Sheriff 168 14 182 42 224

MONMOUTH COUNTY 422 68 490 352 842
Prosecutor 67 12 79 201 280

Sheriff 355 56 411 151 562

MORRIS COUNTY 296 48 344 158 502
Prosecutor 47 16 63 86 149

Sheriff 222 29 251 71 322

Park Police 27 3 30 1 31

OCEAN COUNTY 168 41 209 198 407
Prosecutor 57 20 77 92 169

Sheriff 1M 21 132 106 238

PASSAIC COUNTY 573 77 650 256 906
Prosecutor 60 18 78 107 185

Sheriff 513 59 572 149 721

SALEM COUNTY 156 34 190 54 244
Prosecutor 17 4 21 29 50

Sheriff 139 30 169 25 194

SOMERSET COUNTY 192 27 219 102 321
Prosecutor 45 8 53 66 119

Sheriff 147 19 166 36 202

SUSSEX COUNTY 138 21 159 44 203
Prosecutor 22 7 29 20 49

Sheriff 116 14 130 24 154

UNION COUNTY 269 46 315 228 543
Prosecutor 63 12 75 171 246

Sheriff 135 33 168 46 214

Park Police 71 1 72 1" 83
WARREN COUNTY 3 6 37 42 79
Prosecutor 18 3 21 38 59

Sheriff 13 3 16 4 20

— New Jersey Police Employee Data —
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FULL-TIME COUNTY POLICE EMPLOYEES
UNIVERSITIES AND COLLEGES - 2010

Lo et

180
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Universities and Colleges — P°“"T:'?‘%:ﬂs — Civilians Tg:;lz;’::
Brookdale Community College 13 0 13 10 23
Essex County College 12 1 13 40 53
Kean University 25 3 28 24 52
Middlesex County College 9 3 12 5 17
Monmouth University 20 1 21 23 44
Montclair State University 27 6 33 " 44
N} Institute Of Technology 22 7 29 33 62
Rowan University 19 4 23 39 62

38

Camden Campus 15 4 19 19

New Brunswick Campus 40 5 45 30 75

Newark Campus 24 / 31 5 36
Stevens Institute Of Technology 15 1 16 4 20
Richard Stockton College Of New Jersey 16 6 22 8 30
The College Of New Jersey 17 2 19 8 27

New Brunswick Campus/Piscataway Campus 19 5 24 15 39
Newark Campus 42 4 46 81 127
Camden Campus 10 2 12 7 19

William Paterson University 24 7 31 1 42
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POLICE EMPLOYEE DATA

The Uniform Crime Reporting Program of New Jersey incorporates the collection of pertinent data relating to the
police of the state. Information regarding police employees strength and trends are discussed in this section.
Individual listings of full-time state,county,university and college police departments are shown in tables within this

section. Listings of municipal police departments will be found in Section VII.

The determination of police strength for any given area or municipality should be subject for serious consideration. Such ‘
consideration, however, should be based on the numerous factors which create the need for police services. For example, the
increased need for police services in a municipality which has highly mobile or seasonal population differs from a municipality which
has a relatively stable population. Some other factors, discussed elsewhere in this publication, relate to size, density of population,
geographic location, character, and proximity to metropolitan areas. The tables and charts shown in this section should not be

interpreted as recommended strength for any given municipality.

TOTAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

Total police employees are defined as the total number of full-time police officers and civilian police employees (clerks,
dispatches, mechanics, etc.) employed by all law enforcement agencies in the state. '

e  During 2010 there were 49,419 full-time police employees in New Jersey. This represents a decrease of 6 percent when
compared to the 2009.

®  The number of full-time police officers decreased 4 percent, from 38,880 in 2009 to 37,506 in 2010.

®  The number of full-time civilian employees decreased 7 percent, from 12,798 in 2009 to 11,913 in 2010.

®  Seventy-six percent were sworn officers and the remaining 24 percent were civilian employees.

MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

This category consists of the number of police employees, including civilian personnel, employed full-time by the
municipalities of the state.
During 2010 there were 24,605 municipal police employees, a decrease of 5 percent when compared to the 25,903 in 2009.

e  For every 1,000 inhabitants of the state there were 3.0 municipal police employees.

e  Sussex County reported the largest increase in municipal police employees, an increase of 2 percent (6 employees).

e (Cape May and Essex Counties recorded the highest police employee rate; 4.4 per 1,000 population; (this rate is computed on
the static population and does not take into account the large influx of seasonal and recreational population).

®  Hunterdon County recorded the lowest police employee rate 1.4 per 1000 population.

— New Jersey Police Employee Data — ‘ 181

Lo,



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

MUNICIPAL CIVILIAN POLICE EMPLOYEES

The personnel of each department differ as to the demands and responsibilities placed before them. Many police officers
are fully occupied with clerical tasks and are not free to perform active police duties. Employing civilians in police departments to
perform clerical duties is in line with the thinking of many police administrators who recommended the use of civilians in this
capacity, thus freeing the sworn personnel for actual police services.

° There were 4,055 municipal civilian police employees in 2010, a decrease of 10 percent when compared to the 4,526 in 2009.

o Sixteen percent of all municipal police employees were civilians.

MUNICIPAL POLICE OFFICERS

This includes the number of sworn police officers employed full-time by the municipalities of the state. The police employee rate
per 1,000 population presented here should not be construed as recommended ratios. The determination of police srength for any
municipality should be based on the numerous factors that create the need for police services. These factors such as crime, vary in
type and degree from place to place. Some examples are: seasonal population, geographic location, density and composition of the

population.
. There were 20,552 full-time municipal police officers in 2010; this represents a decrease of 4 percent when compared to the

21,377 full-time municipal police officers in 2009.

. The number of full-time police officers was calculated at 2.3 per 1,000 population; a decrease of less than one-half of one
percent when compared to 2009. :

. Sworn officers represented 84 of all municpal police employees.

* Collectively, all 21 counties in New Jersey experienced a decrease of municipal police officers in 2010.

° The largest numerical decrease occurred in Bergen County, a decrease of (105) municipal police officers, or 5 percent.

. Essex County,with 3.6 police officers per 1000, inhabitants, recorded the highest rate of full-time municipal police officers.

. Hunterdon and Sussex Counties recorded the lowest rate of full-time municipal officers with 1.3 police officers per 1,000
population.

OTHER POLICE (State Agencies)

In addition to the State Police, there are ten other state agencies reporting to the system. These agencies consist of: NI Forest
Fire Service, Division of Parks & Forestry, Department of Corrections, Department of Human Services, Division of Criminal Justice,
Division of Fish and Wildlife, Office of Weights and Measures, Palisades Interstate Parkway, Port Authority NY/NI, NJ Transit Police, and
New lersey State Park Police. No rates were computed due to the variations in the types of police services rendered, and their

statewide jurisdictions.
e Together, these agencies reported a total of 11,115 full-time employees; a decrease of 5 percent compared to the 11,663 police
employees in 2009.

®  There were 7,958 sworn police officers in 2010, a decrease of 3 percent compared to the 8,229 in 2009.

e Seventy-two percent were sworn personnel, while the remaining 28 percent were civilians.

182 — New Jersey Police Employee Data —
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COUNTY POLICE, SHERIFFS AND PROSECUTORS

The functions of county law enforcement vary widely throughout the state. The operation of one sheriff's department may be
limited exclusively to civil areas and the administration of the county jail, or they may be actively involved in investigating criminal

matters throughout the county.
County police departments are varied in their activities in that some are responsible for enforcement throughout the county,

while others may have as their primary mission the policing of county parklands. The responsibilities of county prosecutors' officers
include criminal investigations, trial preparation, court presentation and special probes. Because of the difference in the types of
police services rendered, rates for county law enforcement agencies are not presented here.

e County law enforcement agencies reported a total of 8,656 full-time police employees in 2010; a decrease of 2 percent compared to
8,826 in 2009.

® There were 5,625 full-time sworn police officers employed by county agencies in 2010. This represents a decrease of less than
one-half of one percent compared to 5,750 in 2009.

e County police agencies reported 3,031 civilian police employees in 2010; a decrease of 1 percent compared to 3,031 civilian
employees in 2009.

® Sworn personnel accounted for 65 percent while the remaining 35 percent were civilians.

STATE POLICE

The New Jersey State Police is empowered to provide all phases of law enforcement throughout the state. It also renders,
upon request, police services to all the law enforcement agencies in the state. No rates are used due to the variations in the nature
and extent of the police services performed by the State Police.

o The New Jersey State Police reported 4,233 full-time police employees; a decrease of 4 percent compared to 4,392 in 2009.

e State Police employed 2,936 officers in 2010, a decrease of 4 percent when compared to 3,040 in 2009.
e The State Police reported 1,297 civilian employees in 2010; a decrease of 4 percent over the 1,352 in 2009.

e Sworn personnel accounted for 69 percent and civilians represented 31 percent of the total State Police employees.
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY
FULL TIME POLICE EMPLOYEES — 2009

D Police Officers Givil Total Police
artment ivilians
P Male Female | Total Employees
2008 20,241 1,474 21,715 4,443 26,158
Municipal Police 2009| 19,908 1,469 21,377 4,526 25,903
Percent Change -2 * -2 2 -1
2008 4,828 939 5,767 3,189 8,956
County Police 2009 4,887 863 5,750 3,076 8,826
Percent Change 1 -8 * -4 -1
2008 368 66 434 397 831
Universities and Colleges 2009 408 76 484 410 894
Percent Change 11 15 12 3 8
2008 2,921 119 3,040 1,459 4,499
State Police 2009 2,924 116 3,040 1,352 4,392
Percent Change * -3 0 -7 2
2008 7,217 1,348 8,565 3,609 12,174
Other State Agencies 2009 6,942 1,287 8,229 3,434 11,663
Percent Change -4 -5 -4 -5 -4

See—@pfobfiate tables for additional breakdowns
* Less than one-half of one percent.
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FULL TIME STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY EMPLOYEES

(Excluding State Police) — 2009

A Police Officers Giv Total Police
gency Male Female Total vilians Employees
Department of Corrections 5,421 1,110 6,531 2,739 9,270
Department of Human Services 114 9 123 7 130
Division of Criminal Justice 151 45 - 196 480 676
Division of Fish & Wildlife 47 4 51 3 54
NJ Forest Fire Service 45 - 45 42 87
NJ Transit Police 200 17 217 65 282
Office of Weights and Measures 13 3 16 18 34
Palisades Interstate Park 25 - 25 1 26
Port Authority NY/NI 854 89 943 76 1,019
2 3 85
3434 | 11663

FULL TIME MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES BY COUNTY — 2009

b 7x

Police Officers - Total Police
County Male Female Total Cuiians Employees
Atantic 853 - 88 941 306 1,247
Bergen 2,062 79 2,141 368 2,509
Burlington 752 45 797 124 921
Camden 1,195 103 1,298 233 1,531
Cape May 318 21 339 94 433
Cumberiand 283 19 302 55 357
Essex 2,459 398 2,857 623 3,480
Gloucester 554 28 582 50 632
Hudson 1,781 - 161 1,942 341 2,283
Hunterdon 168 4 172 17 189
Mercer 847 79 926 223 1,149
Middlesex 1,536 67 1,603 389 1,992
Monmouth 1,445 79 1,524 298 1,822
Morris 1,033 36 1,069 194 1,263
Ocean 1,098 44 1,142 308 1,450
Passaic 1,137 95 1,232 229 1,461
Salem 105 2 107 21 128
Somerset 605 133 763
Sussex 201 55 261
Union 1,323 452 1,865
Warren 153 13 167
TOTAL | 19908 T as6 | 25903
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NUMBER OF MUNICIPAL POLICE OFFICERS
RATE PER 1,000 POPULATION BY COUNTY 2009

and

]
il

Rate per 1,000 population by County
Number of Police Officers by County

State of New Jersey | |2.5]

121,377|

Atlantic {1 [3.5] [941

Bergen | |2.4|

~J2,141|

Burlington | __ |1.8]

|797|

Camden |

[1,298]

Cape May

[339)

Cumberland -

[302]

Essex —

|2,857|

Gloucester |

[582

Hudson Tl -:";.: .

11,942|

Hunterdon | |1.

[172]

Mercer

|926|

Middlesex

[1,603]

Monmouth |

[1,524

Morris

[1,069]

Ocean

|1,142]

Passaic

[1,232]

Salem

J107|

Somerset |

l630]

Sussex

|206|

Union

|1,413]

Warren

[154]
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NUMBER OF MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

and

RATE PER 1,000 POPULATION BY COUNTY 2009

Rate per 1,000 population per County

Total Police Employees
State of New Jersey [  [3.0]
Atlantic] [1,247]
Bergen | |2,509]
Burlington [ |21]
Camden [ [1,531]
Cape May | 433
Cumberland | |357|
'Essex - |a.5] |3,480|
Gloucester | 632
3.8 2,283
1189]
1,149)
|1,992]
. [1,822]
I 1,263
]1,450|
1,461
28]
| 763
1261]
13.6] - 11,865
167]
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FULL TIME COUNTY POLICE EMPLOYEES — 2009

Police Officers s Total Police
Department Male Female Total Cviians Employees
ATLANTIC COUNTY 158 27 185 125 310
Prosecutor 63 15 78 97 175
Sheriff 95 12 107 28 135
BERGEN COUNTY 571 83 654 312 966
Prosecutor 85 25 110 144 254
Sheriff 405 47 452 95 547
Police Department 81 " 92 73 165
BURLINGTON COUNTY 115 38 153 84 237
‘ Prosecutor 61 24 85 64 149
Sheriff 54 14 68 20 88
CAMDEN COUNTY 262 80 342 103 445
Prosecutor 100 57 157 75 232
Sheriff 142 23 165 27 192
Park Police 20 - 20 1 21
CAPE MAY COUNTY 138 31 169 60 229
Prosecutor 28 8 36 41 77
Sheriff 110 23 133 19 152
CUMBERLAND COUNTY 81 16 97 78 175
Prosecutor 33 8 4 70 111
Sheriff 48 8 56 8 64
ESSEX COUNTY 541 69 610 194 804
Prosecutor 185 10 195 124 319
Sheriff 356 59 415 70 485
GLOUCESTER COUNTY 109 17 126 77 203
Prosecutor 29 5 34 61 95
Sheriff 80 12 92 16 108 -
HUDSON COUNTY 255 67 322 227 549
Prosecutor 69 28 97 124 221
Sheriff 186 39 225 103 328
HUNTERDON COUNTY 35 14 49 38 87
Prosecutor 17 9 26 34 60
Sheriff 18 5 23 4 27
MERCER COUNTY 155 23 178 144 322
Prosecutor 40 10 50 114 164
Sheriff 115 13 128 30 158
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FULL TIME COUNTY POLICE EMPLOYEES — 2009

Police Officers e Total Police

Department Male Female Total Civilians Employees
MIDDLESEX COUNTY 225 29 254 168 422
Prosecutor 59 17 76 128 204
Sheriff 166 12 178 40 218
MONMOUTH COUNTY 417 67 484 362 846
Prosecutor 67 14 81 202 283
Sheriff 350 53 403 160 563
MORRIS COUNTY 299 52 351 157 508
Prosecutor 50 17 67 81 148
Sheriff 221 32 253 75 328
Park Police 28 3 31 1 32
OCEAN COUNTY 178 42 220 201 421
Prosecutor 59 21 80 90 170
Sheriff 119 21 140 11 251
PASSAIC COUNTY 564 65 629 257 886
Prosecutor 64 18 82 104 186
Sheriff 500 47 547 153 700
SALEM COUNTY 147 35 182 60 242
Prosecutor 16 4 20 34 54
Sheriff 131 31 162 26 188
SOMERSET COUNTY 204 26 230 109 339
Prosecutor 45 6 51 66 117
Sheriff 159 20 179 43 222
SUSSEX COUNTY 135 26 161 49 210
' Prosecutor 24 9 33 20 53
Sheriff AR 17 128 29 157
UNION COUNTY 266 48 314 228 542
Prosecutor 63 14 77 176 253
Sheriff 131 33 164 44 208
Park Police 72 1 73 8 81
WARREN COUNTY 32 8 40 43 83
Prosecutor 17 4 21 39 60
Sheriff 15 4 19 4 23
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FULL TIME POLICE EMPLOYEES

UNIVERSITIES AND COLLEGES — 2009

Universities and Colleges — "°"‘F‘;:::°" N .
Brookdale Community College 14 - 14 13 27
Essex County College 12 1 13 40 53
Kean University 24 3 27 28 55
Middlesex County College 8 3 " 5 16
Monmouth University 20 1 21 18 39
Montclair State University 27 5 32 11 43
NJ Institute of Technology 22 7 29 42 71
Rowan University 40 62
| ‘(amder)c"ampus’ 19 37 .
New Brunswick Campus 43 6 49 26 75
Newark Campus 25 7 32 25 57
Stevens Institute of Technology 14 1 15 6 21
Richard Stockton College of New Jersey 16 6 22 8 30
The College of New Jersey 17 1 18 11 29
’(afymylen Gampus 16 3 19 - 19
Newark Campus 78 12 90 %0 180
Piscataway Campus - - 0 - 0
New Brunswick Campus 19 5 24 12 36
William Paterson University 21 7 28 16 44
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POLICE EMPLOYEE DATA

The Uniform Crime Reporting Program of New Jersey incorporates the collection of pertinent data relating to the police of the state. Information
regarding police employees strength and trends are discussed in this section.
Individual istings of full-time state, county, university and college police departments are shown intables within this section. Listings of municipal

police departments will be found in Section VII.

The determination of police strength for any given area or municipality should be subject for serious consideration. Such consideration, however,
should be based on the numerous factors which create the need for police services. For example, the increased need for police service in @ municipality
which has a highly mobile or seasonal population differs from a municipality which has a relatively stable population. Some other factors, discussed
elsewhere in this publication, relate to size, density of population, geographic location, character, and proximity to metropolitan areas. The tables and
charts shown in this section should not be interpreted as recommended strength for any given municipality.

TOTAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

Total police employees are defined as the total number of full-time police officers and civilian police employees (clerks, dispatchers, mechanics,
etc.) employed by all law enforcement agencies in the state.

. During 2009, there were 51,678 full-time police employees in New Jersey. This represents a decrease of 2 percent when compared to the
52,618 full-time police employees in 2008.

. The number of full-time police officers decreased 2 percent, from 39,521 in 2008 to 38,880 in 2009.
. The number of full-time civiian employees decreased 2 percent, from 13,097 in 2008 to 12,798 in 2009.

. Seventy-five percent were sworn officers and the remaining 25 percent were civilian employees.

MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

This category consists of the number of police employees, including civiian personnel, employed full-time by municipalities of the state.

. During 2009, there were 25,903 municipal police employees, a decrease of 1 percent compared to the 26,158 in 2008.

. For every 1,000 inhabitants of the state there were 3.0 municipal police employees.
. Union County reported the largest increase in municipal police employees, an increase of 3 percent (55 employees).
. Atlantic County also recorded the highest police employee rate; 4.6 per 1,000 population; (this rate is computed on the static population
and does not take into account the large influx of seasonal and recreational population).
. Hunterdon and Warren Counties recorded the lowest police employee rate of 1.5 per 1,000 population.
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MUNICIPAL CIVILIAN POLICE EMPLOYEES

The personnel of each department differ as to the demands and responsibilities placed before them. Many police officers are fully occupied
with derical tasks and are not free to perform active police duties. Employing civilians in police departments to perform dlerical duties is in line with the
thinking of many police administrators who recommended the use of civilians in this capacity. Thus, reeing the swom personnel for actual police-related

services.

. There were 4,526 municipal civilian police employees in 2009, an increase of 2 percent compared to the 4,443 in 2003.

. Seventeen percent of all municipal police employees were civilians.

MUNICIPAL POLICE OFFICERS

This includes the number of sworn police officers employed fulltime by municipalities of the state. The police employee rate per 1,000
population presented here should not be construed as recommended ratios. The determination of police strength for any municipality should be based
on the numerous factors that create the need for police services. These factors, as crime, vary in type and degree from place to place. Some examples
are: seasonal population, geographic location, density and composition of the population.

. There were 21,377 full-time municipal police officers in 2009; this represents a decrease of 2 percent when compared to the 21,715 full-
time municipal police officers in 2008.

. The number of full-time municipal police officers was calculated at 2.5 per 1,000 population; this remains the same when compared to
2008.
. Swom officers represented 83 percent of all municipal police employees.
. Somerset County recorded the largest numerical increase (22) which represented a 4 percent increase of municipal police officers.
. The largest numerical decrease occurred in Essex County, a decrease of (68) municipal police officers, or 2 percent.
. Essex County, with 3.7 police ofﬁcers per 1,000 inhabitants, recorded the highest rate of full-time municipal police officers.
. Hunterdon County recorded the lowest rate of full-time municipal officers with 1.3 police officers per 1,000 population.

OTHER POLICE (State Agencies)

In addition to the State Police, there are ten other state agencies reporting to the system. These agencies consist of. NJ Forest Fire Service,
Department of Corrections, Department of Human Services, Division of Griminal Justice, Division of Fish and Wildiife, Office of Weights and Measures,
Palisades Interstate Parkway, Port Authority NY/NJ, NI Transit Police and New Jersey State Park Police. No rates were computed due to the variations
in the types of police services rendered, and their statewide jurisdictions.
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Together, these agencies reported a total of 11,663 full-time employees; a decrease of 4 percent compared to the 12,174 police
employees in 2008.

There were 8,229 swomn police officers in 2009, a decrease of 4 percent compared to the 8,565 in 2008.

Seventy-one percent were swom personnel, while the remaining 29 percent were civilians.

COUNTY POLICE, SHERIFFS AND PROSECUTORS

The functions of county law enforcement vary widely throughout the state. The operation of one sheriff's department may be limited exclusively

to civil areas and the administration of the county jail, or they may be actively involved in criminal matters throughout the county.

County police departments are varied in their activities in that some are responsible for enforcement throughout the county, while others may

have as their primary mission the policing of county parklands. The responsibiliies of county prosecutors” officers include criminal investigations, trial
preparation, court presentation and special probes. Because of the difference in the types of police service rendered, rates for county law enforcement
agencies are not presented here.

County law enforcement agencies reported a total of 8,826 full-time police employees in 2009; a decrease of 1 percent compared to
8,956 in 2008.

There were 5,750 full-time sworn police officers employed by county agencies in 2009. This represents a decrease of less than one-half of
one percent compared to 5,767 in 2008.

County police agencies reported 3,076 civilian police employees in 2009; a decrease of 4 percent compared to 3,189 civilian employees
in 2008.

Swomn personnel accounted for 65 percent while the remaining 35 percent were civilians.

STATE POLICE

The New Jersey State Police is empowered to provide all phases of law enforcement throughout the state. It also renders, upon request, police

senvices to all the law enforcement agendies in the state. No rates are used due to the variations in the nature and extent of the police services performed
by the State Police.

The New Jersey State Police reported 4,392 full-time police employees; a decrease of 2 percent compared to 4,499 in 2008.

State Police employed 3,040 officers in 2009, which is unchanged compared to the figures for 2008.
The State Police reported 1,352 civiian employees in 2009; a decrease of 7 percent over the 1,459 reported in 2008.

Swomn personnel accounted for 69 percent and civilians represented 31 percent of the total State Police employees.
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EMPLOYEE DATA
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STATE OF NEW JERSEY
FULL TIME POLICE EMPLOYEES — 2008

* Less than one-half of one percent.

174

"S’ee appropriate tables for additional breakdowns
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Police Officers Total Police
Department Civilians
opd Male Female Total Employees
2007 20,347 1,409 21,756 4,510 26,266
Municipal Police 2008| 20,241 1,474 21,715 4,443 26,158
Percent Change -1 5 * -1 *
2007 5,339 1,034 6,373 3,084 9,457
County Police 2008 4,828 939 5,767 3,189 8,956
Percent Change -10 -9 -10 3 -5
2007 354 62 416 381 797
Universities and Colleges 2008 368 66 434 397 831
Percent Change 4 6 4 4 4
2007 2,883 115 2,998 1,516 4,514
State Police 2008 2,921 119 3,040 1,459 4,499
Percent Change 1 3 1 -4 *
2007 7,133 1,324 8,457 3,645 12,102
Other State Agencies 2008 7,217 1,348 8,565 3,609 12,174
Percent Change 1 2 1 -1 1
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FULL TIME STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY EMPLOYEES

(Excluding State Police) — 2008

A Police Officers Givil Total Police

gency Male Female Total vilians Employees
Department of Corrections 5,599 1,143 6,742 2,855 9,597
Department of Human Services 121 10 131 8 139
Division of Criminal Justice 163 46 209 537 746
Division of Fish & Wildlife 51 4 55 3 58
NJ Forest Fire Service 45 - 45 42 87
NJ Transit Police 178 20 198 67 265
Office of Weights and Measures 14 3 17 17 34
Palisades Interstate Park 25 - 25 3 28
Port Authority NY/NJ 945 110 1,055 77 1,132
76 1 88 | - 88
| 7217 | 1,348 | 8565 | 3609 | 12174

FULL TIME MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES BY COUNTY — 2008

(& »

Police Officers - T i
County Male Female Total Chvilians E(:rtla;I:;;::se
Atlantic 875 86 961 242 1,203
Bergen 2,091 80 2,171 361 2,532
Burlington 765 47 812 131 943
Camden 1,255 109 1,364 234 1,598
Cape May 311 22 333 100 433
Cumberland 284 18 302 54 356
Essex 2,509 416 2,925 655 3,580
Gloucester 567 28 595 59 654
Hudson 1,822 144 1,966 331 2,297
Hunterdon 171 4 175 15 190
Mercer 843 78 921 229 1,150
Middlesex 1,561 69 1,630 378 2,008
Monmouth 1,457 77 1,534 326 1,860
Monis 1,047 37 1,084 199 1,283
Ocean 1,094 45 1,139 315 1,454
Passaic 1,144 92 1,236 224 1,460
Salem 107 2 109 24 133
Somerset 608 26 634 135 769
Sussex 211 5 216 58 274
Union 1,363 88 1,451 359 1,810
Warren 156 1 157 14 171
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NUMBER OF MUNICIPAL POLICE OFFICERS

and
RATE PER 1,000 POPULATION BY COUNTY 2008

__J Rate per 1,000 population by County
|_| Number of Police Officers by County

|21,715]

Atlantic 13.6] ~|o61]
Bergen — [2,171]
Burlington — [a12]
Camden — [1,364
Cape May — 3.5| [333]
Cumberland - {302
Essex 3.8 —]2,925|
Gloucester - [595|
Hudson [1,966]
Hunterdon - [175|
Mercer — |921]
Middlesex - —]1,630]
Monmouth - [1,534]
Morris - [1,084|
Ocean [1,139]
Passaic 11,236]
Salem 109
Somerset |e08|
Sussex ! |216|
Union [1,451]
Warren | |1.4] [157|
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NUMBER OF MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

and

RATE PER 1,000 POPULATION BY COUNTY 2008

i T

" | Rate per 1,000 population per County
| Total Police Employees

State of New Jersey | | 26,158

Atlantic | a4 1,203

Bergen [2,532]
Burlington [943]

Camden 1,598|

Cape May | |as| 433]
Cumberland [356]
Essex |a.6] |3,580|
Gloucester 654

Hudson 138 |2,297|
Hunterdon __[190]

‘Mercer “|1,150]
Middlesex . [2,008]
Monmouth 9| |1,860]

1,283
[1,454]
1,460]
[133]
_|769)
[274]
[1,810
[171]
— New Jersey Police Employee Data — 177

7O



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library.

FULL TIME COUNTY POLICE EMPLOYEES — 2008

Police Officers L Total Police
Department Male Female Total Chilians Employees
ATLANTIC COUNTY 156 23 179 127 306
Prosecutor 64 12 76 97 173
Sheriff 92 11 103 30 133
BERGEN COUNTY 590 113 703 250 953
Prosecutor 116 53 169 94 263
Sheriff 392 49 441 85 526
Police Department 82 " 93 71 164
BURLINGTON COUNTY ) 122 37 159 82 2
Prosecutor 66 22 88 61 149
Sheriff 56 15 71 21 92
CAMDEN COUNTY 253 77 330 106 436
Prosecutor 106 57 163 77 240
Sheriff 127 20 147 28 175
Park Police 20 - 20 1 21
CAPE MAY COUNTY 134 33 | 167 63 230
Prosecutor 27 9 36 42 78
Sheriff 107 24 131 21 152
CUMBERLAND COUNTY 76 16 92 78 170
Prosecutor ' 28 8 36 72 108
Sheriff 48 8 56 6 62
ESSEX COUNTY 362 88 450 356 806
Prosecutor 131 31 162 297 459
Sheriff 231 57 288 59 347
GLOUCESTER COUNTY 106 17 123 76 199
Prosecutor 30 5 35 60 95
Sheriff 76 12 88 16 104
HUDSON COUNTY 244 67 311 219 530
Prosecutor 71 31 102 128 230
Sheriff 173 36 209 91 300
HUNTERDON COUNTY 31 12 43 39 82
Prosecutor 15 9 24 34 58
Sheriff 16 3 19 5 24
MERCER COUNTY 202 45 247 110 357
Prosecutor 75 31 106 72 178
Sheriff 127 14 141 38 179
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FULL TIME COUNTY POLICE EMPLOYEES — 2008

Police Officers o Total Police
Department Male Female Total Chilians Employees

MIDDLESEX COUNTY 229 32 261 166 427
Prosecutor 63 17 80 125 205

Sheriff 166 15 181 41 222

MONMOUTH COUNTY 512 69 581 399 980
Prosecutor 67 13 80 204 284

Sheriff 445 56 501 195 696

MORRIS COUNTY 309 51 360 162 522
Prosecutor 50 17 67 82 149

Sheriff 231 31 262 79 341

Park Police 28 3 31 1 32

OCEAN COUNTY 173 43 216 190 406
Prosecutor 57 22 79 94 173

Sheriff 116 21 137 9% 233

PASSAIC COUNTY 545 68 613 2 884
Prosecutor 64 18 82 107 189

Sheriff 481 50 531 164 695

SALEM COUNTY 143 34 177 58 235
Prosecutor 16 4 20 34 54

Sheriff 127 30 157 24 181

SOMERSET COUNTY 207 29 236 114 350
Prosecutor 45 8 53 70 123

Sheriff 162 21 183 44 227

SUSSEX COUNTY 130 27 157 44 201
Prosecutor 24 9 33 20 53

Sheriff 106 18 124 24 148

UNION COUNTY 272 49 321 237 558
Prosecutor 63 15 78 181 259

Sheriff 136 33 169 44 213

Park Police 73 1 74 12 86

WARREN COUNTY 32 9 4 42 83
Prosecutor 17 5 22 38 60

Sheriff 15 4 19 4 23
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FULL TIME POLICE EMPLOYEES
UNIVERSITIES AND COLLEGES — 2008

Universities and Colleges Male Poli:z::ers Totl Civilians Lﬁlz;:::
Brookdale Community College 13 - 13 13 26
Essex County College 12 1 13 37 50
Kean University 24 3 27 26 53
Middlesex County College 9 2 11 5 16
Monmouth University 20 1 21 15 36
Montclair State University 26 5 31 12 43
NJ Institute of Technology 21 7 28 31 59
Rowan University 18 4 22 34 56
[ahtden CGampus 37
New Brunswick Campus 48 7 55 35 90
Newark Campus 28 5 33 31 64
Stevens Institute of Technology 16 - 16 5 21
Richard Stockton College of New Jersey 17 7 24 8 32
The College of New Jersey " 27
Camden(amplls 16 3 - 19
Newark Campus 29 4 33 87 120
Piscataway Campus - - 0 - 0
New Brunswick Campus 25 5 30 9 39
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POLICE EMPLOYEE DATA

The Uniform Crime Reporting Program of New Jersey incorporates the collection of pertinent data relating to the police of the state. Information

regarding police employees strength and trends are discussed in this section.
Individual istings of full-time state, county, university and college police departments are shown in tables within this section. Listings of municipal

police departments will be found in Section VII.
The determination of police strength for any given area or municipality should be subject for serious consideration. Such consideration, however,

should be based on the numerous factors which create the need for police services. For example, the increased need for police service in a municipality
which has a highly mobile or seasonal population differs from a municipality which has a relatively stable population. Some other factors, discussed
elsewhere in this publication, relate to size, density of population, geographic location, character, and proximity to metropolitan areas. The tables and
charts shown in this section should not be interpreted as recommended strength for any given municipality.

TOTAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

Total police employees are defined as the total number of full-time police officers and civilian police employees (clerks, dispatchers, mechanics,
etc.) employed by all law enforcement agencies in the state.

. During 2008, there were 52,618 full-time police employees in New Jersey. This represents a decrease of 1 percent when compared to the
53,136 full-time police employees in 2007.

. The number of full-time police officers decreased 1 percent, from 40,000 in 2007 to 39,521 in 2008.

. The number of full-time civiian employees decreased less than one-half of one percent, from 13,136 in 2007 to 13,097 in 2008.

. Seventy-five percent were sworn officers and the remaining 25 percent were civilian employees.

MUNICIPAL POLICE EMPLOYEES

This category consists of the number of police employees, including civilian personnel, employed full-time by municipalities of the state.

. During 2008, there were 26,158 municipal police employees, a decrease of less than one-half of one percent compared to the 26,266 in
2007.

. For every 1,000 inhabitants of the state there were 3.0 municipal police employees.

. Essex County reported the largest increase in municipal police employees, an increase of 2 percent (82 employees).

. Essex County also recorded the highest police employee rate; 4.6 per 1,000 population; (this rate is computed on the static population
and does not take into account the large infiux of seasonal and recreational population).

. Hunterdon County recorded the lowest police employee rate of 1.5 per 1,000 population.
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MUNICIPAL CIVILIAN POLICE EMPLOYEES

The personnel of each department differ as to the demands and responsibilties placed before them. Many police officers are fully occupied
with clerical tasks and are not free to perform active police duties. Employing civilians in police departments to perform clerical duties is in line with the
thinking of many police administrators who recommended the use of civilians in this capacity. Thus, freeing the swom personnel for actual police-related

services.
. There were 4,443 municipal civilian police employees in 2008, a decrease of 2 percent compared to the 4,510 in 2007.

. Seventeen percent of all municipal police employees were civilians.

MUNICIPAL POLICE OFFICERS

This includes the number of sworn police officers employed full-time by municipalities of the state. The police employee rate per 1,000
population presented here should not be construed as recommended ratios. The determination of police strength for any municipality should be based
on the numerous factors that create the need for police services. These factors, as crime, vary in type and degree from place to place. Some examples

are: seasonal population, geographic location, density and composition of the population.

. There were 21,715 full-ime municipal police officers in 2008; this represents a decrease of less than one-half of one percent when
compared to the 21,756 full-time municipal police officers in 2007.

. The number of full-time municipal police officers was calculated at 2.5 per 1,000 population; this remains when compared to 2007.

. Sworn officers represented 83 percent of all municipal police employees.

. Essex County recorded the largest numerical increase (99) which represented a 3.5 percent increase of municipal police officers.

. The largest numerical decrease occurred in Hudson County, a decrease of (35) municipal police officers, or 2 percent.

. Essex County, with 3.8 police officers per 1,000 inhabitants, recorded the highest rate of full-time municipal police officers.

. Hunterdon, Sussex and Warren Counties recorded the lowest rate of full-time municipal officers with 1.4 police officers per 1,000
population.

OTHER POLICE (State Agencies)

In addition to the State Police, there are ten other state agencies reporting to the system. These agencies consist of: NJ Forest Fire Service,
Department of Corrections, Department of Human Services, Division of Criminal Justice, Division of Fish and Wildlife, Office of Weights and Measures,
Palisades Interstate Parkway, Port Authority NY/NJ, NJ Transit Police and New Jersey State Park Police. No rates were computed due to the variations
in the types of police services rendered, and their statewide jurisdictions.
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Together, these agencies reported a total of 12,174 full-ime employees; an increase of 1 percent compared to the 12,102 police
employees in 2007. :

There were 8,565 swom police officers in 2008, an increase of 1 percent compared to the 8,457 in 2007.

Seventy percent were swom personnel, while the remaining 30 percent were civilians.

COUNTY POLICE, SHERIFFS AND PROSECUTORS

The functions of county law enforcement vary widely throughout the state. The operation of one sheriff's department may be limited exclusively

to civil areas and the administration of the county jail, or they may be actively involved in criminal matters throughout the county.

County police departments are varied in their activities in that some are responsible for enforcement throughout the county, while others may

have as their primary mission the policing of county parklands. The responsibilties of county prosecutors” officers include criminal investigations, trial
preparation, court presentation and special probes. Because of the difference in the types of police service rendered, rates for county law enforcement

agendies are not presented here.

County law enforcement agencies reported a total of 8,956 full-time police employees in 2008; a decrease of 5 percent compared to
9,457 in 2007.

There were 5,767 full-time sworn police officers employed by county agencies in 2008. This represents a decrease of 10 percent
compared to 6,373 in 2007.

County police agencies reported 3,189 civilian police employees in 2008; an increase of 3 percent compared to 3,084 dvilian employees
in 2007. _

Swomn personnel accounted for 64 percent while the remaining 36 percent were civilians.

STATE POLICE

The New Jersey State Police is empowered to provide all phases of law enforcement throughout the state. It also renders, upon request, police

services to all the law enforcement agencies in the state. No rates are used due to the variations in the nature and extent of the police services performed
by the State Police.

The New Jersey State Police reported 4,499 full-time police employees; a decrease of less than one-half of one percent compared to
4,514 in 2007.

State Police employed 3,040 officers in 2008, this represented an increase of 1 percent when compared to 2,998 in 2007.
The State Police reported 1,459 civilian employees in 2008; a decrease of 4 percent over the 1,516 reported in 2007.

Sworn personnel accounted for 68 percent and civilians represented 32 percent of the total State Police employees.
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Uniform Crime Report

Law Enforcement Officers Killed and Assaulted, 2010

Officers Feloniously Killed

This page provides information about duly sworn city, university and college, county,
state, tribal, and federal law enforcement officers who were feloniously killed in the line
of duty during 2010 and who met certain other criteria (e.g., they had full arrest powers;

they ordinarily wore a badge and carried a firearm).
Overview
e In 2010, 56 law enforcement officers were feloniously killed in the line of duty.

e Of the officers feloniously killed, 32 were employed by city police departments,
including 13 who were members of law enforcement agencies in cities with

250,000 or more inhabitants.
e Line-of-duty deaths occurred in 22 states and Puerto Rico.

e By region, 22 officers were feloniously killed in the South, 18 officers in the West,
10 officers in the Midwest, 3 in the Northeast, and 3 officers were feloniously
killed in the U.S. territory of Puerto Rico.

More information about these topics (including annual totals from 2001 to 2010) is

provided in Tables 1, 2, 15, 16, 21, 22, 28, 29, and 30.

Victim profile

o The average age of the officers who were feloniously killed in 2010 was 38 years.
e The slain officers’ average length of law enforcement service was 10 years.

e Of the 56 officers slain in 2010, 54 were male, and 2 were female.

o By race, 48 of the victim officers were white, 7 were black, and 1 was

Asian/Pacific Islander.

More information about these topics is provided in Tables 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, and 11.

Law Enforcement Officers Killed and Assaulted, 2010 U.S. Department of Justice—Federal Bureau of Investigation
Released October 2011
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Circumstances

15 officers were killed in ambush situations.

14 officers died as a result of felonious attacks during arrest situations.

8 officers were slain while investigating suspicious persons/circumstances.
7 officers were killed during traffic pursuits/stops.

6 officers were murdered answering disturbance calls.

3 officers were slain during tactical situations (barricaded offender, hostage
taking, high-risk entry, etc.).

2 officers were killed while conducting investigative activity (surveillance, search,

interview, etc.).

1 officer was killed while transporting or maintaining custody of a prisoner.

More information about this topic (including a breakdown of the types of circumstances

in which officers were feloniously killed) is provided in Tables 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25,

26, 31, 32, 33, and 34.

Assignments

42 officers who were slain in 2010 were on assigned vehicle patrol.

8 officers were assigned to other duties, such as special assignments or

undercover, when they were murdered.
5 of the slain officers were off duty but acting in an official capacity.
32 on-duty officers slain in 2010 were assisted at the time of the attacks.

19 on-duty officers were alone and unassisted at the time of the incidents.

More information about this topic is provided in Tables 15, 16, 17, 18, 23, 24, 25, and 26.

Law Enforcement Offficers Killed and Assaulted, 2010 U.S. Department of Justice—Federal Bureau of Investigation

Released October 2011
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Weapons

e Of officers killed in 2010, most (55) were killed with firearms. Of these, 38 were
killed with handguns. (A breakdown of the types of weapons used in these
slayings is provided in Table 27.)

e 7 officers were killed with their own weapons.
e 7 officers attempted to use their weapons; 16 officers fired their weapons.
e o1 officers were slain with firearms when they were o-5 feet from the offenders.

More information about this topic is provided in Tables 12, 13, 14, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32,

33, 34, 35, 36, 39, and 41.
Body armor

e In 2010, 38 of the officers feloniously killed were wearing body armor at the time

of their murders.
e Of the 38 officers who were wearing body armor and killed with firearms:
10 were shot in the side of the head.
7 suffered wounds to the front of the head.
7 were wounded in the front upper torso.
5 were shot in the neck.
3 were shot in the stomach.
3 were shot in the rear of the head.
2 officers were shot in the back.
1 officer was shot in the rear below the waist.

More information about this topic (including annual totals from 2001 to 2010) is

provided in Tables 37, 38, 39, 40, and 41.

Law Enforcement Officers Killed and Assaulted, 2010 U.S. Department of Justice—Federal Bureau of Investigation

Released October 2011
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Regional and outlying area breakdowns

Of the 56 officers who died in 2010 as a result of felonious attacks:
e 22 officers were employed in the South.

e 18 officers were employed in the West.

e 10 officers were employed in the Midwest.

e 3 officers were employed in the Northeast.

« 3 officers were employed in Puerto Rico.

More information about this topic (including annual totals from 2001 to 2010) is

provided in Tables 1, 21, 22, 29, and 30.
Months, days, and times of incidents

e More officers (8) died from felonious assaults that occurred in December than in

any other month in 2010.

e More officers (12) were involved in fatal assaults that occurred on Wednesday

than on any other day of the week.

e More officers (19) were fatally injured in assaults that happened between

8:01 p.m. and midnight than at any other time period.

More information about these topics (including annual totals from 2001 to 2010) is

provided in Tables 3, 4, 5, 17, and 18.
Profile of alleged known assailants

In 2010, 69 alleged offenders were identified in connection with the 56 law enforcement

officers feloniously killed. Of those offenders, the following characteristics are known:

e The average age of the alleged offenders was 31 years old.

Law Enforcement Officers Killed and Assaulted, 2010 U.S. Department of Justice—Federal Bureau of Investigation
' Released October 2011
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o The average height was 5 feet 10 inches tall, and the average weight was 178

pounds.
o 67 of the alleged offenders were male; 2 were female.
e 25 of the alleged offenders were white, and 35 were black.
e Most (57) of the alleged offenders had prior criminal arrests.

e 19 of the alleged offenders were under judicial supervision at the time of the

incidents.

e 10 of the alleged offenders were under the influence of a controlled substance at

the time of the fatal incidents.

« 7 of the alleged offenders were under the influence of alcohol or were intoxicated

at the time of the fatal incidents.

More information about these topics is provided in Tables 42, 43, 44, 45, and 46.

Law Enforcement Officers Killed and Assaulted, 2010 U.S. Department of Justice—Federal Bureau of Investigation
Released October 2011
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Officer Down Memorial Page

pemembering All of Law Enforcement’s Heroes

2011 Honor Roll of Heroes
Total Line of Duty Deaths: 166
Aircraft accident: 1

Animal related: 1

Assault: 5

Automobile accident: 34
Drowned: 4

Duty related illness: 7
Explosion: 1

Gunfire: 67

Gunfire (Accidental): 5

Heart attack: 11

Heat exhaustion: 1

Motorcycle accident: 5
Stabbed: 2

Struck by vehicle: 4

Training accident: 1

Vehicle pursuit: 4

Vehicular assault: 12

Weather/Natural disaster: 1

Read more: http://Www.odmp.org/search/year?year=201 1#ixzz1ssU6Pq3A
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FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE
NEWARK LoDGE No. 12

51 RECTOR STREET 07102
FOP Office Telephone (973) 642-0390
FAX: (973) 642-6378

April 25", 2012

Chairman Mainor, and members of the committee, thank you for
the opportunity to sit before you today.

I am the newly elected President of the Newark Fraternal Order of
Police, Lodge 12, the union representing the Police Officers of
New Jersey’s largest city. I am proud to say that I am a 4™
generation Newark Police Officer, following in the foot-steps of
my Great Grandfather, who joined the department in 1890, my
Grandfather, who joined in 1940, and my Father, who came on in
1977. 1 graduated the academy in 1995. Lastly, my younger
brother joined the department in 2007.

As you are aware, the men and women in the public safety field
have been in the cross hairs from politicians both on the National
and local levels. We make too much money, and our benefits are
too rich are the cries we often hear. Somehow, somebody made
the public think that their high taxes, lack of better services, maybe
even the outrageous price of gas, is somehow connected to us. The
people of New Jersey seem to think that if we, the cops of New
Jersey, were to lose pay, and rank, and other brother and sister
cops to layoffs, and contribute more to pension and healthcare
costs, and work longer until retirement, that this would somehow
benefit them financially. When did we become the bad guys?

We all took this job knowing the inherent risks that go with it. The
physical and mental stress, the unusual work hours, missing the
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kid’s games and plays, working holidays and birthdays, and we
accepted that. Thanks to legislators in Trenton last summer we
now also have to deal with the loss of thousands of dollars in take
home pay that is now going toward a pension system that is in dire
straights because money was taken from it years ago to fund other
needs, and to health care costs that seem to be sky rocketing
yearly, yet never seems to be addressed.

Now, thanks to cuts in budgetary aid, the men and women of the
Newark Police Department are left to handle an ever increasing
workload with well over 200 less cops than we had just 17 months

ago.

The workload I speak of is common in every town. The blocked
driveway, the landlord/tenant dispute, the noise complaints, all part
of a day in the life of cop in New Jersey. But then in Newark,
there is a little bit more. We are dealing with a burgeoning gang
situation where it is no longer uncommon to find suspects
committing crimes with assault weapons usually seen by our
armed forces in Iraq and Afghanistan. We have crime scenes
where dozens of spent shells are recovered. We have a carjacking
problem so prevalent, a task force was formed to combat it.
Homicides, shootings, robberies, and burglaries have steadily
increased over the last 3 years. Newark had 91 murders in 2011,
up from 80 in 2009. Newark had 349 shootings in 2011, up from
258 in 2009. Robberies, which many experts in the crime analysis
field believe is the truest indicator to gauge the increase or
decrease in crime, are up 47% over 2 years ago, leaping from
1,373 in 2009 to 2,020 in 2011. Meanwhile, arrests are down
nearly 4,000 from 2010 to 2011. Less cops equals less deterrence.
Less cops equals less opportunity to be in that “right place, right

time”

How can a police department, down more than 200 officers since
2010, keep up? We are simply responding to calls for service.

gYx
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There is no time for officers to check out the suspicious car, or to
stop and check out the group standing on the corner.

Budget woes forced Newark to lay off 162 cops in November of
2010. A grant from the COPS program in Washington enabled
Newark to rehire twenty-five of those men and women earlier this
year. At least 116 of the rest of them have been hired by other
police agencies throughout New Jersey. Great for that particular
department, but a huge loss for Newark. Newark paid to have
them physically and psychologically tested, Newark paid them
while they trained in the academy, Newark paid them for the short
time they worked the streets of Newark. And then Newark showed
that investment the door. At least another 44 cops retired from our
department in 2011, 36 more have already put their papers in with
the state to retire this year, but we expect that number to balloon to
close to 60 as 2013 nears. There are no prospects to hire anybody

else.

Funding to hire new cops is not a luxury, it is a necessity. At some
point in their career, every cop reaches the point where their time
as a front line guy winds down. We get older, age and injuries take
their toll on the body. There are places for that cop to utilize his
knowledge and experience whether it be in a supervisory roll, or
the detective squad, or the traffic division. The bad guy? He
never gets older. He is always the 22 year old. Always ready to
fight, or to run. He gets arrested today, another 22 year old
replaces him. He gets killed in the street, another 22 year old
replaces him too. New cops, young men and women, are needed
in every department so that we are always physically ready to take
on the challenges that come with the streets we work in.

Budget woes have forced my department to eliminate overtime to
staff manpower shortages. We used to have a set number of cops
who worked every tour in every precinct. There was a minimum
staffing level that needed to be met. That no longer exists. If a
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precinct only has 4 guys to go out, they go out with 4 guys. One
job with a person shot and your 4 officers are tied up. Nobody to
handle the other calls for service, or the next shooting, or robbery,

or burglary in progress.

The mayor of Newark promised the citizens “nobody will notice
the difference” when the cops were laid off. Unfortunately, he was
wrong, and there are a long line of victims to prove it.

I have provided you with several documents to help illustrate the
points I spoke of today.

1) Story from April 26™, 2011, from nj.com, detailing the violent
crime spike after the layoffs.

2) Email from acting Captain Dossantos (Directors office) to
subordinates, detailing what minimum staffing levels should be,
dated June 7", 2011. F ollowing that is email from Deputy Chief
Campos, advising subordinates that no overtime is to be used to
meet minimum staffing levels, dated November 28“’, 2011.
Followed by Precinct Commander memo to his subordinates
indicating no overtime is to be used to meet staffing levels, dated
November 29™ 2011. Following the memo are tour sheets from
three of the 4 precincts for the next midnight tour, showing that
they all went out short staffed do to overtime constraints. Lastly,
another nj.com story, where the administration tries to say it was
all a misunderstanding.

3) Next are several NJ.com stories, from around the same time
frame as the decision to reduce minimum staffing levels. (The
story regarding the murder of the Newark cop was used because
the surveillance photos were taken from a store at Broad and
Market Streets, Newark’s busiest intersection)
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4) NJ.com story regarding the hiring of laid off cops with the
COPS grant. (Note the mayor “tweeted” 20 more by Feb 1. Did
not happen, instead 17 more were hired Feb 27™, there have been
no others). There are then several crime stories from around the

same time frame.

5) Newark council member robbed at gun point in front of his
home.

6) Graph showing increase in several major crime categories from
2009 to 2011.

7) One year total of crime in Newark from November 30™, 2010 to
November 2011.

8) Retirements from 2011 and 2012.

Thank you,
James Stewart Jr,
President, Newark FOP Lodge 12
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From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:

Subject:

Dossantos, Kerry
Tuesday, June 07, 2011 12:34 PM

Perez, Antonio;_Costa, Anthony; Plaza, Louie; Rosario, Barbara; Schneider, Kevin; Quackenbush,
Greg, H?:gue. T.nmothy; Tavares, Jose; Clark, Caroline; Ballard, Eugene: Campos, Anthony; Matos,
John; Mitti, Maria; Bastos, Maria; Gaven, Kevin; Richardson, Deser}

Demaio, Samuel; quver Tracy; Broxton-Cole, Susan; Perez, Adolph; Purcell, Robert; Lockett,
Robfa(t; Easter, Marvin; Roman, Ivonne; Caballero, Gloria; Hicks, Tytriyanta; Rodrigues-Alfieri,
Patricia; Fletcher, Doreen; Tutela, Joseph; Gonzalez, Felipe; Nieves-Hall, Grissel

Core minimum

Importance: High
Core minimum, for now, is

8 police officers on the day tour
10 police officers on the afternoon tour

8 police officers on the midnight tour

Squadrol is above the core.

Overtime to be used only after all means have been exhausted to fill spots with on-duty
personnel from other commands. Command Post shall be contacted when on-duty to

coordinate coverage for core shortages.

All commands to work together to fill core shortages.

11/28/2011
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From: Campos, Anthony

Sent: Monday, November 28, 2011 2:58 PM

To: Campos, Anthony; Perez, Antonio; Quackenbush, Greg; Clark, Caroline: Venable Eugene; Dossantos
Kerry )

Subject: RE:

For clarification as | am sure the question will surface... there is no longer core or minimum staffing. .

there is absolutely no overtime available for staffing under any circumstances at the current time. Again,
OT shall be available for addressing crime based upon a plan and only after approval is provided.

From: Campos, Anthony
Sent: Monday, November 28, 2011 2;40 PM
To: Perez, Antonio; Quackenbush, Greg; Clark, Caroline; Venable Eugene; Dossantos, Kerry

Subject:

Commanders,

Upon reviewing OT reports, it is evident that OT is being utilized to fill in book-offs (manpower). Upon
discussion, | was advised that OT is not to be utilized in this manner for the remainder of the year, OT
shall only be utilized for crime issues based upon a plan and prior approval. Take note and correct.

Pode

11/28/2011
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NEWARK POLICE DEPARTMENT
2nd Precinct

MEMORANDUM
TO: ALL PERSONNEL . DATE: November 29, 2011
FROM: ANTONIO PEREZ, CAPTAIN  NUMBER: 1195

COMMANDING OFFICER, 2"° PRECINCT

SUBJECT: OVERTIME S FILE REF: SWN 2-3-1

Effective immediately, all overtime expenditures shall cease. The Desk
Supervisor shall be allowed to detail any personnel within the precinct to
avoid overtime expenditures. The Desk Supervisor shall document change
in precinct staffing to eliminate overtime in his/her Unusual Report.

It is incumbent upon the Field Supervisor to eliminate any overtime
pertaining to Prisoners Guards, Guarding Crime Scenes ~ any
modification to staffing shall be documented on the Unusual Report.

Therefore, to ensure consistency in precinct policy relative to this matter,
each Supervisor-Officer is whereby-ordered to notify the Desk Supervisor
— one hour prior to the end of the tour — if overtime is an issue.

The only exception is court overtime.

All Superv1sors shall sign a copy of this directive, acknowledging receipt

| and comphance by Monday, December 5% 2011.
'(; >\

’ ANTON"IO PEREZ CAPTAgT;}
COMMANDING OFFICER;Z*™ PREC
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COMMAND: 2nd Bureau TOUR:  2400/0800 -DAY: Wednesday DATE: November 30, 2011
PLATOON: A SQUADS: A1-A3 : COLOR OF DAY:
ASSIGNMENT | RANK/NAME | ID# | TOUR ASSIGNMENT | RANK/NAME | ID# [ TOUR
DESK PERSONNEL FIELD SUPERVISORS
Desk Lt: Lt Jose Gonzalez | 7051 2200/0600 203 Sgt. L. Turco 7758 D/I 3rc
Door Luis J. Velez 10092 2130/0600
Processing ~ [ Gladys Marin 7080 2130/0600 Mandatory: Ensure Gas Stations are logged
SECTOR UNITS
UNIT | CAR NAME . ID# TOUR SQUAD COMMENTS
211 %) Basecm Zaghloul ¥ 9333 2330/0800 A3 Covering 213
211 % Latoya Young 9630 2330/0800 Al Covering 213
212 |7),, | David Couto U b, 9936 2330/0800 Al -
712\ Up | Carlos Cruz_{f\ 9250 2330/0800 ‘Al
217 k7 | Anthony Buono 9871 2330/0800 Al Covering 216
217 [ I'l | AnthonyP. Scala ¥ 10094 2330/0800 Al Covering 216
V4] A des PATROL UNITS
247A [ Edwin Cooper X1 | | 7834 | 2330/0800 | [ Forest hills unit
EX USAL:; VACATION; TRAINING:; ETC. ' PERSONNEL SICK AND/OR INJURED
Name ID# Tour/Squad Reason Name Tour/Squad Reason
Lt. Angelo Sciara 6801 2400/0800 Al Terminal leave
Carecm Yarborough | -9448 2330/0800 A3 RANGE
Albero Vega 8035 2330/0800 Al Military
Jose Roman 7810 2300/0800 A3 Vac 12/7
Wayne Vargas 9446 2330/0800 Al Vac 12/8 Detailed
Joao Barbosa 10055 2330/0800 A3 Suspended 12/7 | | ]

EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY AND UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE NO OVERTIME SHALL BE UTILIZED
FOR COVERING MINIMUM STAFFING OR MANDATORY POSTS. CALL OTHER COMMANDS
FOR EXTRA PERSONNEL; IF NONE ARE AVAILABLE CORE WILL GO OUT SHORT

Desk Lieutenant:

1. | Audit the subpoena book & ensure your squad’s subpoenas are being issued.

2 | All Complaints shall be referred to the Executive Officer or night Commander. During the midnight
tour, the Desk Lieutenant shall handle Citizen’s complaints.

Ensure all memorandums are read.

Ensure an after action report is completed and submitted for every tour.

Field Sipervisors:

sector.

Ensure Units are pro active in their respective sectors & booking gas stations and businesses in their

2. | Ensure Curfew Violations are included jn after action.

Unpit # | Initials

Unit#

Initials Unit #

Initials | Unit# | Initials

Unit #

Initials

Unit #

Initials

Pse

2
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COMMAND: 4tb_Precinct TOUR:  2400/0800 DAY: WEDNESDAY DATE: NOVEMBER 30,201
PLATOON: A SQUADS: Al & A3 ' COLOR OF DAY: p0, 4/~
DESK PERSONNEL FIELD SUPERVISORS
ASSIGNMENT | RANK/NAME ID# | TOUR UNIT | RANK/NAME 1ID# TOUR CAR#
Desk’'Lt: LT.M.LATORRE 7172 | 2200/0600 ‘403 | SGT. M. GILLENS 6361 2345-0800
Doorman L. McNEIL 9351 | 2200/0600 404
“Reserve manSM ] L.TAYLOR L/D | 9463 | 2200/0600 | Driver
Notifications M. GONZALEZ | 7792 | 2200/0600 | UNIT 403 CHECK THE CEMETERY ON ROSE ST.
. ‘ FIELD UNITS
UMT | CAR NAME ID# TOUR SQUAD |- COMMENTS
412 R. CON¥ERS 9875 | 2330/0800 A3 NCC GRID: SOA to SPRINGFIELD AVE.
42 L. GIg¥DES 9021 | 2400/0300 E2 JONES ST to BERGEN ST
12 L. McNEIL 9351 | 0300/0600 Al
’ UNIT MUST REMAIN IN GRID AREA WHEN OPEN
COVER SECTOR 411
415 T. PHILLIPS 9891 | 2330/0800 Al Springfield Ave to Rose Terr/Kent/Brenner/Winans/Rose St
415 T. HINNANT 9886 | 2330/0800 Al SPRINGFIELD AVE-SO18TH to SO 20TH
COVER SECTOR 413
416 "~ | C.GARY Sup | 7968 | 2330/0800 A3 GRID #1: 15" AVE to SOA, SO. 14™ ST to SO 16 ST
416 M. ALEXANDER 9288 2330/0800 A3 MUST REMAIN IN GRID WHEN OPEN
COVER SECTOR 414
418 J. WATSON 6497 | 2330/0800 Al STUYVESANT TO SMITH FROM SOA TO SILVER ST
418 C. GRUBBS 7713 | 2330/0800 A3 MUST REMAIN IN GRID WHEN OPEN
CHECK KNOCKOUTS AT CLOSING
COVER SECTOR 417
MANDATORY UNITS :
436 SPRINGFIELD AVE./18™ AVE.
436 S.10"™™ ST TO THE CITY LINE
EXCUSAL; VACATION; TRAINING; ETC. PERSONNEL SICK AND/OR INJURED
Name ID# Tour/Squad_ Reason Name © " |ID# 7| Tour/Squad | Reas
T. DANZEY 7629 Al 11/22-12/13 | VACATION
M. MADURO 9262 | A3 11/24-12/07 | VACATION
TEMPORARY TRANSFER LONG TERM
S. WADDELL L/D 7235 | Al LTS
S. MCCLEES 9833 | Al LTS

(]

. Supervisor Initials x A

Desk Supervisor shall ensure units are advised of the above instructions. Directed Patrols shall be issued at the beginning of
tour and turned in at the completion of their tour of duty.

Supervisor Initials x Ml{

Specialized Units shall not be utilized in core or hospital watches unless at minimum staffing and no other means are availab.

Desk supervisors shall advise all units of the sectors the units will be covering for their tour of duty. The covering sectors are

indicated on tour sheetshw _

Supervisor Initials x
Desk supervisors shall indicgc on tour sheets reasons or any changes made to line-up due to book-offs or mistakes.

Supervisor Initials x éd“, /
Desk supervisors shall be e §},|re that unit designations comply with operations memo #08-102.

Supervisor Initials x
Training Units SHALL NOT be used as ALPHA UNITS, SQUAD ROLL or USED FOR A HOSPITAL WATCH.

FAILURE Td COMPLY WITH THESE WRITTEN DIRECTIVES SHALL RESULT IN DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS.

] 7MW T TTE" 5 P /L/Jﬁ [/

BESK SUPERVIS®R (Print/Sign/ID#)

DATE

— At L= tin. e s (o] Q‘x



‘COMMAND: 5" Precinct TOUR: _ 2400/0800 ° DAY:; WEDNESDAY R DATE: NOVEMEBER 30, 2011
PLATOON: A . . 1 SQUADS: A1 & A3 - 7| Stay Alert! Stay Alive! - . & COLOROFDAY:- .
; SONNE]L; - L. L e FIELD SUPERVISORS
ASSIGNMENT | RANK/INAME ID# TQUR - UNIT | RANK/NAME o ID# TOUR CARH#
Daesk Lt: Sgt. R. Eurc 7706 | 2200/0600 503 Sgt. R. Rodriguez 6938 2400/0800
Wk A - hall be accepted** **Supervisors shall ensure motor vehicle stops are coOnducted.
Door Derrick Golden 7971 2200/0600
Prooessing Marc Garrett © 9382 2200/0600 | “*532 can be utilized to cover corxc if nceessary
Reserve- Barry Baker® 7054 | 2200/0600 i
TUNIT CAR . NAME . ID# TOUR . SQUAD ) . COMMENTS .
S11 Gregory Hamilton 6483 2330/0800 A3 Leslie St to Clinton PVLyons Ave to WNye Ave
(Robberies).
511 Deems Sxith 6969 2330/0800 A3 Leslie St to Clinton P}/Lyons Ave to Nye Ave
(Robberies).
512 Darryl Lindsey 9066 2330/0800 A5 S. 137 St to S. 20" SvClinton Ave to Avon Ave
512 Frank Murchison 10059 | 2330/0800 Al S. 13" St1o S. 20" SUClinton Ave to_Avon Ave
515 Boverly Gravely o255 2330/0800 oAl ITE to Milford Ave/W. Bigelow to Muhammad Ali.
Attention:125 Avon Ave-Log three times during
your tour
515 Tyshima Hinnant 9639 2330/0800 Al ITB to Milford Ave/W, Bigelow to Muhammad Ali.
Attention:128 Avon Ave-Log three times during
your tour,
532 Fabyan P} Corrjdor to Osborne Terr /Hawthome Ave
to Clinton Ave - Must stay in 312 sector
533 Rabyan Pl Corridor to Osborne Terr /Hawthome Ave
toc Clinton Ave - Must stay in 512 sector
- EXCUSAL: VACATION: TRAINING: ETC. - . S PERSONNEL SICK AND/OR INNJURED
Name ] ] 1D#. | Tour/Sguad | Reason . Name .| TO# .. Reason
Warren Griffith 7452 2330/0800 Al Vac 11/22-12/7 Judith Robinson 0442 | 2330/0800 A3 LTS
Tenotta Mandervilie 9077 2330/0800 A1 Vac 11/22-12/10 Lt. T, Childress 6730 | 2200/0600 LTI 12/30
Claudc Cain 7781 2330/0800 A3 Vac 11/21-12/9 Myron Daniels 7436 | 2330/0800 A3 Vac 11/19-
11/30
Darion Hazeall 7734 2330/0800 A3 Vac 11/24-12/12 Glen Drinkard 7118 2330/0800 A3 Range
Kim Homendcz 9817 2330/0800 Al LTI 12/30 Joseph Bemal 9374 | 2330/0800 A3 | Detalled out

**x*PDESK SUPERVISOR SHALL ENSURE MEDICAL CERTIFICATION
PERSONNEL PROVIDE A DOCTOR’S NOTE UrON RETURN TO DUTY,

FAILURE OF PERSONNEL TO PROVIDE NOTE SHALL RESULT IN

DISCIPLINARY ACTION.

Tour Sheets are not to be changed without Captain’s Approval

1. Desk Supervisor shall ensure unirs are advised of the above instructions. Directed Patro)s jssued shall be tumed in at the

complection of their tour of duty. Supervisor Injtials x__________
2. Specialized Units shall not be utilized in core or hospital watches upless at minimum staffing and no other means are

available. Supervisor Initials x

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THESE WRITTEN DIRECTIVES SHALL RESULT IN DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS.

DESK SUPERVISOR (Erint/Sign/ID#)

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:

DATE

1) Field Supervisor make Stratford Pl and immediate area a Strenuous Lookout
2) Zero Tolerance Quality of Life Issues Supervisor to monitor
3) Unpits 511and 512 shall not be utilize for hospital watch they must remain in thair respective sectors

N
2
,
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FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE
NEwARK Lopce No. 12

51 RECTOR STREET 07102
FOP Office Telephone (973) 642-0390
FAX: (973) 642-6378

November 30th, 2011

On November 30", 2010, the mayor of Newark laid off 162 Police Officers
and said the city would be safe, nobody would notice the difference, Newark
“wouldn’t miss a beat”. At least another 40 cops have retired since then. 40
more men and women are out with long term injuries or illnesses. Others

are on vacation, or serving in the military. The Newark Police Department
is easily down 250 cops since this time last year, and violence within the city
has dramatically increased as property crimes have risen across the board.

In the nearly 1 complete year since the layoffs occurred, compared to the
same time frame from 1 year ago-

Homicides have increased from 81 to 95, up 17%

Shooting incidents have increased from 275 to 355, up 29%
Shooting victims have increased from 336 to 448, up 33%
Carjackings have increased from 151 to 262, up 74% q2anspiny
Robberies have increased from 1567 to 1849, up 18%
Burglaries have increased from 1914 to 2234, up 17%

Thefts have increased from 3661 to 3785, up 3%

Auto thefts have increased from 3513 to 3534, up 1%

Total crimes have increased from 11959 to 12650, up 6%

More than 75 of those laid off Officers have found jobs with other
departments, while the rest continue to seek employment with other agencies
across the state and beyond. The Dallas Police Department will be recruiting
in Newark on December 7th, looking to take more of our cops.

Other NI cities that have suffered layoffs have begun to hire back, some
have brought back all of their cops, yet Newark has not hired back ONE
POLICE OFFICER. NOT ONE! Why? Will any be left to even call back?
Call the mayor, ask him. (973) 733-6400

**Source-City of Newark COMPSTAT crime statistics, 12/4/2010-11/27/2011**
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Retirement
# |Rank Name Regular |Disability Start Date Last Date
1 |Sgt [Elonio Soto 1 1112
2 Kenneth Irvin 1 2/11112
3 Kenneth Guiliano 1 2/1/12
4 Derrick Hatcher 1 4/1/12
6 Richard Williams 1 4/112
7 Orlando Hurtado 1 4/1/12
8 Eric Jackson 1 4/112
Adelino Benavente 1 4/1/12
9 Frederick Masucci 1 5/1112
10 Donald Stokes 1 4/1/12
11 Jose Branquinho 1 4/112
12 : 4 o
13 Wilfredo Torres 1 41112 N
14 Philip Litterio 1 4/1/12
16 |Sgt. [George Davis 1 5/1112
16 William Tartis 1 5/1/12
17 Jose Velez 1 5/1/12
18 Lawerence Kates 1 4112
19 Gregory Hamilton 1 5/1/12
21 ' e :
22 Roy Wheeler-Weaver 1 9/1/12
23 Alice Wilkins 1 9/1/12
24 Pedrito Cruz 9/1/12
26
27
28 S -
29 i
30 |PO |James Kneipp 1 9/1/12
31 |PO [|Manuel Vendrell 1 3/1/112
32 (PO [Joyce Boswell 1 11/11/12
33 |Lt. Steven Yurik 1 7/1/12
34 |PO |Anderson Walker 1 4/1/12
35
36 |PO |William Perez 1 4/1/12
37
38
39
40
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November 20, 2011, © 2012 NJ.com.
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James Quedlly, * Shootings, stabbing mark bloody weekend in Newark.” November 13,
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James Queally, “ Shots fired at Newark police officers during chase in West Ward.”
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January 17, 2012, Star-Ledger, © 2012 NJ.com.
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January 26, 2012, Star-Ledger, © 2012 NJ.com.

James Queally, “Newark councilman claims he was robbed at gunpoint in city’s North
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